
       Park Township Board of Trustees 

July 14, 2016 

6:30 pm 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

(Please turn off or set to “silent” mode all cell phones and other electronic devices.) 

 

 

1. Call to order  

 

2. Invocation 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4. Approval of Agenda (Additions to or Deletions from Agenda) 

 

5. Approval of Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes: June 9, 2016 and special meeting of June 23, 2016 

b. Financial Report 

c. Building/Zoning/Code Compliance Report 

d. Payment of Bills  

 

6. Public Safety Reports 

a. Fire Department 

b. Sheriff’s Office 

 

7. Public Comment (This is an opportunity for the public to address the Board and to make 

any appropriate comments.  Please limit your comments to 2 – 3 minutes per person. ) 

 

8. Public Hearing:  PW1 Condition Amendment Request 

 

9. Staff and Committee Reports 

a. PW1 Condition Amendment Request 

b. *Ottawa County Fair Board Sunday Use Request 

c. *Transit Committee Update: Propensity Study Funding 

d. MACC Bylaw Amendment 

e. Professional Planning Services Agreement 

f. Recreation Software Purchase 

g. Establish Public Hearing on Winter Plowing of Bike Paths 

h. Bid Award: Greenly Bike Path 

i. Water Trail Discussion 

j. Planning Commission:  Zoning Map Update Adoption 

 



10. Closed Session for Purpose of Considering the Purchase of Real Estate 

 

 

 

 

11. Public Comment (This is an opportunity for the public to address the Board and to make 

any appropriate comments.  Please limit your comments to 2 – 3 minutes per person.)  

 

12. Manager’s Comments 

 

13. Board Comments and Committee/Agency Reports 

 

14. Adjourn 

 

 

*NOTE:  Public comment may be accepted at the time the Board is considering agenda 

items marked with * 

 



 

PARK TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

June 9, 2016 

ART 1. CALL TO ORDER 

 Supervisor Jerry Hunsburger called to order the regular meeting of the Park 
Township Board held on June 9, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. at the Park Township 
Office, 52-152nd Ave., Holland, MI 49424. 

Present were Supervisor Jerry Hunsburger, Clerk Skip Keeter, Treasurer Jan 
Steggerda, Trustees Nicki Arendshorst, Jim Chiodo, Jeff Hoekstra and Mike 
Toscano and Manager Jerry Felix and Attorney Dan Martin. 

ART 2. INVOCATION - Hunsburger 

ART 3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ART 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Additions to or Deletions from Agenda) 
 Hunsburger requested adding agenda item 11b to the agenda and a closed 

session with legal counsel as item 12 moving the remaining items down in the 
agenda. 

 
 MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 

was made by Chiodo and supported by Keeter to approve the agenda as 
amended. (7-0) 
 

ART 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of Minutes:  May 12, 2016 
b) Financial Report 
c) Building / Zoning / Code Compliance Report 
d) Payment of Bills 
 
MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Keeter and supported by Arendshorst to approve the 
consent agenda. (7-0) 
 

ART 6.  PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 

a) Fire Department ï Chief Gamby gave an update on the activities of the 



Fire Department for the month of May.   
 

b) Sheriffôs Office- Office Mike DeWitt gave an update on the activities of 
the Sheriffôs office for the month of May.   
 

ART 7.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
          Hunsburger opened the public comment period.   

          5 people spoke at the public comment period. 

 Hunsburger closed the public comment period. 

ART 8. PUBLIC PRESENTATION:  Bradley Slagh, County Treasurer 

 Treasurer Slagh gave an update on the Treasurerôs office and the ways they 
help residents pay their taxes.  He outlined the many services that are 
available throughout the area. 

ART 9. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a) Planning Commission Recommendations 
Ed DeVries the Zoning Administrator fielded questions from the board 
regarding the changes to the ordinances. 
 

MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Keeter and supported by Chiodo to adopt the ordinance as 
recommended by the Planning Commission.  (7-0) 

b) Fairground Fence Bid Award 
Felix stated the recommended bid is with Fence consultants for 
$13,800 
 

MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Toscano and supported by Keeter accept low bid from Fence 
consultants for $13,800. (7-0) 

c) Mower Bid 
Felix explained the request submitted by the Maintenance department. 
 

MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Steggerda and supported by Hoekstra to approve the bid for 
new mower from Westenbroek Mower in the amount of $11,397. (7-0) 

d) Bike Path Engineering Agreement:  160th Ave: James to Ransom 
 

MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Chiodo and supported by Arendshorst approve the engineering 
agreement with Prein and Newhof for the 160th bike path project in an amount not to 
exceed $170,000 but to only authorize the design phase at this time. (7-0) 

e) Metro Act Agreement:  ACD Telecom, Inc. 
 



MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Keeter and supported by Chiodo approve Metro Act Agreement with 
ACD Telecom. (7-0) 

 
f) Traffic Control Order:  Limited Parking Ottawa Beach Road 

 
MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Keeter and supported by Hoekstra adopt the attached ordinance 
that limits parking to three hours on the south side of Ottawa Beach Road 
westerly 700 feet from the centerline of 168th Avenue. The Board will revisit 
the conditions at the September meeting. (6-1, Toscano) 

ART. 10 BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

ART 11. MANAGERôS REPORT 

a) Ottawa Beach Road Gateway Update ï Felix updated the Board on the 
project. 
 

b) Resignation Letter of the Manager 
 

MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Keeter and supported by Hoekstra to accept the Managerôs 
resignation. (4-3 Toscano, Arendshorst, Steggerda) 

The Board will review the replacement process at a special meeting on June 
23 at 6:30. 

ART 12. EXECUTIVE SESSION ï Attorney/Client Privileged 

MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Chiodo and supported by Hoekstra to go into closed session to 
discuss Attorney/Client privileged correspondence.  

Roll Call Vote: 

Yes:  Hunsburger, Keeter, Steggerda, Arendshorst, Chiodo, Hoekstra and 
Toscano 

No:  none 

MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Keeter and supported by Arendshorst to return into open 
session. (7-0) 

MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Toscano and supported by Keeter to set a hearing on July 14, 2016
to consider a request from PW1 to revise condition 3N of the PUD Agreement. (7-0) 

ART 13. PUBLIC COMMENT 



Hunsburger opened the floor for public comment 

2 people spoke at the public comment period. 

 Hunsburger closed the public comment period. 

ART 14. BOARD COMMENTS AND COMMITTEE/AGENCY REPORTS 
 Toscano stated the WMRA construction project is close to being complete 
 
 Keeter stated he was reluctant to accept the resignation of the Manager. 
 
 Arendshorst sent her reports via email to the Board. 
 
 Steggerda stated staff is working hard at getting tax numbers ready for 

summer tax bills. 
 
 Hunsburger stated the DNR hearings were held at the Township Office 

regarding the no wake zones in the Lake Macatawa narrows.  He and Chiodo 
attended the hearing. 

 
ART 15. ADJOURN 

MOTION MADE; MOTION SUPPORTED; MOTION CARRIED:  A motion 
was made by Keeter and supported by Chiodo to adjourn at 9:21. (7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted by Clerk Skip Keeter 
 

Daniele Dykens 
Recording Secretary 



 

 

Park Township 

June 23, 2016 

6:30pm 

Supervisor Hunsburger called to order a meeting of the Board of Trustees on Thursday, June 23, 
2016 at the Park Township Office at 52 – 152nd Ave. at 6:30pm. 

Present were:  Supervisor Hunsburger, Clerk Keeter, Treasurer Steggerda and Trustees 
Arendshorst, Chiodo, Hoekstra and Toscano and Facilitator Al Vanderberg 

A. Hunsburger briefly discussed the history of the Township Manager. 
B. Facilitator Al Vanderberg outlined the agenda with the Board. 

1. The Board agreed to hire/appoint an Interim Manager. 
2. The Board reviewed and agreed on an Interim Manager job description and other 

employment issues.  The Board discussed the salary range of $99,000-DOQ and 
agreed no benefits would be offered to an Interim Manager.  The Interim Manager 
would be a contracted employee unless it is someone currently on staff. 

3. Vanderberg discussed the process to fill the interim position.  The Board agreed to 
allow the Executive Committee (Supervisor, Clerk and Treasurer) to review and 
recommend final candidates to the Board.  The Board agreed to allow the remaining 
Board members to see all interim candidates prior to final approval.  Ottawa County 
will oversee the vetting process.  The County will begin the process to find an 
Interim Manager immediately. 

4. Discuss process and options to fill Permanent Township Manager Position.  The 
Board agreed to allow Ottawa County to assist in filling the long term Township 
Manager position.  The Board agreed to continue with the same job description and 
pay range as was previously held by the Manager.  The permanent search will begin 
August 1. 

5. The Board reviewed the process for a smooth transition.  The Board agreed to 
provide an hourly wage of $50.00 to the current Manager to stay on retainer for 
twelve (12) months at a maximum of $5000.  The funds will be disbursed as needed.   

C. Summary 
D. Public Comment 

Hunsburger opened the public comment period. 
3 people spoke at the public Comment period 
Hunsburger closed the public comment period. 

E. Adjournment 
The Board adjourned at 8:26pm. 



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 1/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 101 General Fund

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

314,069.94 Check Account101-000-001.000
150,000.00 Insured Cash Sweep Account - WMCB101-000-001.006

400.00 CASH ON HAND101-000-002.000
100,040.57 Savings101-000-002.100
300,000.00 Gf - Cds101-000-003.000
402,956.00 Investments - Huntington101-000-017.100

(192.00)Fair Value Adjustment101-000-017.900
3,020.19 Due From Tax Account101-000-084.703
3,140.00 Prepaid Insurance101-000-090.000
(611.61)PREPAID POSTAGE101-000-090.100

1,454.87 PREPAID EXPENSE101-000-095.000

1,274,277.96 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

13,613.23 Accounts Payable101-000-202.000
(1,214.84)Payroll Deductions101-000-231.000
3,370.00 Deposits101-000-255.000

15,768.39 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

1,587,902.47 Fund Balance - General Fund101-000-390.000
358,000.00 COMMITTED FUND BALANCE101-000-392.000
31,590.40 NONSPENDABLE FUND BALANCE101-000-394.000

1,977,492.87 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

1,484,472.25 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

1,977,492.87 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

(225,962.68)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
1,258,509.57 Ending Fund Balance
1,274,277.96 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

(493,020.62)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 2/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 207 Police Fund

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

141,856.65 Checking Account (police)207-000-001.000
150,018.04 Savings207-000-002.100
200,000.00 Police - Cd's207-000-003.000
250,000.00 CDs - Huntington207-000-003.100
251,550.00 Investments - Huntington207-000-017.100

47.50 Fair Value Adjustment207-000-017.900

993,472.19 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

41,610.45 Accounts Payable (police)207-000-202.000

41,610.45 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

1,020,436.64 Fund Balance - Police207-000-390.000

1,020,436.64 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

1,065,686.78 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

1,020,436.64 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

(113,825.04)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
951,861.74 Ending Fund Balance
993,472.19 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

45,250.14 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 3/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 208 Park/recreation Fund

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

231,163.54 Checking Accounts (parks)208-000-001.000
150,246.48 Savings208-000-002.100
300,061.50 MI Class Investment Pool208-000-017.200

681,471.52 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

8,648.79 Accounts Payable (parks)208-000-202.000
5,770.00 SECURITY DEPOSITS208-000-255.000

14,418.79 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

566,168.03 Fund Balance - Parks208-000-390.000

566,168.03 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

770,153.01 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

566,168.03 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

(103,100.28)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
667,052.73 Ending Fund Balance
681,471.52 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

203,984.98 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 4/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 211 Bike Path Fund

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

75,282.79 Checking (bike Path)211-000-001.000
200,777.90 Savings211-000-002.100
550,000.00 Bike Path - Cds211-000-003.000
498,198.18 Investments - Huntington211-000-017.100

1,324,258.87 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

2,849.41 Accounts Payable211-000-202.000

2,849.41 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

1,470,781.87 Fund Balance - Bike Path211-000-390.000

1,470,781.87 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

1,520,158.71 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

1,470,781.87 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

(198,749.25)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
1,321,409.46 Ending Fund Balance
1,324,258.87 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

49,376.84 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 5/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 219 STREET LIGHTING FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

40,491.28 Check Account219-000-001.000

40,491.28 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

0.00 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

42,639.51 FUND BALANCE - STREET LIGHTING219-000-390.000

42,639.51 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

60,693.54 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

42,639.51 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

(20,202.26)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
40,491.28 Ending Fund Balance
40,491.28 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

18,054.03 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 6/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 241 WEST MICHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORITY FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

0.79 Check Account241-000-001.000

0.79 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

0.00 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

0.00 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

0.00 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

0.00 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

0.79 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
0.79 Ending Fund Balance
0.79 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

0.00 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 7/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 271 LIBRARY FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

10.05 Check Account271-000-001.000

10.05 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

0.00 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

0.00 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

0.00 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

0.00 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

10.05 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
10.05 Ending Fund Balance
10.05 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

0.00 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 8/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 351 Sewer Distribution Fund

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

71,549.24 Sd - Checking351-000-001.000
250,625.36 West Michigan Community Bank - Money Mkt351-000-001.005
405,106.42 Insured Cash Sweep Account - WMCB351-000-001.006
250,000.00 Sewer - Cds351-000-003.000
249,225.00 Investments - Huntington351-000-017.100
200,282.91 Sd - Accounts Rec - Deferred351-000-028.001
42,530.95 SP ASSMTS ON TAX ROLL351-000-028.002

104.17 Interest Receivable351-000-056.000

1,469,424.05 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

200,282.91 Deferred Revenue351-000-339.000

200,282.91 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

1,110,128.40 Sd - Fund Balance351-000-390.000

1,110,128.40 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

1,220,766.93 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

1,110,128.40 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

48,374.21 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
1,269,141.14 Ending Fund Balance
1,469,424.05 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

110,638.53 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 9/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 403 Capital Projects Fund

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

296,843.61 Improv Fund - Checking403-000-001.000
200,706.08 Insured Cash Sweep Account - WMCB403-000-001.006
800,000.00 Improv Fund- Cds403-000-003.000
250,000.00 CDs - Huntington403-000-003.100

2,387,511.21 Investments - Huntington403-000-017.100
(12.50)Fair Value Adjustment403-000-017.900

3,726.67 Interest Receivable403-000-056.000
37,378.00 DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS403-000-084.000

3,976,153.07 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

450.00 Accounts Payable403-000-202.000
40,000.00 Due To Other Funds403-000-214.000

40,450.00 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

2,703,837.64 Imp Fund - Committed Fund Balance403-000-390.000
466,231.00 ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE - FIRE EQUIPMENT403-000-390.001
252,583.16 ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE - CEMETERY CARE403-000-390.002

3,422,651.80 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

4,369,901.14 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

3,422,651.80 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

(434,198.07)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
3,935,703.07 Ending Fund Balance
3,976,153.07 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

947,249.34 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 10/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 404 Local Streets

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

2,699.09 Check Account404-000-001.000
450,246.48 Savings404-000-002.100

452,945.57 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

0.00 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

463,687.48 Fund Balance - Committed404-000-390.000

463,687.48 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

454,474.56 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

463,687.48 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

(1,528.99)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
452,945.57 Ending Fund Balance
452,945.57 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

(9,212.92)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 11/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 581 Park Twp Airport

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

29,587.95 Check Account581-000-001.000
1,363.17 Account Receivable581-000-028.000

102,362.51 Buildings581-000-100.000
(65,388.43)A/d Buildings581-000-101.000

7,297.15 INVENTORY - FUEL581-000-109.000
26,944.00 Land Improvements581-000-110.000
(26,944.00)A/d Land Improvements581-000-111.000

75,222.35 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

430.96 Accounts Payable581-000-202.000
1,000.00 Deferred Revenue581-000-339.000

1,430.96 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

(22,866.46)UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS581-000-395.000
26,367.37 RESTRICTED NET ASSETS581-000-396.000

3,500.91 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

80,064.94 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

3,500.91 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

(6,273.55)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
73,791.39 Ending Fund Balance
75,222.35 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

76,564.03 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 12/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 591 Water Fund

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

156,504.67 Water Acct Checking591-000-001.000
150,000.00 Insured Cash Sweep Account - WMCB591-000-001.006

286.64 Cash - Huntington591-000-001.100
250,199.09 Savings591-000-002.100
750,000.00 CDs - Huntington591-000-003.100
501,050.00 Investments - Huntington591-000-017.100

3,982.50 Fair Value Adjustment591-000-017.900
60,932.32 SP ASSMTS ON TAX ROLL591-000-028.002

(577.78)Water Bills Receivable591-000-029.000
256,879.10 Assessment Receivable591-000-045.000
40,000.00 Due From Other Funds591-000-084.000

10,724,975.49 Water Mains591-000-152.000
(5,688,951.89)Accumulated Depreciation591-000-153.000

7,205,280.14 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

49,728.50 Accounts Payable591-000-202.000
37,378.00 Due To Township Improvements591-000-214.403

87,106.50 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

6,717,424.97 Fund Balance591-000-390.000

6,717,424.97 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

7,151,433.69 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

6,717,424.97 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

(33,260.05)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
7,118,173.64 Ending Fund Balance
7,205,280.14 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

434,008.72 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



BALANCE SHEET FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 13/13Pag
e:

07/05/2016 04:07 PM
User: CVANDERSCHAAF
DB: Park Township

Period Ending 06/30/2016

                                     Fund 703 Tax Collection Fund

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

3,048.11 Tax Account - Checking703-000-001.000

3,048.11 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

1.99 DUE TO GENERAL FUND - E UNIT 703-000-214.100
3,020.19 Due To General Fund703-000-214.101

1.48 DUE TO GENERAL FUND - PARKS703-000-214.120
2.81 DUE TO GENERAL FUND - TWP ALLOCATION703-000-214.140
1.19 DUE TO GENERAL FUND - BIKE PATH703-000-214.150

11.80 DUE TO GF - UNSPREAD INT/PENALTY703-000-214.300
(0.74)DUE TO GF-OVER/SHORT703-000-214.400
3.70 DUE TO TOWNSHIP - LIBRARY703-000-214.500
0.29 DUE TO TOWNSHIP - WMRAA703-000-214.600
1.49 DUE TO TOWNSHIP - ROADS703-000-214.700
2.26 DUE TO COUNTIES703-000-222.000
0.09 DUE TO COUNTIES - LATE FEES703-000-222.100
1.50 DUE TO COUNTY-ROADS703-000-222.200
0.06 Due to County Roads - Late Fees703-000-222.205

3,048.11 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

0.00 Total Fund Balance

* Year Not Closed

0.00 *15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB

0.00 Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16

0.00 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year
0.00 Ending Fund Balance

3,048.11 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

0.00 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 1/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund

Dept 000

0.00 902,986.51 13.49 903,000.00 903,000.00 895,992.81 Current Taxes-Allocated101-000-403.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Street Light Assessments101-000-404.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Drain Assessments101-000-405.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Road Assessments101-000-406.000
32.20 1,729.00 821.00 2,550.00 2,550.00 2,520.00 Trailer Taxes101-000-407.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PILT SWAMP TAXES101-000-424.000
0.34 4,046.25 13.75 4,060.00 4,060.00 3,984.20 Liquor License Fees101-000-451.000
28.20 78,985.00 31,015.00 110,000.00 110,000.00 139,573.00 Building Permit Fees101-000-476.000
35.46 11,295.00 6,205.00 17,500.00 17,500.00 22,795.00 Plumbing Permit Fees101-000-477.000
36.22 17,540.00 9,960.00 27,500.00 27,500.00 39,260.00 Electrical Permit Fees101-000-478.000
38.02 16,735.00 10,265.00 27,000.00 27,000.00 40,180.00 Mechanical Permit Fees101-000-479.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FEDERAL GRANTS - GENERAL101-000-501.000
15.90 1,177,447.00 222,553.00 1,400,000.00 1,400,000.00 1,386,259.00 State Revenue Sharing101-000-574.000
14.64 10,243.50 1,756.50 12,000.00 12,000.00 18,048.00 Zoning Fees101-000-609.000
100.00 (100.00)100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Misc Building Fees101-000-610.000
0.00 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 24,868.55 Tax Collection Fees101-000-611.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Plan Review Income101-000-626.000
49.32 11,150.00 10,850.00 22,000.00 22,000.00 29,700.00 Cemetery Lots101-000-643.000
1.10 5,291.04 58.96 5,350.00 5,350.00 14,568.87 Interest Earned101-000-664.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest On rd and drain Asses101-000-664.003
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (192.00)Increase (Decrease) in Fair Va101-000-664.900
0.00 33,000.00 0.00 33,000.00 33,000.00 33,519.74 Lease/franchise Fees101-000-668.000

181.34 (1,464.13)3,264.13 1,800.00 1,800.00 28,082.75 Miscellaneous Income101-000-671.000
83.57 36.96 188.04 225.00 225.00 227.28 RETIREE INSURANCE INCOME101-000-671.002
0.00 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 14,429.69 Election Reimbursements101-000-671.003
63.63 691.00 1,209.00 1,900.00 1,900.00 2,710.00 Fire Dept - Miscellaneous Inc101-000-671.007
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS101-000-673.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FIRE-CONTRIBUTIONS./DONATIONS101-000-675.001
0.00 13,500.00 0.00 13,500.00 13,500.00 12,326.37 V.p. Station Reimbursements101-000-676.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfer From Other Fund101-000-699.000
25.00 15,000.00 5,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Adm Fees-Police101-000-699.100
25.00 48,750.00 16,250.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 Adm Fees-Park/rec101-000-699.200
25.00 33,750.00 11,250.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 Adm Fees-Bike Path101-000-699.300
25.00 7,500.00 2,500.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 15,000.00 Adm Fees-Sewer101-000-699.400
25.00 5,625.00 1,875.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 Adm Fees - Local Streets101-000-699.404
25.00 48,750.00 16,250.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 Adm Fees - Water101-000-699.500
25.00 1,875.00 625.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Adm Fees - Street Lighting101-000-699.550
25.00 1,875.00 625.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Admin Fees - Park Twp Airport101-000-699.581
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 From Contingency101-000-699.600

(879.93)2,474,737.13 352,647.87 2,827,385.00 2,827,385.00 2,931,353.26 Net - Dept 000

Dept 101-Township Board Of Trustees

25.00 5,400.00 1,800.00 7,200.00 7,200.00 7,200.00 Board Of Trustee  Salary101-101-702.000
24.97 335.40 111.60 447.00 447.00 446.40 Board - Soc Sec Tax Ee101-101-715.000
24.84 78.92 26.08 105.00 105.00 104.40 Board Medicare Ee101-101-715.002
24.43 755.72 244.28 1,000.00 1,000.00 549.83 Board Supplies101-101-727.000
0.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 57.79 Postage101-101-728.000
53.74 19,428.44 22,571.56 42,000.00 42,000.00 40,763.33 Board Dues & Subscriptions101-101-750.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 BOARD-MILEAGE101-101-860.000
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 1,046.16 Printing & Pub101-101-900.000
27.00 730.00 270.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 830.00 Meetings/seminars101-101-956.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment101-101-971.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 2/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund

(179.97)(29,878.48)(25,023.52)(54,902.00)(54,902.00)(50,997.91)Net - Dept 101-Township Board Of Trustees

Dept 171-Supervisor

26.92 9,576.00 3,528.00 13,104.00 13,104.00 13,104.00 Supervisor - Salaries101-171-702.000
26.90 594.27 218.73 813.00 813.00 812.45 Supervisor Social Security Ee101-171-715.000
26.78 139.85 51.15 191.00 191.00 190.01 Supervisor Medicare Ee101-171-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Postage101-171-728.000
0.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 Mileage101-171-860.000
0.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 Printing & Pub101-171-900.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 Meetings/seminars101-171-956.000

(80.61)(11,810.12)(3,797.88)(15,608.00)(15,608.00)(14,106.46)Net - Dept 171-Supervisor

Dept 172-Manager

23.46 92,236.48 28,273.52 120,510.00 120,510.00 117,900.00 Township Managers Salary101-172-702.000
21.97 5,830.46 1,641.54 7,472.00 7,472.00 7,266.21 Manager Social Security Ee101-172-715.000
21.96 1,364.10 383.90 1,748.00 1,748.00 1,699.37 Manager Medicare Ee101-172-715.002
33.67 10,013.12 5,081.88 15,095.00 15,095.00 14,949.02 Hospitalization Ins101-172-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance101-172-718.000
42.42 9,299.13 6,849.87 16,149.00 16,149.00 16,200.56 Mgr. Fringe Ben - Retirement P101-172-719.000
25.58 1,611.84 554.16 2,166.00 2,166.00 1,676.97 Mgr. Frng Ben - Other Employee 101-172-720.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 15.29 Supplies101-172-727.000
0.00 25.00 0.00 25.00 25.00 0.00 Postage101-172-728.000
23.08 2,692.34 807.66 3,500.00 3,500.00 3,115.22 Mileage101-172-860.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 115.94 Meetings/seminars101-172-956.000

(192.14)(124,672.47)(43,592.53)(168,265.00)(168,265.00)(162,938.58)Net - Dept 172-Manager

Dept 201-Finance

23.60 62,644.25 19,355.75 82,000.00 82,000.00 79,103.83 FINANCE DIRECTOR  SALARY101-201-702.000
23.01 3,914.23 1,169.77 5,084.00 5,084.00 4,792.75  FINANCE SOCIAL SECURITY EE101-201-715.000
23.01 915.42 273.58 1,189.00 1,189.00 1,120.89 FINANCE MEDICARE EE101-201-715.002
33.67 4,641.71 2,356.29 6,998.00 6,998.00 6,435.20 FINANCE HOSPITALIZATION INS101-201-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FINANCE GROUP LIFE INSURANCE101-201-718.000
27.45 7,972.34 3,015.66 10,988.00 10,988.00 10,599.99 FINANCE- RETIREMENT PLAN101-201-719.000
26.78 956.96 350.04 1,307.00 1,307.00 1,339.92 FINANCE-OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-201-720.000
6.19 93.81 6.19 100.00 100.00 0.00 FINANCE-SUPPLIES101-201-727.000
0.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 0.00 FINANCE-POSTAGE101-201-728.000
23.75 610.00 190.00 800.00 800.00 702.50 FINANCE-DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS101-201-750.000
3.89 720.84 29.16 750.00 750.00 636.05 FINANCE-MILEAGE101-201-860.000
0.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 0.00 Printing & Pub101-201-900.000
37.48 1,563.00 937.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,282.21 Meetings/seminars101-201-956.000

(228.83)(84,132.56)(27,683.44)(111,816.00)(111,816.00)(106,013.34)Net - Dept 201-Finance

Dept 215-Clerk

26.92 9,576.00 3,528.00 13,104.00 13,104.00 13,104.00 Clerk - Salary (see Details)101-215-702.000
24.32 39,077.78 12,556.22 51,634.00 51,634.00 44,355.20 Deputy Clerk Salary101-215-703.000
24.30 3,038.72 975.28 4,014.00 4,014.00 3,494.64 Clerk Social Security Ee101-215-715.000
24.29 710.93 228.07 939.00 939.00 817.33 Clerk Medicare Ee101-215-715.002
32.83 9,736.90 4,758.10 14,495.00 14,495.00 12,628.73 Hospitalization Ins101-215-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance101-215-718.000
74.08 1,710.09 4,887.91 6,598.00 6,598.00 5,647.67 Clerk- Retirement101-215-719.000
29.34 1,389.24 576.76 1,966.00 1,966.00 1,533.42 Clerk Frng Ben - Other Employe101-215-720.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 3/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund

20.89 79.11 20.89 100.00 100.00 80.01 Clerk Supplies101-215-727.000
22.51 774.91 225.09 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,067.47 CLERK POSTAGE101-215-728.000
10.00 540.00 60.00 600.00 600.00 650.00 Clerk-Dues & Subscriptions101-215-750.000
18.86 649.12 150.88 800.00 800.00 490.13 Mileage101-215-860.000
8.56 4,572.05 427.95 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,619.45 Meetings/seminars101-215-956.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 Imaging Project Costs101-215-967.000

(316.89)(73,854.85)(28,395.15)(102,250.00)(102,250.00)(85,488.05)Net - Dept 215-Clerk

Dept 223-Audit

56.55 7,300.00 9,500.00 16,800.00 16,800.00 13,080.00 Professional Fees101-223-801.000

(56.55)(7,300.00)(9,500.00)(16,800.00)(16,800.00)(13,080.00)Net - Dept 223-Audit

Dept 228-Information Technology

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Supplies101-228-727.000
0.60 19,880.30 119.70 20,000.00 20,000.00 14,963.92 Small Equipment101-228-740.000
33.27 35,367.94 17,632.06 53,000.00 53,000.00 44,135.81 IT PURCHASED SERVICES101-228-803.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment101-228-971.000

(33.87)(55,248.24)(17,751.76)(73,000.00)(73,000.00)(59,099.73)Net - Dept 228-Information Technology

Dept 247-Board Of Review

0.00 2,600.00 0.00 2,600.00 2,600.00 1,985.00 Bd Of Rev - Salaries101-247-702.000
0.00 165.00 0.00 165.00 165.00 123.07 Bor Social Security Ee101-247-715.000
0.00 40.00 0.00 40.00 40.00 28.80 Bor Medicare Ee101-247-715.002
0.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 169.90 Bor-Supplies101-247-727.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Printing & Pub101-247-900.000

0.00 (2,955.00)0.00 (2,955.00)(2,955.00)(2,306.77)Net - Dept 247-Board Of Review

Dept 253-Treasurer

26.92 9,576.00 3,528.00 13,104.00 13,104.00 13,104.00 Treasurer Salary101-253-702.000
23.90 12,650.40 3,973.60 16,624.00 16,624.00 16,264.18 DEPUTY TREASURER101-253-702.005
24.92 1,384.56 459.44 1,844.00 1,844.00 1,800.34 Treasurer Social Security Ee101-253-715.000
24.81 325.58 107.42 433.00 433.00 421.04 Treasurer Medicare Ee101-253-715.002
33.63 3,005.82 1,523.18 4,529.00 4,529.00 4,484.72 Hospitalization Ins101-253-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance101-253-718.000

131.81 (708.66)2,936.66 2,228.00 2,228.00 2,179.31 Treas. Fringe Ben - Retirement 101-253-719.000
29.27 328.17 135.83 464.00 464.00 431.56 Treas. Frng Ben - Other Employ101-253-720.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 455.82 Treasurer Supplies101-253-727.000
46.52 3,743.55 3,256.45 7,000.00 7,000.00 7,244.47 Postage101-253-728.000
0.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 135.00 Treasurer-Dues & Subscriptions101-253-750.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Bank Service Charges101-253-810.000
10.50 1,789.94 210.06 2,000.00 2,000.00 888.80 Mileage101-253-860.000
24.74 2,897.38 952.62 3,850.00 3,850.00 1,599.08 Meetings/seminars101-253-956.000

(377.03)(36,642.74)(17,083.26)(53,726.00)(53,726.00)(49,008.32)Net - Dept 253-Treasurer

Dept 257-Assessor

23.59 118,730.99 36,655.01 155,386.00 155,386.00 150,939.60 ASSESSING SALARIES101-257-702.000
22.33 7,482.42 2,151.58 9,634.00 9,634.00 8,884.15 Assessor Social Security Ee101-257-715.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 4/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund

22.32 1,750.81 503.19 2,254.00 2,254.00 2,077.76 Assessor Medicare Ee101-257-715.002
33.71 24,023.52 12,214.48 36,238.00 36,238.00 35,914.62 Hospitalization Ins101-257-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance101-257-718.000

100.58 (119.78)20,941.78 20,822.00 20,822.00 20,296.34 Assessor Fringe Ben - Retireme101-257-719.000
24.55 3,784.75 1,231.25 5,016.00 5,016.00 3,941.91 Assessor Frng Ben - Other Empl101-257-720.000
7.08 464.62 35.38 500.00 500.00 539.44 Assessor Supplies101-257-727.000
9.57 3,617.05 382.95 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,043.76 Postage101-257-728.000
4.27 1,345.00 60.00 1,405.00 1,405.00 1,274.00 Dues & Subscriptions101-257-750.000
0.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 25.00 Professional Fees101-257-801.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Communication101-257-851.000
21.00 1,185.02 314.98 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,662.81 Mileage101-257-860.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,635.80 Printing & Pub101-257-900.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Repairs & Maint101-257-930.000
4.12 3,260.00 140.00 3,400.00 3,400.00 2,390.26 Meetings/seminars101-257-956.000

(273.11)(167,674.40)(74,630.60)(242,305.00)(242,305.00)(233,625.45)Net - Dept 257-Assessor

Dept 262-Elections

18.01 37,306.71 8,193.29 45,500.00 45,500.00 26,951.78 Elections - Salaries101-262-702.000
11.32 852.24 108.76 961.00 961.00 420.69 Social Security Ee101-262-715.000
11.31 199.55 25.45 225.00 225.00 98.41 Election Medicare Ee101-262-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38.74 Hospitalization Ins101-262-717.000
38.25 289.62 179.38 469.00 469.00 183.86 Fringe Ben - Retirement Plan101-262-719.000
31.57 2,394.95 1,105.05 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,960.82 Supplies101-262-727.000
12.53 6,123.03 876.97 7,000.00 7,000.00 2,062.82 Postage101-262-728.000
10.00 1,350.03 149.97 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 Small Equipment101-262-740.000
0.50 9,950.00 50.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 920.00 Professional Fees101-262-801.000
24.94 375.32 124.68 500.00 500.00 300.01 Mileage101-262-860.000
4.80 7,140.10 359.90 7,500.00 7,500.00 671.32 Printing & Pub101-262-900.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Election Equipment Storage Exp101-262-940.000
33.33 600.00 300.00 900.00 900.00 600.00 ELECTIONS-BUILDING RENTAL101-262-941.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment101-262-971.000

(196.55)(66,581.55)(11,473.45)(78,055.00)(78,055.00)(35,208.45)Net - Dept 262-Elections

Dept 264-Twp Property

18.12 6,698.42 1,482.58 8,181.00 8,181.00 12,485.58 Twp Prop - Salaries101-264-702.000
17.66 418.31 89.69 508.00 508.00 754.77 Property Social Security Ee101-264-715.000
17.48 99.02 20.98 120.00 120.00 176.47 Property Medicare Ee101-264-715.002
33.24 1,544.26 768.74 2,313.00 2,313.00 3,246.16 Hospitalization Ins101-264-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance101-264-718.000
33.69 638.53 324.47 963.00 963.00 1,562.29 Twp Prop. Fringe Ben - Retirem101-264-719.000
32.98 172.24 84.76 257.00 257.00 234.83 Twp Prop. Frng Ben - Other Emp101-264-720.000
16.60 834.01 165.99 1,000.00 1,000.00 205.63 Supplies101-264-727.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 50.00 Gas & Oil-Vehicles101-264-729.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Small Equipment101-264-740.000

205.54 (1,055.40)2,055.40 1,000.00 1,000.00 925.65 Professional Fees101-264-801.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PROPERTY UNIFORMS101-264-829.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Telephone101-264-850.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Mileage101-264-860.000
11.89 1,938.45 261.55 2,200.00 2,200.00 1,838.75 Light & Power101-264-920.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 731.10 Property Water & Sewer101-264-921.000
8.95 2,458.26 241.74 2,700.00 2,700.00 1,485.66 Heat101-264-922.000
1.64 6,885.28 114.72 7,000.00 7,000.00 14,418.01 Repairs & Maint101-264-930.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment Rental101-264-940.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 5/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund

63.32 1,650.59 2,849.41 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00 Equipment101-264-971.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Building Improvements101-264-972.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,750.00 Land Improvements101-264-973.000

(461.11)(23,781.97)(8,460.03)(32,242.00)(32,242.00)(53,864.90)Net - Dept 264-Twp Property

Dept 265-Twp Office

27.91 62,035.34 24,018.66 86,054.00 86,054.00 77,344.11 Twp Office- Salaries101-265-702.000
27.10 3,889.82 1,446.18 5,336.00 5,336.00 4,671.52 Office Social Security Ee101-265-715.000
27.08 910.82 338.18 1,249.00 1,249.00 1,092.37 Office Medicare Ee101-265-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 UNEMPLOYMENT101-265-716.000
35.48 17,904.21 9,844.79 27,749.00 27,749.00 27,036.53 Hospitalization Ins101-265-717.000
110.98 (1,177.68)11,905.68 10,728.00 10,728.00 10,125.57 Twp Off. Fringe Ben - Retireme101-265-719.000
32.33 2,285.08 1,091.92 3,377.00 3,377.00 3,680.66 Twp Off. Frng Ben - Other Empl101-265-720.000
13.38 9,528.55 1,471.45 11,000.00 11,000.00 6,889.10 Office Supplies101-265-727.000
1.78 5,893.03 106.97 6,000.00 6,000.00 2,382.40 Postage101-265-728.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 217.55 Small Equipment101-265-740.000
0.00 525.00 0.00 525.00 525.00 525.00 Twp Off- Dues & Subscriptions101-265-750.000
9.07 10,002.11 997.89 11,000.00 11,000.00 16,242.32 Professional Fees101-265-801.000
20.66 8,726.89 2,273.11 11,000.00 11,000.00 8,970.19 Telephone101-265-850.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Communication101-265-851.000
6.12 93.88 6.12 100.00 100.00 2.30 Mileage101-265-860.000
10.36 5,378.14 621.86 6,000.00 6,000.00 3,972.27 Printing & Pub101-265-900.000
15.24 6,356.76 1,143.24 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,341.71 Light & Power101-265-920.000
0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,289.37 Office Water & Sewer101-265-921.000
14.53 2,136.73 363.27 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,471.60 Heat101-265-922.000
10.48 18,800.20 2,199.80 21,000.00 21,000.00 9,077.21 Repairs & Maint101-265-930.000
0.00 800.00 0.00 800.00 800.00 0.00 Meetings/seminars101-265-956.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment101-265-971.000
0.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 Building Improvements101-265-972.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,380.00 Land Improvements101-265-973.000

(362.51)(168,088.88)(57,829.12)(225,918.00)(225,918.00)(219,711.78)Net - Dept 265-Twp Office

Dept 266-Attorney/ Counsel

7.51 69,367.80 5,632.20 75,000.00 75,000.00 63,236.92 Professional Fees101-266-801.000

(7.51)(69,367.80)(5,632.20)(75,000.00)(75,000.00)(63,236.92)Net - Dept 266-Attorney/ Counsel

Dept 276-Cemetery

23.19 19,201.66 5,798.34 25,000.00 25,000.00 24,000.36 Cemetery Wages101-276-702.000
23.19 1,190.50 359.50 1,550.00 1,550.00 1,487.41 Cemetery Social Security Ee101-276-715.000
23.16 278.93 84.07 363.00 363.00 347.87 Cemetery Medicare Ee101-276-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 89.57 Hospitalization Ins101-276-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 51.37 Cemetery  - Retirement Plan101-276-719.000
39.83 722.06 477.94 1,200.00 1,200.00 1,461.18 Supplies101-276-727.000
1.86 49.07 0.93 50.00 50.00 0.96 Postage101-276-728.000
16.07 335.74 64.26 400.00 400.00 399.25 CEMETERY GAS & OIL-VEHICLES101-276-729.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,599.00 Small Equipment101-276-740.000
22.32 349.56 100.44 450.00 450.00 383.67 Mileage101-276-860.000
19.12 727.93 172.07 900.00 900.00 1,019.74 Light & Power101-276-920.000
11.19 8,436.82 1,063.18 9,500.00 9,500.00 7,920.49 Repairs & Maint101-276-930.000
0.00 1,020.00 0.00 1,020.00 1,020.00 765.00 Equipment Rental101-276-940.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Meetings/seminars101-276-956.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 6/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment101-276-971.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 Land Improvements101-276-973.000

(179.93)(33,312.27)(8,120.73)(41,433.00)(41,433.00)(47,525.87)Net - Dept 276-Cemetery

Dept 336-Fire Department

24.33 208,488.36 67,032.64 275,521.00 275,521.00 248,151.11 Fire Dept - Salaries101-336-702.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Fire Training101-336-705.000
24.32 12,928.75 4,155.25 17,084.00 17,084.00 15,384.66 Fire Social Security Ee101-336-715.000
24.32 3,024.17 971.83 3,996.00 3,996.00 3,598.02 Fire Medicare Ee101-336-715.002
36.46 88.96 51.04 140.00 140.00 76.79 Hospitalization Ins101-336-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance101-336-718.000

108.51 (8.34)106.34 98.00 98.00 90.09 Fire Fringe Ben - Retirement101-336-719.000
41.88 9.88 7.12 17.00 17.00 (40.91)Fire Frng Ben - Other Employee 101-336-720.000
16.25 37,302.40 7,237.60 44,540.00 44,540.00 33,990.46 Fire Supplies101-336-727.000
1.07 247.33 2.67 250.00 250.00 211.38 Postage101-336-728.000
7.48 5,088.86 411.14 5,500.00 5,500.00 2,985.19 Gas & Oil-Vehicles101-336-729.000
0.16 36,940.00 60.00 37,000.00 37,000.00 43,449.50 Small Equipment101-336-740.000
19.20 1,616.00 384.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,307.00 Dues & Subscriptions101-336-750.000
140.09 (1,098.36)3,838.36 2,740.00 2,740.00 1,368.00 Professional Fees101-336-801.000
17.78 5,097.84 1,102.16 6,200.00 6,200.00 4,480.65 Telephone101-336-850.000
25.84 5,675.18 1,977.82 7,653.00 7,653.00 5,672.43 Communication101-336-851.000
10.41 627.10 72.90 700.00 700.00 0.00 Mileage101-336-860.000
0.00 400.00 0.00 400.00 400.00 777.10 Printing & Pub101-336-900.000
14.59 11,871.72 2,028.28 13,900.00 13,900.00 14,102.23 Light & Power101-336-920.000
6.48 4,208.43 291.57 4,500.00 4,500.00 3,004.76 Fire Water & Sewer101-336-921.000
7.55 10,169.51 830.49 11,000.00 11,000.00 5,039.31 Heat101-336-922.000
19.71 46,372.25 11,382.75 57,755.00 57,755.00 42,726.51 Repairs & Maint101-336-930.000
25.00 37,500.00 12,500.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 Fire Hydrant Rental101-336-940.000
0.00 11,520.00 0.00 11,520.00 11,520.00 3,971.88 Meetings/seminars101-336-956.000
2.63 2,434.15 65.85 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,691.06 Fire Prevention101-336-957.000

149.13 (754.17)2,289.17 1,535.00 1,535.00 3,649.58 Fire Dept - Insurance101-336-960.000
0.82 6,297.75 52.25 6,350.00 6,350.00 4,854.69 Fire Medical101-336-961.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Capital Outlay-Reserve101-336-970.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment101-336-971.000

(724.02)(446,047.77)(116,851.23)(562,899.00)(562,899.00)(490,541.49)Net - Dept 336-Fire Department

Dept 371-Building Inspection Department

20.87 61,235.88 16,153.12 77,389.00 77,389.00 80,352.00 Building Salary101-371-702.000
20.67 3,807.27 991.73 4,799.00 4,799.00 4,881.01 Building Social Security Ee101-371-715.000
20.65 891.06 231.94 1,123.00 1,123.00 1,141.59 Building Medicare Ee101-371-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Bldg Department Unemployment101-371-716.000
10.92 8,875.15 1,087.85 9,963.00 9,963.00 21,568.70 Hospitalization Ins101-371-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance101-371-718.000
33.95 2,513.20 1,291.80 3,805.00 3,805.00 9,865.36 Bldg. Fringe Ben - Retirement 101-371-719.000
40.86 552.35 381.65 934.00 934.00 2,358.37 Bldg. Frng Ben - Other Employe101-371-720.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 418.47 Supplies101-371-727.000
22.48 387.58 112.42 500.00 500.00 427.01 BUILDING POSTAGE101-371-728.000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 Small Equipment101-371-740.000
13.50 865.00 135.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 917.00 Dues & Subscriptions101-371-750.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Fees101-371-801.000
19.17 14,550.00 3,450.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 19,300.00 Professional Services-Plumbing 101-371-801.002
30.75 13,850.00 6,150.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 28,800.00 Professional Services-Electric101-371-801.003
30.43 16,000.00 7,000.00 23,000.00 23,000.00 28,550.00 Professional Services-Mechanic101-371-801.004



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 7/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund

100.00 (420.00)420.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Telephone101-371-850.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 0.00 Communication101-371-851.000
31.95 1,224.90 575.10 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,747.71 Mileage101-371-860.000
10.31 896.90 103.10 1,000.00 1,000.00 130.00 Printing & Pub101-371-900.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 Repairs & Maint101-371-930.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 190.00 Meetings/seminars101-371-956.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EQUIPMENT-BUIDING101-371-971.000

(406.52)(133,029.29)(38,083.71)(171,113.00)(171,113.00)(200,647.22)Net - Dept 371-Building Inspection Department

Dept 445-Drains - Public Benefit

0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 SALARIES101-445-702.000
0.00 93.00 0.00 93.00 93.00 0.00 Social Security Ee101-445-715.000
0.00 22.00 0.00 22.00 22.00 0.00 Medicare Ee101-445-715.002
0.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 0.00 Supplies101-445-727.000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 383.50 Professional Fees101-445-801.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 Mileage101-445-860.000
7.09 696.82 53.18 750.00 750.00 324.24 Light & Power101-445-920.000
0.00 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 24,071.65 Repairs & Maint101-445-930.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Drains At Large-Construction101-445-969.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Land Improvements101-445-973.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest Expense101-445-995.000

(7.09)(42,461.82)(53.18)(42,515.00)(42,515.00)(24,779.39)Net - Dept 445-Drains - Public Benefit

Dept 446-Highways, Streets, Bridges ( Not Act 51)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALARIES101-446-702.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Social Security Ee101-446-715.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Medicare Ee101-446-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Fees101-446-801.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Mileage101-446-860.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24,035.75 Repairs & Maint101-446-930.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Hwy & Streets - Construction101-446-975.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (24,035.75)Net - Dept 446-Highways, Streets, Bridges ( Not Act 51)

Dept 447-Engineering

0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 ENGINEERING-PROFESSIONAL FEES101-447-801.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PROFESSIONAL FEES - PWI101-447-801.005

0.00 (5,000.00)0.00 (5,000.00)(5,000.00)0.00 Net - Dept 447-Engineering

Dept 722-Zoning

22.66 56,628.26 16,590.74 73,219.00 73,219.00 65,695.73 Plg/zba -Salaries101-722-702.000
20.53 3,607.90 932.10 4,540.00 4,540.00 3,694.24 Zoning Social Security Ee101-722-715.000
20.51 845.00 218.00 1,063.00 1,063.00 863.94 Zoning Medicare Ee101-722-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 UNEMPLOYMENT101-722-716.000
28.96 13,835.70 5,641.30 19,477.00 19,477.00 17,191.43 Hospitalization Ins101-722-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 HSA DEDUCTIBLE101-722-717.001
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance101-722-718.000
42.21 5,089.81 3,717.19 8,807.00 8,807.00 7,698.85 Zoning Fringe Ben - Retirement 101-722-719.000
40.38 1,043.31 706.69 1,750.00 1,750.00 2,211.62 Zoning Frng Ben - Other Employ101-722-720.000
0.00 450.00 0.00 450.00 450.00 88.03 Zoning Supplies101-722-727.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 8/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund

21.19 788.11 211.89 1,000.00 1,000.00 969.94 Postage101-722-728.000
0.00 125.00 0.00 125.00 125.00 0.00 Dues & Subscriptions101-722-750.000
2.17 24,456.78 543.22 25,000.00 25,000.00 15,659.90 Professional Fees101-722-801.000
16.67 350.00 70.00 420.00 420.00 385.00 PLANNING/ZBA - TELEPHONE101-722-850.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Communication101-722-851.000
17.87 821.26 178.74 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,051.05 Mileage101-722-860.000
23.66 2,671.75 828.25 3,500.00 3,500.00 3,559.35 Printing & Pub101-722-900.000
0.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 0.00 Repairs & Maint101-722-930.000
22.20 583.47 166.53 750.00 750.00 72.91 Meetings/seminars101-722-956.000

(279.02)(111,446.35)(29,804.65)(141,251.00)(141,251.00)(119,141.99)Net - Dept 722-Zoning

Dept 748-Community Services

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Comm Prom - Salaries101-748-702.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Postage101-748-728.000
16.32 164,425.13 32,074.87 196,500.00 196,500.00 205,102.52 Purchased Services101-748-803.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Printing & Pub101-748-900.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Repairs & Maint101-748-930.000

(16.32)(164,425.13)(32,074.87)(196,500.00)(196,500.00)(205,102.52)Net - Dept 748-Community Services

Dept 851-Insurance & Bonds

40.70 32,727.76 22,460.24 55,188.00 55,188.00 51,328.01 Insurance & Bonds101-851-960.000

(40.70)(32,727.76)(22,460.24)(55,188.00)(55,188.00)(51,328.01)Net - Dept 851-Insurance & Bonds

Dept 852-Retiree Expenses

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Hospitalization Ins101-852-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance101-852-718.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Fringe Ben - Retirement Plan101-852-719.000
20.60 1,191.00 309.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 984.98 Frng Ben - Other Employee Bens101-852-720.000

(20.60)(1,191.00)(309.00)(1,500.00)(1,500.00)(984.98)Net - Dept 852-Retiree Expenses

Dept 966-Other Expenses

0.00 65,000.00 0.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 Contingency Reserve101-966-959.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Airport Expenses101-966-965.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Misc. Payment101-966-965.006
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Health Reimbursement Payments101-966-965.007
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfer Out101-966-999.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 T/O Parks/Recreation101-966-999.208
0.00 115,000.00 0.00 115,000.00 115,000.00 1,011,600.00 T/O - Capital Projects101-966-999.403
0.00 150,000.00 0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00 T/O - Local Streets101-966-999.404

0.00 (330,000.00)0.00 (330,000.00)(330,000.00)(1,111,600.00)Net - Dept 966-Other Expenses

12.47 2,474,737.13 352,647.87 2,827,385.00 2,827,385.00 2,931,353.26 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - General Fund:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 9/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund

832.46 253,106.68 (225,962.68)27,144.00 27,144.00 (493,020.62)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

20.66 2,221,630.45 578,610.55 2,800,241.00 2,800,241.00 3,424,373.88 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Fund 207 - Police Fund

Dept 000

0.00 642,985.37 14.63 643,000.00 643,000.00 637,137.46 Current Taxes-E-Unit207-000-403.000
17.79 7,809.92 1,690.08 9,500.00 9,500.00 11,880.54 Ordinance Fines207-000-655.000
5.77 12,250.00 750.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 15,800.00 ORDINANCE FINES - PARKING ENFO207-000-655.001
7.96 3,533.52 305.48 3,839.00 3,839.00 2,417.97 Interest Earned207-000-664.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.50 Increase (Decrease) in Fair Va207-000-664.900
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS207-000-673.000

(31.52)666,578.81 2,760.19 669,339.00 669,339.00 667,283.47 Net - Dept 000

Dept 301-Police/sheriff

14.09 3,436.25 563.75 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,030.00 Police Protection - Salaries207-301-702.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Police Prot - Telephone207-301-704.000
13.98 215.05 34.95 250.00 250.00 187.87 Social Security Ee207-301-715.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Federal Withholding207-301-715.001
13.63 51.82 8.18 60.00 60.00 43.94 MEDICARE EE207-301-715.002
0.00 350.00 0.00 350.00 350.00 334.76 Supplies207-301-727.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 250.00 Gas & Oil-Vehicles207-301-729.000
4.26 1,914.75 85.25 2,000.00 2,000.00 950.00 Professional Fees207-301-801.000
17.46 524,106.90 110,893.10 635,000.00 635,000.00 585,356.44 Police Protection207-301-802.000
0.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 11,880.32 School Crossing Guard207-301-802.100
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Mileage207-301-860.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Light & Power207-301-920.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Repairs & Maint207-301-930.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Police Prot-Building/equip Ren207-301-940.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contingency Reserve207-301-959.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment207-301-971.000
25.00 15,000.00 5,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Adm. Fees207-301-990.000

(88.43)(560,374.77)(116,585.23)(676,960.00)(676,960.00)(622,033.33)Net - Dept 301-Police/sheriff

1,493.57 106,204.04 (113,825.04)(7,621.00)(7,621.00)45,250.14 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

17.22 560,374.77 116,585.23 676,960.00 676,960.00 622,033.33 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.41 666,578.81 2,760.19 669,339.00 669,339.00 667,283.47 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 207 - Police Fund:

Fund 208 - Park/recreation Fund

Dept 000

0.00 477,989.12 10.88 478,000.00 478,000.00 474,946.76 Current Taxes-Parks208-000-403.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Forestry $208-000-408.000
59.28 24,269.30 35,330.70 59,600.00 59,600.00 63,218.86 Recreation Fees208-000-607.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Tot Time Enrollments208-000-608.000
36.08 1,017.04 573.96 1,591.00 1,591.00 935.60 Interest Earned208-000-664.000
26.35 15,466.38 5,533.62 21,000.00 21,000.00 18,590.00 Building Rentals208-000-667.000
0.00 900.00 0.00 900.00 900.00 5,492.00 Miscellaneous Income208-000-671.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOT TIME MISC REVENUE208-000-671.663



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 10/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - Park/recreation Fund

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS208-000-673.000
100.00 (6.00)6.00 0.00 0.00 135.00 DONATIONS/CONTRIBUTIONS208-000-675.000
121.20 (106.00)606.00 500.00 500.00 1,133.00 REC CONTRIBUTIONS/DONATIONS208-000-675.751
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 Transfer From Other Fund208-000-699.000

(342.91)519,529.84 42,061.16 561,591.00 561,591.00 664,451.22 Net - Dept 000

Dept 663-Child Care - Tot Time

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,241.49 Tot Time - Salaries208-663-702.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOT TIME-TELEPHONE208-663-704.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.66 Tot Time Social Security Ee208-663-715.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.91 Tot Time Medicare Ee208-663-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 103.56 Hospitalization Ins208-663-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance208-663-718.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 31.98 Fringe Ben - Retirement Plan208-663-719.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.31 Frng Ben - Other Employee Bens208-663-720.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Supplies208-663-727.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Postage208-663-728.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 69.00 Program Materials208-663-730.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Purchased Services208-663-803.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37.64 Telephone208-663-850.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Light & Power208-663-920.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Heat208-663-922.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment208-663-971.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (3,741.55)Net - Dept 663-Child Care - Tot Time

Dept 751-Recreation Department

26.45 28,536.86 10,262.14 38,799.00 38,799.00 43,717.36 Rec - Salaries208-751-702.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Rec Program208-751-706.000
26.11 1,777.75 628.25 2,406.00 2,406.00 2,674.61 Rec. Social Security Ee208-751-715.000
26.09 416.10 146.90 563.00 563.00 625.50 Rec. Medicare Ee208-751-715.002
37.62 2,731.65 1,647.35 4,379.00 4,379.00 5,725.54 Hospitalization Ins208-751-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance208-751-718.000
74.45 517.34 1,507.66 2,025.00 2,025.00 2,933.46 Rec. Fringe Ben - Retirement P208-751-719.000
32.49 386.18 185.82 572.00 572.00 657.16 Rec. Frng Ben - Other Employee 208-751-720.000
24.50 377.51 122.49 500.00 500.00 547.37 Supplies208-751-727.000
1.86 49.07 0.93 50.00 50.00 19.99 Postage208-751-728.000
32.62 11,049.78 5,350.22 16,400.00 16,400.00 15,772.33 Program Materials208-751-730.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 Small Equipment208-751-740.000

125.63 (102.50)502.50 400.00 400.00 342.00 Rec. Dues & Subscriptions208-751-750.000
50.17 28,965.90 29,159.10 58,125.00 58,125.00 44,528.35 Purchased Services208-751-803.000
0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 1,314.63 Purchased Services - Summer Co208-751-803.001
0.00 420.00 0.00 420.00 420.00 0.00 Telephone208-751-850.000
11.88 881.18 118.82 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,080.57 Mileage208-751-860.000
21.65 4,701.14 1,298.86 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,298.88 Printing & Pub208-751-900.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Light & Power208-751-920.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Water & Sewer208-751-921.000
0.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 69.84 Repairs & Maint208-751-930.000
(1.11)4,550.00 (50.00)4,500.00 4,500.00 2,268.18 Meetings/seminars208-751-956.000
0.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 Equipment208-751-971.000

(490.40)(110,007.96)(50,881.04)(160,889.00)(160,889.00)(128,575.77)Net - Dept 751-Recreation Department



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 11/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - Park/recreation Fund

Dept 756-Parks Department

21.41 95,971.25 26,141.75 122,113.00 122,113.00 113,305.02 Parks - Wages208-756-702.000
20.85 5,994.31 1,578.69 7,573.00 7,573.00 6,869.27 Parks Social Security Ee208-756-715.000
20.84 1,402.76 369.24 1,772.00 1,772.00 1,606.67 Parks Medicare Ee208-756-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 UNEMPLOYMENT208-756-716.000
34.39 21,797.37 11,426.63 33,224.00 33,224.00 31,953.31 Hospitalization Ins208-756-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance208-756-718.000
40.66 8,119.61 5,564.39 13,684.00 13,684.00 12,538.62 Parks Fringe Ben - Retirement 208-756-719.000
30.10 2,619.91 1,128.09 3,748.00 3,748.00 2,575.08 Parks Frng Ben - Other Employe208-756-720.000
0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 956.58 Park Supplies208-756-727.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.48 Postage208-756-728.000
10.45 4,477.38 522.62 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,469.56 Gas & Oil-Vehicles208-756-729.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 649.00 Small Equipment208-756-740.000

100.00 (173.75)173.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 PARKS DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS208-756-750.000
27.05 12,401.37 4,598.63 17,000.00 17,000.00 18,890.23 Professional Fees208-756-801.000
31.50 479.53 220.47 700.00 700.00 889.44 PARKS UNIFORMS208-756-829.000
0.00 1,300.00 0.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 1,225.00 Telephone208-756-850.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 14.55 Mileage208-756-860.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 0.00 Printing & Pub208-756-900.000
20.00 8,000.44 1,999.56 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,006.00 Parks Light & Power208-756-920.000
1.13 15,819.74 180.26 16,000.00 16,000.00 13,126.06 Parks Water & Sewer208-756-921.000
14.71 2,558.62 441.38 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,622.99 Parks Heat208-756-922.000
23.98 57,013.89 17,986.11 75,000.00 75,000.00 42,451.06 Parks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 Meetings/seminars208-756-956.000
63.32 3,301.17 5,698.83 9,000.00 9,000.00 0.00 Equipment208-756-971.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Building Improvements208-756-972.000
0.00 139,000.00 0.00 139,000.00 139,000.00 0.00 Land Improvements208-756-973.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Land Acquisition208-756-974.000

(460.38)(387,583.60)(78,030.40)(465,614.00)(465,614.00)(263,148.92)Net - Dept 756-Parks Department

Dept 966-Other Expenses

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contingency Reserve208-966-959.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 Forestry208-966-965.008
25.00 48,750.00 16,250.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 Adm. Fees208-966-990.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfer Out208-966-999.000

(25.00)(49,750.00)(16,250.00)(66,000.00)(66,000.00)(65,000.00)Net - Dept 966-Other Expenses

78.76 (27,811.72)(103,100.28)(130,912.00)(130,912.00)203,984.98 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

20.96 547,341.56 145,161.44 692,503.00 692,503.00 460,466.24 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
7.49 519,529.84 42,061.16 561,591.00 561,591.00 664,451.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 208 - Park/recreation Fund:

Fund 211 - Bike Path Fund

Dept 000

0.00 381,991.31 8.69 382,000.00 382,000.00 379,930.97 Current Taxes-Bike Paths211-000-403.000
0.00 11,309.00 0.00 11,309.00 11,309.00 11,308.98 STATE GRANTS - METRO AUTHORITY211-000-539.001
8.25 3,880.95 349.05 4,230.00 4,230.00 4,096.07 Interest Earned211-000-664.000

100.00 (500.00)500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous Income211-000-671.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 12/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 211 - Bike Path Fund

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,300.00 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS211-000-673.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 From Contingency211-000-699.600

(108.25)396,681.26 857.74 397,539.00 397,539.00 403,636.02 Net - Dept 000

Dept 755-Bike Path

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfer From Other Fund211-755-699.000
19.95 39,890.61 9,943.39 49,834.00 49,834.00 43,101.29 Bicycle Path-Salaries211-755-702.000
19.35 2,492.03 597.97 3,090.00 3,090.00 2,605.62 Social Security Ee211-755-715.000
19.34 583.15 139.85 723.00 723.00 609.38 Medicare Ee211-755-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 UNEMPLOYMENT211-755-716.000
41.13 8,907.83 6,224.17 15,132.00 15,132.00 20,388.70 Hospitalization Ins211-755-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 BIKE PATH HSA DEDUCTIBLE211-755-717.001
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Group Life Insurance211-755-718.000
34.65 3,751.15 1,988.85 5,740.00 5,740.00 5,083.24 Fringe Ben - Retirement Plan211-755-719.000
47.69 755.89 689.11 1,445.00 1,445.00 2,787.12 Frng Ben - Other Employee Bens211-755-720.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 546.28 Bike Path Supplies211-755-727.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Postage211-755-728.000
5.49 3,544.03 205.97 3,750.00 3,750.00 2,380.36 Gas & Oil-Vehicles211-755-729.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 329.95 Small Equipment211-755-740.000

100.00 (173.75)173.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 BP DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS211-755-750.000
100.00 (2,000.00)2,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,107.88 Professional Fees211-755-801.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 294.61 BIKE PATH UNIFORMS211-755-829.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 420.00 Telephone211-755-850.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Printing & Pub211-755-900.000
10.67 8,932.68 1,067.32 10,000.00 10,000.00 8,630.10 Repairs & Maint211-755-930.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contingency Reserve211-755-959.000
63.32 1,650.59 2,849.41 4,500.00 4,500.00 170,693.00 Equipment211-755-971.000
16.25 837,522.80 162,477.20 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 44,281.65 BIKE PATH- CONSTRUCTION211-755-975.000
25.00 33,750.00 11,250.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 Adm. Fees211-755-990.000

(502.85)(943,607.01)(199,606.99)(1,143,214.00)(1,143,214.00)(354,259.18)Net - Dept 755-Bike Path

Dept 852-Retiree Expenses

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Social Security Ee211-852-715.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Net - Dept 852-Retiree Expenses

26.65 (546,925.75)(198,749.25)(745,675.00)(745,675.00)49,376.84 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

17.46 943,607.01 199,606.99 1,143,214.00 1,143,214.00 354,259.18 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.22 396,681.26 857.74 397,539.00 397,539.00 403,636.02 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 211 - Bike Path Fund:

Fund 219 - STREET LIGHTING FUND

Dept 000

0.01 141,478.79 21.21 141,500.00 141,500.00 142,017.04 Street Light Assessments219-000-404.000
54.16 27.96 33.04 61.00 61.00 65.28 Interest Earned219-000-664.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfer From Other Fund219-000-699.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 13/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 219 - STREET LIGHTING FUND

(54.18)141,506.75 54.25 141,561.00 141,561.00 142,082.32 Net - Dept 000

Dept 448-Street Lighting

14.54 115,368.49 19,631.51 135,000.00 135,000.00 121,528.29 Light & Power219-448-920.000
25.00 1,875.00 625.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Adm. Fees219-448-990.000

(39.54)(117,243.49)(20,256.51)(137,500.00)(137,500.00)(124,028.29)Net - Dept 448-Street Lighting

497.47 24,263.26 (20,202.26)4,061.00 4,061.00 18,054.03 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

14.73 117,243.49 20,256.51 137,500.00 137,500.00 124,028.29 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.04 141,506.75 54.25 141,561.00 141,561.00 142,082.32 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 219 - STREET LIGHTING FUND:

Fund 241 - WEST MICHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORITY FUND

Dept 000

0.00 94,997.86 2.14 95,000.00 95,000.00 95,011.28 Current Taxes241-000-403.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest Earned241-000-664.000
0.00 94,998.65 1.35 95,000.00 95,000.00 95,011.28 AIRPORT AUTHORITY TAX COLLECTI241-000-831.000

0.00 (0.79)0.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 Net - Dept 000

100.00 (0.79)0.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 94,998.65 1.35 95,000.00 95,000.00 95,011.28 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 94,997.86 2.14 95,000.00 95,000.00 95,011.28 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 241 - WEST MICHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORITY FUND:

Fund 271 - LIBRARY FUND

Dept 000

0.00 1,192,782.81 27.19 1,192,810.00 1,192,810.00 1,184,383.51 Current Taxes271-000-403.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest Earned271-000-664.000
0.00 1,192,792.86 17.14 1,192,810.00 1,192,810.00 1,184,383.51 HERRICK LIBRARY TAX COLLECTION271-000-830.000

0.00 (10.05)10.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 Net - Dept 000

100.00 (10.05)10.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 1,192,792.86 17.14 1,192,810.00 1,192,810.00 1,184,383.51 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 1,192,782.81 27.19 1,192,810.00 1,192,810.00 1,184,383.51 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 271 - LIBRARY FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 14/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 351 - Sewer Distribution Fund

Dept 000

30.28 1,255.00 545.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 2,155.00 Sewer Inspection Fees351-000-477.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Plan Review Income351-000-626.000
0.53 4,897.74 26.26 4,924.00 4,924.00 4,162.60 Interest Earned351-000-664.000
94.87 717.78 13,282.22 14,000.00 14,000.00 16,399.26 Interest On Assessments351-000-664.003
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous Income351-000-671.000
55.78 29,629.27 37,370.73 67,000.00 67,000.00 115,492.13 Sewer-Special Assessments351-000-672.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Over Payments / Refunded351-000-687.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 From Contingency351-000-699.600
35.00 650.00 350.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,200.00 Professional Services-Plumbing 351-000-801.002
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 10,208.46 Sewer - Engineering Fees351-000-804.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Assessment Overpayments351-000-958.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,510.00 Sewer Reu Fees351-000-963.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (348.00)SANITARY LATERALS351-000-963.003
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Sewer - Sewer Lines Constructi351-000-975.000
25.00 7,500.00 2,500.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 15,000.00 Adm. Fees351-000-990.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Sewer- Transfers Out351-000-999.000

(241.46)25,349.79 48,374.21 73,724.00 73,724.00 110,638.53 Net - Dept 000

65.62 25,349.79 48,374.21 73,724.00 73,724.00 110,638.53 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

20.36 11,150.00 2,850.00 14,000.00 14,000.00 27,570.46 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
58.39 36,499.79 51,224.21 87,724.00 87,724.00 138,208.99 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 351 - Sewer Distribution Fund:

Fund 403 - Capital Projects Fund

Dept 000

(11.86)11,504.85 (1,219.85)10,285.00 10,285.00 15,637.79 Interest Earned403-000-664.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Sd - Interest Earn/investments403-000-664.006
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (12.50)Increase (Decrease) in Fair Va403-000-664.900
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous Income403-000-671.000
0.00 115,000.00 0.00 115,000.00 115,000.00 1,011,600.00 Transfer From Other Fund403-000-699.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 From Contingency403-000-699.600
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 RESERVE403-000-955.003
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment403-000-971.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Building Improvements403-000-972.000
53.13 382,021.78 432,978.22 815,000.00 815,000.00 79,975.95 Land Improvements403-000-973.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Cpf - Water Sad Loan403-000-975.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfer Out403-000-999.000

(41.27)(255,516.93)(434,198.07)(689,715.00)(689,715.00)947,249.34 Net - Dept 000

62.95 (255,516.93)(434,198.07)(689,715.00)(689,715.00)947,249.34 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

53.13 382,021.78 432,978.22 815,000.00 815,000.00 79,975.95 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.97 126,504.85 (1,219.85)125,285.00 125,285.00 1,027,225.29 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 403 - Capital Projects Fund:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 15/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 404 - Local Streets

Dept 000

0.00 479,234.11 10.89 479,245.00 479,245.00 475,733.70 Current Taxes - Local Streets404-000-403.000
37.65 554.88 335.12 890.00 890.00 565.09 Interest Earned404-000-664.000
0.00 150,000.00 0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00 Transfer From Other Fund404-000-699.000

(37.66)629,788.99 346.01 630,135.00 630,135.00 476,298.79 Net - Dept 000

Dept 901-Capital Outlay

0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 42.00 Salary404-901-702.000
0.00 124.00 0.00 124.00 124.00 2.60 Social Security Ee404-901-715.000
0.00 29.00 0.00 29.00 29.00 0.61 Medicare Ee404-901-715.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Hospitalization Ins404-901-717.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Fringe Ben - Retirement Plan404-901-719.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Frng Ben - Other Employee Bens404-901-720.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Small Equipment404-901-740.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Fees404-901-801.000
0.00 24,000.00 0.00 24,000.00 24,000.00 12,299.70 Repairs & Maint404-901-930.000
0.00 600,000.00 0.00 600,000.00 600,000.00 465,666.80 Hwy & Streets - Construction404-901-975.000
25.00 5,625.00 1,875.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 Adm. Fees404-901-990.000

(25.00)(630,778.00)(1,875.00)(632,653.00)(632,653.00)(485,511.71)Net - Dept 901-Capital Outlay

60.72 (989.01)(1,528.99)(2,518.00)(2,518.00)(9,212.92)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.30 630,778.00 1,875.00 632,653.00 632,653.00 485,511.71 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.05 629,788.99 346.01 630,135.00 630,135.00 476,298.79 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 404 - Local Streets:

Fund 581 - Park Twp Airport

Dept 000

19.12 25,880.18 6,119.82 32,000.00 32,000.00 32,314.55 Fuel Sales581-000-644.000
44.81 23.18 18.82 42.00 42.00 51.49 Interest Earned581-000-664.000
26.57 25,335.00 9,165.00 34,500.00 34,500.00 36,215.00 Building Rentals581-000-667.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,005.00 Miscellaneous Income581-000-671.000

100.00 (47.68)47.68 0.00 0.00 63,376.45 DONATIONS/CONTRIBUTIONS581-000-675.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfer From Other Fund581-000-699.000

(190.50)51,190.68 15,351.32 66,542.00 66,542.00 134,962.49 Net - Dept 000

Dept 853-Park Twp Airport

100.00 (20.00)20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous Income581-853-671.000
0.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 137.56 AIRPORT SALARY581-853-702.000
0.00 10.00 0.00 10.00 10.00 8.40 Social Security Ee581-853-715.000
0.00 5.00 0.00 5.00 5.00 1.96 Medicare Ee581-853-715.002
0.00 20.00 0.00 20.00 20.00 10.94 FRINGE BEN - RETIREMENT PLAN581-853-719.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 335.25 Supplies581-853-727.000
24.28 18,930.50 6,069.50 25,000.00 25,000.00 30,261.40 Gas & Oil581-853-729.000
24.64 10,550.00 3,450.00 14,000.00 14,000.00 13,854.00 Professional Fees581-853-801.000
0.00 4,600.00 0.00 4,600.00 4,600.00 3,486.33 Purchased Services581-853-803.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 445.12 Telephone581-853-850.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 16/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 581 - Park Twp Airport

24.99 630.06 209.94 840.00 840.00 637.04 Communication581-853-851.000
11.50 4,867.51 632.49 5,500.00 5,500.00 4,095.01 Light & Power581-853-920.000
0.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 294.55 Water & Sewer581-853-921.000
43.18 284.12 215.88 500.00 500.00 561.02 Heat581-853-922.000
35.28 19,157.94 10,442.06 29,600.00 29,600.00 1,769.88 Repairs & Maint581-853-930.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 Insurance581-853-960.000
0.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 Depreciation Expense581-853-968.000
25.00 1,875.00 625.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Adm. Fees581-853-990.000

(288.87)(68,650.13)(21,624.87)(90,275.00)(90,275.00)(58,398.46)Net - Dept 853-Park Twp Airport

26.43 (17,459.45)(6,273.55)(23,733.00)(23,733.00)76,564.03 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

23.98 68,630.13 21,644.87 90,275.00 90,275.00 58,398.46 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
23.10 51,170.68 15,371.32 66,542.00 66,542.00 134,962.49 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 581 - Park Twp Airport:

Fund 591 - Water Fund

Dept 000

27.08 43,753.00 16,247.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 81,353.00 Water Connection591-000-601.000
100.00 (562.00)562.00 0.00 0.00 106.25 Plan Review Income591-000-626.000
0.40 1,120,552.15 4,447.85 1,125,000.00 1,125,000.00 1,130,389.18 Water Bills591-000-642.000
7.36 11,072.02 879.98 11,952.00 11,952.00 4,505.90 Interest Earned591-000-664.000

104.86 (692.55)14,942.55 14,250.00 14,250.00 14,165.54 Interest On Assessments591-000-664.003
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,982.50 Increase (Decrease) in Fair Va591-000-664.900
25.00 37,500.00 12,500.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 Hydrant Rentals591-000-670.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous Income591-000-671.000
26.72 58,621.00 21,379.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 285,686.50 ASSESSMENT PRINCIPAL591-000-672.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS591-000-673.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DONATIONS/CONTRIBUTIONS591-000-675.000

100.00 (8.51)8.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overpayments591-000-688.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfer From Other Fund591-000-699.000
26.51 22,831.32 8,234.68 31,066.00 31,066.00 30,177.79 SALARIES591-000-702.000
25.87 1,428.54 498.46 1,927.00 1,927.00 1,833.11 Social Security Ee591-000-715.000
25.86 334.39 116.61 451.00 451.00 428.74 Medicare Ee591-000-715.002
34.30 5,553.73 2,899.27 8,453.00 8,453.00 8,476.08 Hospitalization Ins591-000-717.000
132.77 (1,364.23)5,527.23 4,163.00 4,163.00 3,904.52 Fringe Ben - Retirement Plan591-000-719.000
30.63 594.54 262.46 857.00 857.00 817.75 Frng Ben - Other Employee Bens591-000-720.000
40.97 1,003.58 696.42 1,700.00 1,700.00 220.30 Supplies591-000-727.000
16.93 5,980.79 1,219.21 7,200.00 7,200.00 7,225.99 Postage591-000-728.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Agent Fees591-000-731.000
14.50 7,524.00 1,276.00 8,800.00 8,800.00 2,174.70 Professional Fees591-000-801.000
5.00 950.00 50.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 400.00 Professional Services-Plumbing 591-000-801.002
18.44 3,670.00 830.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 2,316.07 Water & Sew - Eng Fees591-000-804.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ENGINEERING FEES - SPYGLASS591-000-804.001
9.40 9,966.38 1,033.62 11,000.00 11,000.00 10,324.83 MISS DIG591-000-805.000
14.87 4,682.20 817.80 5,500.00 5,500.00 4,597.22 Mich Water Supply Annual591-000-806.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,547.95 Printing & Pub591-000-900.000
13.42 4,242.65 657.35 4,900.00 4,900.00 4,583.86 Light & Power591-000-920.000
16.29 1,004.47 195.53 1,200.00 1,200.00 927.91 Heat591-000-922.000
0.00 100,165.00 0.00 100,165.00 100,165.00 164.64 Repairs & Maint591-000-930.000
64.27 13,935.20 25,064.80 39,000.00 39,000.00 39,046.80 Hydrant Rental & Maint Exp591-000-940.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 17/17Page: 07/05/2016 04:25 PM

User: CVANDERSCHAAF

DB: Park Township PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2016

% BDGT

USED

AVAILABLE

BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)

YTD BALANCE

06/30/2016

NORM (ABNORM)

2016-17

AMENDED BUDGET

2016-17

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

END BALANCE

03/31/2016

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - Water Fund

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Plan & Review Fees591-000-955.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overpayment591-000-958.000
11.86 88,141.20 11,858.80 100,000.00 100,000.00 115,414.79 Water Service591-000-963.000
4.31 593,261.30 26,738.70 620,000.00 620,000.00 628,435.04 Water Use591-000-963.001
0.00 200,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 203,784.00 Operating Fees591-000-963.002
0.00 271,950.00 0.00 271,950.00 271,950.00 0.00 Depreciation Expense591-000-968.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Amort Of Cont Capital591-000-968.001
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Construction591-000-975.000
25.00 48,750.00 16,250.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 Adm. Fees591-000-990.000
0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,378.06 Interest Expense591-000-995.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfer Out591-000-999.000

(922.60)(118,369.95)(33,260.05)(151,630.00)(151,630.00)434,008.72 Net - Dept 000

21.94 (118,369.95)(33,260.05)(151,630.00)(151,630.00)434,008.72 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

6.98 1,388,605.06 104,226.94 1,492,832.00 1,492,832.00 1,136,180.15 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
5.29 1,270,235.11 70,966.89 1,341,202.00 1,341,202.00 1,570,188.87 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - Water Fund:

66.11 (558,159.88)(1,088,715.12)(1,646,875.00)(1,646,875.00)1,382,893.07 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

16.60 8,159,173.76 1,623,814.24 9,782,988.00 9,782,988.00 8,052,192.44 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
16.60 7,601,013.88 535,099.12 8,136,113.00 8,136,113.00 9,435,085.51 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



Certificates of Deposit

Fund
Purchase 

Date

Amount of 

Investment
Total by Fund Bank Name

Interest 

Percentage
Maturity

General 08/19/15 300,000 300,000 Huntington 0.30 08/18/16

Police/E-Unit 08/28/15 200,000 Huntington 0.30 08/26/16

Police/E-Unit 03/23/16 250,000 450,000 MB Financial Bank 0.70 06/23/17

Bike Path 06/29/16 250,000 Talmer Bank & Trust 0.75 09/28/16

Bike Path 06/29/16 300,000 550,000 Talmer Bank & Trust 0.85 01/26/17

Capital Improvement 11/19/15 200,000 Flagstar 0.65 11/18/16

Capital Improvement 12/21/15 200,000 Flagstar 0.75 12/20/16

Capital Improvement 12/21/15 200,000 Flagstar 0.75 12/20/16

Capital Improvement 08/09/15 200,000 Chemical 0.40 08/09/16

Capital Improvement 03/24/16 250,000 1,050,000 Ally Bank 0.85 09/25/17

Sewer 12/01/15 250,000 250,000 Flagstar 0.65 12/01/16

Water 05/31/16 250,000 Wells Fargo 1.25 - 2.75 05/31/20

Water 01/29/16 250,000 Wells Fargo 1.35 01/29/19

Water 02/18/16 250,000 750,000 JP Morgan Chase 1.00 - 2.50 02/18/19

Savings

Fund
Amount of 

Investment
Total by Fund

Interest 

Percentage

Mulitple 1,301,529 N/A 0.55

Money Market Funds

Fund
Amount of 

Investment
Total by Fund

Interest 

Percentage

Sewer 250,625 250,625 0.40

Multiple 905,813 N/A 0.30
West MI Community Bank Insured Cash Sweep 

Account (additional FDIC coverage)

Park Township Investments

6/30/2016

Bank Name

West MI Community Bank

Bank Name

Flagstar Bank



Park Township Investments

6/30/2016
Investment Pool

Fund
Amount of 

Investment
Total by Fund Rating Entity

Interest 

Percentage

Parks 300,062           300,062 Aaa
Michigan Class Investment 

Pool
0.53

Commercial Paper

Fund
Amount of 

Investment
Total by Fund Rating Entity

Interest 

Percentage
Maturity

Bike Path 498,198           498,198 A1,P1 Toyota 0.70 8/15/2016

Capital Improvement 498,474 A1,P1 ABN Amro 0.65 9/1/2016

Capital Improvement 499,798 A2,P2 American Electric Power 0.52 7/5/2016

Capital Improvement 497,418 A1,P1 Ontario Teachers 0.83 1/17/2017

Capital Improvement 497,142 1,992,832 A1,P1 SyngentaWilmington 1.05 8/12/2016

Agency Bonds

Fund
Amount of 

Investment
Total by Fund Rating Agency

Interest 

Percentage
Maturity

Sewer 249,225 249,225 Aaa FFCB 1.35 8/19/2019

Water 250,000 250,000 Aaa FHLMC 1.00 1/29/2018

Municipal Bonds

Fund
Amount of 

Investment
Total by Fund Rating Entity

Interest 

Percentage
Maturity

General 402,956 402,956 Aa1 Ionia Public Schools 1.70 3/1/2020

Police/E-Unit 251,550 251,550 AA-
Lincoln Mich Consolidated 

Schools
2.09 5/1/2020

Capital Improvement 394,680 394,680 AA- Jackson County, MI 0.82 7/1/2017

Water 251,050 251,050 Aa1 Laingsburg School District 1.31 5/1/2018



Park Township Investments

6/30/2016

Investments by Category

CD Savings Money Market

Agency Munis Commercial Paper

Investment Pool Demand Deposits

Investments by Maturity              
(at purchase date)

0 - 6 months 6-12 months 1 Year > 1 year



                                                                                          Building and Zoning Department            

                                         
            Monthly Permit Report                 

                                         
      Permit.DateIssued  Between  6/1/2016 12:00:00 AM AND 6/30/2016 11:59:59 PM 

                                         
   Category            Value      Permit Fees     Number of Permits    
                                           

 

                                                                    596.00       8       Deck                             65,828                 
                                                                                                    3,300.00       25       Electrical                             0                 
                                                                                                    792.00       7       Fireplace                             0                 
                                                                                                    1,543.00       2       Hookup                             0                 
                                                                                                    3,520.00       44       Mechanical                             0                 
                                                                                                    2,040.00       13       Plumbing                             0                 
                                                                                                    116.00       2       Pools                             7,400                 
                                                                                                    1,526.00       6       Res, Addition                             297,476                 
                                                                                                    2,132.00       16       Res, Alteration                             355,530                 
                                                                              Res, New Home              4,606.00       5          1,302,000                 
                                                                             
  

 

                                                                            128                  $2,028,234                       Monthly Totals      $20,171            

                                                                                                             
 

                                               Year to Date Totals       $16,028,682  $116,346      647  

                                                                   
 

                                             Last Year to Date Totals            $88,502      538       $13,681,774         
                                                                                                    

 

     



 2016 Code Compliance Report

2016

New 

Complaints

Remain 

Open End 

Of Month

Resolved 

No 

violation Warning

Resolved by 

Compliance

Final 

Inspections/ 

Closed

Jan 12 19 4 4 15 0

Feb 3 10 0 1 11 2

Mar 10 15 2 2 1 4

Apr 20 21 5 0 8 2

May 41 27 11 3 21 3

June 15 27 1 1 14 3

July

Aug

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

Year to date 101 23 11 70 14

YTD 2015 107 30 7 52 7

YTD 2014 112 14 44 48 6

YTD 2013 50 6 9 28 6

YTD 2012 92 17 14 51 24

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

A
xi

s 
Ti

tl
e

Code Compliance Activities

New Complaints

Remain Open End Of Month

Resolved No violation

Warning

Resolved by Compliance

Final Inspections/ Closed



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 1/8Page
:

07/07/2016 11:31 AM
User: Daniele Dykens
DB: Park Township

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/10/2016 - 07/14/2016
JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

 BANK CODE: GEN

Fund 101 General Fund
Dept 000 

76375600.00 POSTAGE FOR VARIOUS DEPARTMENTSPURCHASE POWERPREPAID POSTAGE101-000-090.100

762931,454.87 MEMBERSHIP DUESMichigan Townships AssociationPREPAID EXPENSE101-000-095.000

7631844.04 REISSUE PAYROLL CHECK 188947BRIAN BURNSAccounts Payable101-000-202.000

76336528.06 REISSUE PAYROLL CHECK 189035 - CLOSED MACATAWA BANK ACCT.NICK GREENDYKEAccounts Payable101-000-202.000

763731,265.10 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHPAYROLL DEDUCTIONS101-000-231.000

76372144.00 VILLAS ON THE LAKE Prein & NewhofDeposits101-000-255.000

76372280.50 TIMBERLINE ACRES Prein & NewhofDeposits101-000-255.000

45.60 VILLAS ON LAKE MACATAWATHRUN LAW FIRM, P.C.Deposits101-000-255.000

763001,350.00 HOLIDAY HAVEN FULL YEAR 2016 TAXESOTTAWA COUNTY TREASURERTrailer Taxes101-000-407.000

7636695.00 BD Payment RefundMEISTE RANDAL JPer inspection101-000-479.000

5,807.17 Total For Dept 000 

Dept 101 Township Board Of Trustees
76327244.28 OFFICE SUPPLIES Fris Office OutfittersBoard Supplies101-101-727.000

762934,364.63 MEMBERSHIP DUESMichigan Townships AssociationBoard Dues & Subscriptions101-101-750.000

4,608.91 Total For Dept 101 Township Board Of Trustees

Dept 172 Manager
763731,020.47 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS101-172-717.000

7635272.39 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANMGR. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-172-720.000

7639010.71 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTMGR. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-172-720.000

7639973.92 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFEMGR. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-172-720.000

1,177.49 Total For Dept 172 Manager

Dept 201 Finance
76373464.07 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHFINANCE HOSPITALIZATION INS101-201-717.000

7635236.63 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANFINANCE-OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-201-720.000

763907.02 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTFINANCE-OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-201-720.000

7639958.48 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFEFINANCE-OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-201-720.000

763596.19 SUPPLIESFris Office OutfittersFINANCE-SUPPLIES101-201-727.000

357.00 EXPENSE REPORT - REGISTRATION FOR ONLINE COURSE CONNIE VANDERSCHAAFMeetings/seminars101-201-956.000

929.39 Total For Dept 201 Finance

Dept 215 Clerk
763731,025.34 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS101-215-717.000

76352107.07 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANCLERK FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-215-720.000

7639015.37 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTCLERK FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-215-720.000

7639935.58 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFECLERK FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-215-720.000

102.28 EXPENSE REPORT - JUNE Daniele DykensMileage101-215-860.000

73.61 EXPENSE REPORT - JUNE Daniele DykensMeetings/seminars101-215-956.000

1,359.25 Total For Dept 215 Clerk

Dept 223 Audit
9,500.00 AUDIT 3.31.16KIEKOVER, SCHOLMA & SHUMAKER, PCAuditing - Professional Fees101-223-801.000

9,500.00 Total For Dept 223 Audit

Dept 228 Information Technology
76319125.00 INTERNET CHARTER COMMUNICATIONSIT PURCHASED SERVICES101-228-803.000

7633335.00 EMAIL PROTECTION MC AFEE, INCCOMPUTER - PURCHASED SERVICES101-228-803.000

764021,282.00 CRITERION SUPPORT FOR OFFICEWorksightedIT PURCHASED SERVICES101-228-803.000

76402554.00 CLOUD STORAGE AND BACKUPWorksightedIT PURCHASED SERVICES101-228-803.000

76402183.00 CRITERION SUPPORT FOR FDWorksightedIT PURCHASED SERVICES101-228-803.000

200.00 WEB UPDATESBLUE SKY SESSIONSCOMPUTER - PURCHASED SERVICES101-228-803.000

2,379.00 Total For Dept 228 Information Technology

Dept 253 Treasurer
76373306.15 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS101-253-717.000

7635221.73 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANTREAS. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-253-720.000

763903.22 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTTREAS. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-253-720.000

7639912.02 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFETREAS. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-253-720.000

90.39 MILEAGESusan BarkelMileage101-253-860.000



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 2/8Page
:

07/07/2016 11:31 AM
User: Daniele Dykens
DB: Park Township

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/10/2016 - 07/14/2016
JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

 BANK CODE: GEN

Fund 101 General Fund
Dept 253 Treasurer

433.51 Total For Dept 253 Treasurer

Dept 257 Assessor
763732,553.62 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS101-257-717.000

76352206.23 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANAssessor Frng Ben - Other Employee Bens101-257-720.000

7639029.92 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTASSESSOR FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-257-720.000

7639995.55 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFEASSESSOR FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-257-720.000

2,885.32 Total For Dept 257 Assessor

Dept 262 Elections
7632789.96 OFFICE SUPPLIES Fris Office OutfittersSupplies101-262-727.000

7638812.59 ITEMS FOR OFFICEStaplesSupplies101-262-727.000

62.16 EXPENSE REPORT - JUNE Daniele DykensMileage101-262-860.000

211.10 PRINTING ON BALLOT ENVELOPSEPrinting Systems IncPrinting & Pub101-262-900.000

181.10 PRINTED ENVELOPES FOR ELECTIONPrinting Systems IncPrinting & Pub101-262-900.000

556.91 Total For Dept 262 Elections

Dept 264 Twp Property
76373163.72 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS101-264-717.000

7635214.82 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANTWP PROP. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-264-720.000

763902.48 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTTWP PROP. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-264-720.000

763994.93 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFETWP PROP. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-264-720.000

76351130.06 1468 OTTAWA BEACH ROAD Consumers EnergyLight & Power101-264-920.000

18.09 73 S 160TH AVEConsumers EnergyLight & Power101-264-920.000

25.11 1466 OBRSEMCO ENERGYHeat101-264-922.000

7632687.50 SUPPLIES Fire-Tech IncRepairs & Maint101-264-930.000

2,849.41 SUPPLIESWestenbroek Mower, Inc.Equipment101-264-971.000

3,296.12 Total For Dept 264 Twp Property

Dept 265 Twp Office
763731,953.15 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHTWP OFF. FRNG BEN - HOSPITALIZATION101-265-717.000

76352190.94 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANTWP OFF. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-265-720.000

7639027.70 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTTWP OFF. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-265-720.000

7639958.64 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFETWP OFF. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS5101-265-720.000

76327186.63 OFFICE SUPPLIES Fris Office OutfittersOffice Supplies101-265-727.000

7635868.95 SUPPLIES -- OFFICEFIRST CHOICE COFFEE SERVICESOffice Supplies101-265-727.000

7638816.98 ITEMS FOR OFFICEStaplesOffice Supplies101-265-727.000

63.55 FLOWERS FOR J NORTHRUPEASTERN FLORALOffice Supplies101-265-727.000

763751.00 POSTAGE FOR VARIOUS DEPARTMENTSPURCHASE POWERTWP Off- Postage101-265-728.000

76398379.68 RENTAL OF MAIL MACHINEPitney BowesTWP Off- Postage101-265-728.000

763527.55 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANPROFESSIONAL FEES101-265-801.000

76373214.00 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHPROFESSIONAL FEES101-265-801.000

33.66 EXPENSE REPORT - MILEAGE & SHREDDING COSTS CONNIE VANDERSCHAAFProfessional Fees101-265-801.000

76343222.57 CELLULAR CHARGES  MAY 02 - JUNE 01 VERIZON WIRELESSTelephone101-265-850.000

76348137.55 PHONE SERVICEAT&TTWP Off- Telephone101-265-850.000

76401371.69 DIGITAL BUNDLE AND VOICETHE ISERV COMPANY LLCTWP Off- Telephone101-265-850.000

4.97 EXPENSE REPORT - MILEAGE & SHREDDING COSTS CONNIE VANDERSCHAAFMileage101-265-860.000

318.88 ENVELOPESHOLLAND LITHO PRINTING SERVICEPrinting & Pub101-265-900.000

566.34 ENVELOPESHOLLAND LITHO PRINTING SERVICEPrinting & Pub101-265-900.000

76391713.10 52 152ND Board of Public WorksLight & Power101-265-920.000

7638733.14 52 152ND AVESEMCO ENERGYHeat101-265-922.000

7620223.64 52 152ND AVEApparelmasterTWP OFF- REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE101-265-930.000

7632652.50 SUPPLIES Fire-Tech IncRepairs & Maint101-265-930.000

76342313.50 SERVICE Tru-Green Chem LawnRepairs & Maint101-265-930.000

7634723.82 SUPPLIES ApparelmasterTWP OFF- REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE101-265-930.000

76392216.02 PARKS REPAIRSESSENBURG PLUMBING INC.Repairs & Maint101-265-930.000

22.74 52 152ND AVEApparelmasterTWP OFF- REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE101-265-930.000

6,222.89 Total For Dept 265 Twp Office



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 3/8Page
:

07/07/2016 11:31 AM
User: Daniele Dykens
DB: Park Township

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/10/2016 - 07/14/2016
JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

 BANK CODE: GEN

Fund 101 General Fund
Dept 266 Attorney/ Counsel

1,432.00 GENERAL MATTERSTHRUN LAW FIRM, P.C.Professional Fees101-266-801.000

2,128.00 PW1THRUN LAW FIRM, P.C.Professional Fees101-266-801.000

1,322.40 ZONING ORDINANCETHRUN LAW FIRM, P.C.Professional Fees101-266-801.000

30.09 MEETING ATTENDANCETHRUN LAW FIRM, P.C.Professional Fees101-266-801.000

202.31 HENDRIX/MULITZ ZBA APPEALTHRUN LAW FIRM, P.C.Professional Fees101-266-801.000

5,114.80 Total For Dept 266 Attorney/ Counsel

Dept 276 Cemetery
76363297.22 CEMETERY SUPPLIES Holland Supply Co, Inc.Supplies101-276-727.000

63.80 TORO BLADES FOR CEMETERY MOWERWestenbroek Mower, Inc.Supplies101-276-727.000

36.12 CEMETERY SUPPLIESWestenbroek Mower, Inc.Supplies101-276-727.000

7632437.64 FUEL Exxon MobilCEMETERY GAS & OIL-VEHICLES101-276-729.000

7639347.77 FUEL FOR MAINTENANCE VEHICLESExxon MobilCEMETERY GAS & OIL-VEHICLES101-276-729.000

30.24 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT Kristi RosendahlCEMETARY- MILEAGE101-276-860.000

30.24 MILEAGELee HarrisMileage101-276-860.000

7632122.73 3332 N 168TH AVE Consumers EnergyLight & Power101-276-920.000

7635166.06 2197 W LAKEWOOD BLVD Consumers EnergyLight & Power101-276-920.000

7639785.00 LAKEWOOD CEMETERYKERKSTRA PORTABLE RESTROOM SVC.Repairs & Maint101-276-930.000

84.00 OIL CHANGE ITEMSWestenbroek Mower, Inc.Repairs & Maint101-276-930.000

800.82 Total For Dept 276 Cemetery

Dept 336 Fire Department
763739.28 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHospitalization Ins101-336-717.000

763520.73 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANFire Frng Ben - Other Employee Bens101-336-720.000

763900.14 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTFIRE FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-336-720.000

763990.52 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFEFIRE FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-336-720.000

7628626.00 TURNOUT GEAR - VAN TILLemon Fresh CleanersFire Supplies101-336-727.000

76296260.74 ITEMS FOR LT. SMALLDONNye UniformFire Supplies101-336-727.000

76296243.82 ITEMS FOR LT. ANDY STOKESNye UniformFire Supplies101-336-727.000

7631149.00 WASH TOWELSWest Michigan UniformFire Supplies101-336-727.000

763221,800.00 SUPPLIES EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUCTSFire Dept - Supplies101-336-727.000

763561,362.10 SUPPLIESEMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUCTSFire Dept - Supplies101-336-727.000

76369112.86 SUPPLIES NicholsFire Supplies101-336-727.000

76369137.94 SUPPLIES NicholsFire Supplies101-336-727.000

7638356.87 SUPPLIESWestenbroek Mower, Inc.Fire Supplies101-336-727.000

29.25 TURN OUT GEAR GARCIALemon Fresh CleanersFire Supplies101-336-727.000

50.00 WASH TOWELSWest Michigan UniformFire Supplies101-336-727.000

7634415.00 LARGE GARAGE TOWELSWest Michigan UniformFire Supplies101-336-727.000.100STATION

7636827.96 SUPPLIES Menards - HollandFire Supplies101-336-727.000.100STATION

76357145.99 FUEL Exxon MobilFire D - Gas & Oil - Vehicles101-336-729.000

7639413,601.52 FIRE GEARFIRST DUE FIRE SUPPLY COMPANYSmall Equipment101-336-740.000

76329209.00 MEMBERSHIP DUES - SCOTT GAMBY IAFC MembershipDues & Subscriptions101-336-750.000

100.00 ITEMS FOR FDScott GambyDues & Subscriptions101-336-750.000

763463,349.00 SUPPORT CONTRACT RENEWAL AFFLILATED COMPUTER SERVICESProfessional Fees101-336-801.000

76402114.00 CRITERION SUPPORT FOR FDWorksightedProfessional Fees101-336-801.000

7634193.66 PHONE SERVICE TDS METROCOMTelephone101-336-850.000

76381200.76 CELLULAR COVERAGE FD VERIZON WIRELESSTelephone101-336-850.000

7634895.60 PHONE SERVICE AT&TFIRE DEPARTMENT TELEPHONE101-336-850.000.100STATION

7635080.00 INTERNET  SERVICE 6/13-7/12 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONSCommunication101-336-851.000

76389688.95 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTTele-Rad Inc.Communication101-336-851.000

7638489.98 INTERNETCHARTER COMMUNICATIONSCommunication101-336-851.000.100STATION

76351693.26 12 S 160TH AVE Consumers EnergyLight & Power101-336-920.000

7639117.88 644 S 160TH AVEBoard of Public WorksLight & Power101-336-920.000.100STATION

76391348.86 644 S 160T HAVEBoard of Public WorksLight & Power101-336-920.000.100STATION

7639166.94 644 160TH AVEBoard of Public WorksFire Water & Sewer101-336-921.000.100STATION

76391114.78 644 S 160T HAVEBoard of Public WorksFire Water & Sewer101-336-921.000.100STATION

27.12 12 S 160TH AVESEMCO ENERGYHeat101-336-922.000



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 4/8Page
:

07/07/2016 11:31 AM
User: Daniele Dykens
DB: Park Township

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/10/2016 - 07/14/2016
JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

 BANK CODE: GEN

Fund 101 General Fund
Dept 336 Fire Department

7633988.56 644 S 160TH AVE SEMCO ENERGYHeat101-336-922.000.100STATION

76277660.00 ADD OUTLETS FOR TREADMILLSHOEKSTRA ELECTRICAL SERVICESRepairs & Maint101-336-930.000

76354103.43 REPAIR AND SUPPLIES DOUGLASS SAFETY SYSTEMS LLC.Repairs & Maint101-336-930.000

76377465.00 SERVICES REPUBLIC SERVICESRepairs & Maint101-336-930.000

76382177.10 REPAIR SPRINKLER VALVESWest Ottawa SprinklingRepairs & Maint101-336-930.000

142.50 JUNE CLEANING-STATION 2MARY GAMBYRepairs & Maint101-336-930.000

76323170.57 SPRING SPRINKLING START UP - CONTRACTED Evergreen Sprinkling Inc.REPAIRS & MAINT-STATION 1101-336-930.000.100STATION

763602,070.00 REPLACE 3 PARKING LOT LIGHTS HOEKSTRA ELECTRICAL SERVICESREPAIRS & MAINT-STATION 1101-336-930.000.100STATION

85.50 JUNE CLEANING-STATION 1MARY GAMBYREPAIRS & MAINT-STATION 1101-336-930.000.100STATION

325.00 TESTING FIRE LINE AND SPRINKLINGOTTAGON PLUMBING & TESTING INC.REPAIRS & MAINT-STATION 1101-336-930.000.100STATION

7637165.85 SUPPLIES PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION, INCFire Prevention101-336-957.000

18.00 ITEMS FOR FDScott GambyFire Prevention101-336-957.000

28,591.02 Total For Dept 336 Fire Department

Dept 371 Building Inspection Department
76373663.30 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS101-371-717.000

7635250.12 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANBLDG. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-371-720.000

763906.97 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTBLDG. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-371-720.000

76399(132.13)LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFEBLDG. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-371-720.000

2,900.00 INSPECTIONS FOR JUNE 2016ELECTRICAL INSPECTION SERVICE LLCElectrical Inspector - Salary101-371-801.003

3,488.26 Total For Dept 371 Building Inspection Department

Dept 445 Drains - Public Benefit
7639126.59 1331 EDGEWOODBoard of Public WorksLight & Power101-445-920.000

26.59 Total For Dept 445 Drains - Public Benefit

Dept 722 Zoning
763731,122.52 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS101-722-717.000

76352138.01 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANZONING FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-722-720.000

7639011.78 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTZONING FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-722-720.000

7639928.94 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFEZONING FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-722-720.000

35.00 MILEAGE AND CELL ALLOWANCEED DEVRIESPLANNING/ZBA - TELEPHONE101-722-850.000

38.88 MILEAGE AND CELL ALLOWANCEED DEVRIESMileage101-722-860.000

751.20 PUBLICATIONS FOR VARIOUS DEPARTMENTSHolland SentinelPrinting & Pub101-722-900.000

2,126.33 Total For Dept 722 Zoning

Dept 852 Retiree Expenses
7637431.00 RETIREE COVERAGE PRIORITY HEALTHFrng Ben - Other Employee Bens101-852-720.000

7637431.00 RETIREE COVERAGEPRIORITY HEALTHFrng Ben - Other Employee Bens101-852-720.000

7637412.00 RETIREE BENEFITS PRIORITY HEALTHFrng Ben - Other Employee Bens101-852-720.000

7639024.75 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTFRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS101-852-720.000

98.75 Total For Dept 852 Retiree Expenses

79,402.53 Total For Fund 101 General Fund

Fund 207 Police Fund
Dept 301 Police/sheriff

76395107.92 ITEMS FOR PARKING PATROLGraphix Signs/EmbroiderySupplies207-301-727.000

7636285.25 PREPLACEMENT PHYSICALSHolland Medi CenterProfessional Fees207-301-801.000

85.25 PRE EMPLOYMENT PHYSICAL FOR J BERENDSHolland Medi CenterProfessional Fees207-301-801.000

41,610.45 COPS PROGRAM FOR MAY 2016OTTAWA COUNTY TREASURERPolice Protection207-301-802.000

41,888.87 Total For Dept 301 Police/sheriff

41,888.87 Total For Fund 207 Police Fund

Fund 208 Park/recreation Fund
Dept 000 

76317100.00 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ON COMMUNITY BUILDING AND OTHER BOB BREUKERSECURITY DEPOSITS208-000-255.000

76328100.00 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ON COMMUNITY BUILDING GUADALUPE RIOS SECURITY DEPOSITS208-000-255.000

76335200.00 MAATMAN CENTER REFUND OF DEPOSIT MINDY LUGERSSECURITY DEPOSITS208-000-255.000

76337200.00 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ON MC PEGGY KREVDA SECURITY DEPOSITS208-000-255.000

76340200.00 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ON MC STEVE ROSS SECURITY DEPOSITS208-000-255.000



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 5/8Page
:

07/07/2016 11:31 AM
User: Daniele Dykens
DB: Park Township

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/10/2016 - 07/14/2016
JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

 BANK CODE: GEN

Fund 208 Park/recreation Fund
Dept 000 

76353100.00 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ON COMMUNITY BLDGDONNA VESPER SECURITY DEPOSITS208-000-255.000

76365200.00 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ON MAATMAN CENTERKIM KOTOWSKISECURITY DEPOSITS208-000-255.000

76367100.00 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ON COMMUNITY BLDG MELISSA RIOSSECURITY DEPOSITS208-000-255.000

7631765.00 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ON COMMUNITY BUILDING AND OTHER BOB BREUKERBuilding Rentals208-000-667.000

7635390.00 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ON COMMUNITY BLDGDONNA VESPER Building Rentals208-000-667.000

1,355.00 Total For Dept 000 

Dept 751 Recreation Department
76373307.35 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS208-751-717.000

7635230.39 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANRec. Frng Ben - Other Employee Bens208-751-720.000

763904.80 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTREC. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS208-751-720.000

7639910.50 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFEREC. FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS208-751-720.000

102.50 EXPENSE REPORT - JUNE Daniele DykensSupplies208-751-727.000

76320660.00 TSHIRTS Chromatic GraphicsProgram Materials208-751-730.000.SOCCER REC

76294347.50 MEMBERSHIP - PREMIER AGENCY MEMBERSHIPMPARKSRec. Dues & Subscriptions208-751-750.000

306.00 SUMMER KIDS CLUB CLASSESCROSSFIT SOARING LEDGEPurchased Services208-751-803.000

1,026.00 REC - WATER POLO JOSEPH DUMMER Purchased Services208-751-803.000

930.60 WOSO CAMP - BOB MYERSWest Ottawa Public SchoolPurchased Services208-751-803.000

488.00 SUMMER 2016 TUESDAY AND THURSDAY CLASSESENCORE TWIRLINGPurchased Services208-751-803.000.Baton Recr

4,213.64 Total For Dept 751 Recreation Department

Dept 756 Parks Department
763732,320.94 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS208-756-717.000

76352208.58 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANPARKS FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS208-756-720.000

7639035.17 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTPARKS FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS208-756-720.000

7639972.62 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFEPARKS FRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS208-756-720.000

76324368.12 FUEL Exxon MobilGAS & OIL-VEHICLES208-756-729.000

76393516.04 FUEL FOR MAINTENANCE VEHICLESExxon MobilGAS & OIL-VEHICLES208-756-729.000

76294173.75 MEMBERSHIP - PREMIER AGENCY MEMBERSHIPMPARKSPARKS DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS208-756-750.000

7636285.25 PREPLACEMENT PHYSICALSHolland Medi CenterProfessional Fees208-756-801.000

7632181.82 16576 RANSOM ST Consumers EnergyParks Light & Power208-756-920.000

76351117.32 1700 PERRY ST Consumers EnergyParks Light & Power208-756-920.000

7635150.70 14595 JAMES ST Consumers EnergyParks Light & Power208-756-920.000

7635123.14 1774 PERRY ST Consumers EnergyParks Light & Power208-756-920.000

76351147.47 669 HARRINGTONConsumers EnergyParks Light & Power208-756-920.000

76391836.72 669 HARRINGTONBoard of Public WorksParks Light & Power208-756-920.000

76391104.28 1286 OBRBoard of Public WorksParks Light & Power208-756-920.000

7639133.03 1286 OBRBoard of Public WorksParks Light & Power208-756-920.000

7639113.32 1282 OBRBoard of Public WorksParks Light & Power208-756-920.000

7639156.02 1284 OBRBoard of Public WorksParks Light & Power208-756-920.000

7636197.06 WATER Holland Charter TownshipParks Water & Sewer208-756-921.000

7633936.52 669 HARRINGTON AVE COMM BLDG SEMCO ENERGYParks Heat208-756-922.000

17.75 1286 OBRSEMCO ENERGYParks Heat208-756-922.000

7620245.60 1286 OBRApparelmasterParks Fund - Repair & Maint208-756-930.000

7627052.55 DISCHARGE CHUTEEDING TRACTOR SALES, INC.Parks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

76313527.92 TRIMMERWestenbroek Mower, Inc.Parks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

76326105.00 SUPPLIES Fire-Tech IncParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

7633185.00 HC PORTABLE RR RENTAL KERKSTRA PORTABLE RESTROOM SVC.Parks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

7633185.00 STANDARD PORTABLE RR RENTAL KERKSTRA PORTABLE RESTROOM SVC.Parks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

7633185.00 HC PORTABLE RR RENTAL KERKSTRA PORTABLE RESTROOM SVC.Parks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

7633185.00 HC PORTABLE RR RENTAL KERKSTRA PORTABLE RESTROOM SVC.Parks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

7633219.65 SUPPLIES - CONCRETE LOWE'SParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

76332(38.86)SUPPLIESLOWE'SParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

763341.44 SUPPLIESMenards - HollandParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

7633821.19 SUPPLIESReed's Tire ServiceParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

763423,929.03 SERVICE Tru-Green Chem LawnParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

7634724.00 SUPPLIESApparelmasterParks Fund - Repair & Maint208-756-930.000



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 6/8Page
:

07/07/2016 11:31 AM
User: Daniele Dykens
DB: Park Township

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/10/2016 - 07/14/2016
JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

 BANK CODE: GEN

Fund 208 Park/recreation Fund
Dept 756 Parks Department

7634745.60 SUPPLIESApparelmasterParks Fund - Repair & Maint208-756-930.000

7634938.08 SUPPLIES CARQUEST OF HOLLANDParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

7635589.60 2 STROKE OIL FOR MACHINESDUANE FABERParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

7637623.44 SUPPLIES AND REPAIRS Reed's Tire ServiceParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

7637872.00 SERVICE CALL SLUIS ELECTRIC, INCParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

76382407.16 SPRING START UP - KEPPLEWest Ottawa SprinklingParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

763921,581.86 PARKS REPAIRSESSENBURG PLUMBING INC.Parks Fund - Repair & Maint208-756-930.000

24.00 669 HARRINGTONApparelmasterParks Fund - Repair & Maint208-756-930.000

45.60 1286 OBRApparelmasterParks Fund - Repair & Maint208-756-930.000

31.86 SUPPLIESEtna Supply CompanyParks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

1,000.00 CLEAN FALLEN TREE IN WAUKAZOO DRJ.T.'s Tree Service Inc.Parks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

65.00 OC FAIR COMM BLDGOTTAGON PLUMBING & TESTING INC.Parks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

34.95 EDGER BLADEWestenbroek Mower, Inc.Parks Repairs & Maint208-756-930.000

5,698.83 SUPPLIESWestenbroek Mower, Inc.Equipment208-756-971.000

19,581.12 Total For Dept 756 Parks Department

25,149.76 Total For Fund 208 Park/recreation Fund

Fund 211 Bike Path Fund
Dept 755 Bike Path

763731,206.90 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS211-755-717.000

76352117.02 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANFrng Ben - Other Employee Bens211-755-720.000

7639013.00 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTFRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS211-755-720.000

7639929.06 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFEFRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS211-755-720.000

7632493.72 FUEL Exxon MobilGas & Oil-Vehicles211-755-729.000

76393147.52 FUEL FOR MAINTENANCE VEHICLESExxon MobilGas & Oil-Vehicles211-755-729.000

76294173.75 MEMBERSHIP - PREMIER AGENCY MEMBERSHIPMPARKSBP DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS211-755-750.000

763802,000.00 APPRAISAL VAN NOORD & ASSOCIATESProfessional Fees211-755-801.000

76396129.35 REPAIR J DEEREJOHN HOEKSEMA, INCRepairs & Maint211-755-930.000

72.87 ITEMS FOR BIKE PATHSSHERWIN - WILLIAMSRepairs & Maint211-755-930.000

2,849.41 SUPPLIESWestenbroek Mower, Inc.Equipment211-755-971.000

763726,408.00 GREENLY ST NON-MOTORIZED PATHWAYPrein & NewhofBIKE PATH- CONSTRUCTION211-755-975.000

13,240.60 Total For Dept 755 Bike Path

13,240.60 Total For Fund 211 Bike Path Fund

Fund 219 STREET LIGHTING FUND
Dept 448 Street Lighting

763912,279.33 STREET LIGHTSBoard of Public WorksLight & Power219-448-920.000

76391759.24 STREET LIGHTSBoard of Public WorksLight & Power219-448-920.000

7639147.58 STREET LIGHTS - SILVER RIDGEBoard of Public WorksLight & Power219-448-920.000

3,086.15 Total For Dept 448 Street Lighting

3,086.15 Total For Fund 219 STREET LIGHTING FUND

Fund 403 Capital Projects Fund
Dept 000 

7633062.72 SUPPLIESKendall Electric Inc.Land Improvements403-000-973.000

7636433,886.06 OTTAWA BEACH ROAD Kendall Electric Inc.Land Improvements403-000-973.000

7636471,582.96 SUPPLIES Kendall Electric Inc.Land Improvements403-000-973.000

763647,373.28 OTTAWA BEACH ROAD Kendall Electric Inc.Land Improvements403-000-973.000

262,965.15 OBR GATEWAYAL'S EXCAVATING, INC.Land Improvements403-000-973.000

450.00 REIMBURSE HELDER FOR PAYMENT TO TREE SERVICEVIC HELDERLand Improvements403-000-973.000

376,320.17 Total For Dept 000 

376,320.17 Total For Fund 403 Capital Projects Fund

Fund 404 Local Streets
Dept 901 Capital Outlay

7,873.80 OBR FOR ADDITIONAL 2'-3' SHOULDER WIDTHOttawa County Road CommissionRepairs & Maint404-901-930.000

7,873.80 Total For Dept 901 Capital Outlay



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 7/8Page
:

07/07/2016 11:31 AM
User: Daniele Dykens
DB: Park Township

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/10/2016 - 07/14/2016
JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

 BANK CODE: GEN

Fund 404 Local Streets

7,873.80 Total For Fund 404 Local Streets

Fund 581 Park Twp Airport
Dept 853 Park Twp Airport

763455,087.88 FIEL FOR AIRPORTPETERSEN OIL & PROPANEGas & Oil581-853-729.000

76379981.62 FUEL TRI-CITY OIL COMPANY, INCGas & Oil581-853-729.000

7639355.69 FUEL FOR MAINTENANCE VEHICLESExxon MobilGas & Oil581-853-729.000

763861,150.00 AIRPORT MANAGER'S AGREEMENT - JULY SERVICESOTTAWA AVIATION INC.Professional Fees581-853-801.000

7635069.98 INTERNET CHARTER COMMUNICATIONSCommunication581-853-851.000

7639131.91 1269 OBR 3WBoard of Public WorksLight & Power581-853-920.000

7639169.66 1269 OBR 2WBoard of Public WorksLight & Power581-853-920.000

7639129.51 1269 OBR Board of Public WorksLight & Power581-853-920.000

7639175.37 OBR 1W1Board of Public WorksLight & Power581-853-920.000

7639126.72 1269 OBR 4EBoard of Public WorksLight & Power581-853-920.000

7639162.76 1269 OBR COMMUNITY HANGARBoard of Public WorksLight & Power581-853-920.000

7639193.24 1285 OBRBoard of Public WorksLight & Power581-853-920.000

7638722.36 1269 OBR STE 1SEMCO ENERGYHeat581-853-922.000

7632420.99 FUEL Exxon MobilRepairs & Maint581-853-930.000

76332(10.65)SUPPLIESLOWE'SRepairs & Maint581-853-930.000

390.97 FUEL, NOZZLE AND CONNECTOR DOUG FORMSMARepairs & Maint581-853-930.000

39.99 NEW HOSE FOR FUEL TANKOTTAWA AVIATION INC.Repairs & Maint581-853-930.000

8,198.00 Total For Dept 853 Park Twp Airport

8,198.00 Total For Fund 581 Park Twp Airport

Fund 591 Water Fund
Dept 000 

763258.59 UB refund for account: 55287504FEAD, THOMASWater591-000-688.000

7637010.64 UB refund for account: 54261334POKORNEY, JUDITH ANNWater591-000-688.000

76373584.27 HEALTH INSURANCE FOR STAFFPRIORITY HEALTHHOSPITALIZATION INS591-000-717.000

7635243.59 DENTAL DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGANFrng Ben - Other Employee Bens591-000-720.000

763906.07 VISION INSURANCE FOR STAFFVISION SERVICE PLAN-CONNECTICUTFRNG BEN - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS591-000-720.000

7639921.67 LTD, LIFE AND ADD FOR JULYRELIANCE STANDARD LIFEUTILITIES - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENS591-000-720.000

76372638.00 WATER SYSTEM RELIABILITY STUDY Prein & NewhofProfessional Fees591-000-801.000

76372308.00 HYDRANT AND SYSTEM MAP UPDATE Prein & NewhofWater & Sew - Eng Fees591-000-804.000

817.80 SUMMER NEWSLETTERHOLLAND LITHO PRINTING SERVICEMich Water Supply Annual591-000-806.000

1,791.98 WTER QUALITY REPORTHOLLAND LITHO PRINTING SERVICEMich Water Supply Annual591-000-806.000

338.33 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT IMPROVEMENT 3 PART FORMHOLLAND LITHO PRINTING SERVICEPrinting & Pub591-000-900.000

76351117.59 794 SPY GLASS Consumers EnergyLight & Power591-000-920.000

7635145.35 11 S 160TH AVE Consumers EnergyLight & Power591-000-920.000

7635173.46 5 S 168TH AVE Consumers EnergyLight & Power591-000-920.000

76351102.11 168 LAKESHORE DR S Consumers EnergyLight & Power591-000-920.000

7635122.59 3 S 168TH AVE Consumers EnergyLight & Power591-000-920.000

7638716.39 11 S 160TH AVESEMCO ENERGYHeat591-000-922.000

7640015.06 150 LAKESHORESEMCO ENERGYHeat591-000-922.000

7640015.06 5 S 168TH AVESEMCO ENERGYHeat591-000-922.000

763911,446.40 HYDRANT RENTALBoard of Public WorksHydrant Rental & Maint Exp591-000-940.000

22,172.00 HYDRANT RENT Holland Charter TownshipHydrant Rental & Maint Exp591-000-940.000

76332169.77 SUPPLIESLOWE'SWater Service591-000-963.000

76382121.00 REPAIR BROKEN HEAD 2006 DRIFTWOOD LNWest Ottawa SprinklingWater Service591-000-963.000

7638533.45 TOPSOIL FOR UTILITIESChips Groundcover, LLCWater Service591-000-963.000

7638541.31 TOPSOIL FOR UTILITIESChips Groundcover, LLCWater Service591-000-963.000

26,738.70 WATER USE FOR THE MONTH OF APRIL 2016 OTTAWA COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITIESWater Use591-000-963.001

55,699.18 Total For Dept 000 

55,699.18 Total For Fund 591 Water Fund



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR PARK TOWNSHIP 8/8Page
:

07/07/2016 11:31 AM
User: Daniele Dykens
DB: Park Township

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/10/2016 - 07/14/2016
JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

 BANK CODE: GEN

79,402.53 Fund 101 General Fund
41,888.87 Fund 207 Police Fund
25,149.76 Fund 208 Park/recreation Fund
13,240.60 Fund 211 Bike Path Fund
3,086.15 Fund 219 STREET LIGHTING FUND

376,320.17 Fund 403 Capital Projects Fund
7,873.80 Fund 404 Local Streets
8,198.00 Fund 581 Park Twp Airport

55,699.18 Fund 591 Water Fund

Fund Totals:

610,859.06 



PARK TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT

Activity for June 2016

Monthly Summary for June 2016

Fire 6 Burning Permits Issued: 76

Fire Alarm 6 Calls For: ST#1 5

Hazmat 1 Calls For: ST#2 24

Medical 2 Total Number of Calls: 29

Rescue 6 Total Dollar Loss From Fire: $185,000

Electric 2

Assist 3

Other 3

MONTH DATE STATION INCIDENT # INCIDENT DESCRIPTION INCIDENT TYPE LOCATION CAUSE $ LOSS FROM FIRE

JUNE 6/1/2016 ST#1 109 Assist AMR Medical 1899 W. 32nd St. Medical Assist AMR $0

JUNE 6/3/2016 ST#1 110 Gas Leak Hazmat 1551 Jerome St. Investigate, Turn over to Semco $0

JUNE 6/3/2016 ST#2 111 Lines Down Electric Ottawa Beach Road & 160th Assist OCSD $0

JUNE 6/5/2016 ST#2 112 Dispatch Error Other Grand Haven State Park Dispatch Issued to Park in Error $0

JUNE 6/7/2016 ST#2 113 Assist HTFD Assist Riley & N. Wellness Dr. Assist HTFD $0

JUNE 6/7/2016 ST#2 114 PI Accident Rescue Riley & N. 146th Ave. Investigated & Turned Over To OCS $0

JUNE 6/7/2016 ST#2 115 Water Rescue Rescue 1480 Waukazoo Dr. Cancelled Enroute $0

JUNE 6/7/2016 ST#1 115 Water Rescue Rescue 1480 Waukazoo Dr. Cancelled Enroute $0

JUNE 6/8/2016 ST#2 116 False Alarm Fire Alarm 4270 148th Ave. Investigated & Cleared $0

JUNE 6/9/2016 ST#2 117 Service Call Other 422 Highbanks Ct. Residence Locked $0

JUNE 6/9/2016 ST#2 118 Vehicle Fire Fire 2980 Pine Edge Ct. Extinguished, Overhauled, Cleared $10,000

JUNE 6/10/2016 ST#2 119 False Alarm Fire Alarm 3861 N. Lakeshore Dr. Investigated & Cleared $0

JUNE 6/13/2016 ST#2 120 False Alarm Fire Alarm 2955 N. Lakeshore Dr. Investigated & Cleared $0

JUNE 6/14/2016 ST#2 121 False Alarm Fire Alarm 1370 Linwood Ave. Investigated & Cleared $0

JUNE 6/15/2016 ST#2 122 Assist HTFD Assist 269 Douglas Ave. Assist HTFD $0

JUNE 6/15/2016 ST#2 123 Dispatch Error Other 420 Riley St. Zeeland Dispatch Issued to Park in Error $0

JUNE 6/16/2016 ST#2 124 Vehicle Fire Fire 313 Greenwood Ave. Extinguished, Investigated, Advised $0

JUNE 6/16/2016 ST#2 125 False Alarm Fire Alarm 300 N. 168th Ave. Investigated & Cleared $0

JUNE 6/17/2016 ST#2 126 Wildfire Fire 16300 Riley St. Extinguished $0

JUNE 6/18/2016 ST#2 127 Surge Protector Short Electric 14542 Sylvan Extinguished $0

JUNE 6/18/2016 ST#2 128 PI Accident Assist Stoney Lake & James St. Assist  AMR & E-Unit $0

JUNE 6/19/2016 ST#2 129 PI Accident Rescue 3790 N. Lakeshore Dr. Patient Care $0

JUNE 6/19/2016 ST#2 130 Water Rescue Rescue 2415 Ottawa Beach Rd. Search & Assist OCS & VSCG $0

JUNE 6/19/2016 ST#1 130 Water Rescue Rescue 2415 Ottawa Beach Rd. Search & Assist OCS & VSCG $0

JUNE 6/20/2016 ST#1 131 Medical Medical 2223 South Shore Dr. Medical $0

Fire
21%

Fire Alarm
21%

Hazmat
3%

Medical
7%

Rescue
21%

Electric
7%

Assist
10%

Other
10%

Incident Type



JUNE 6/21/2016 ST#2 132 Wildfire Fire 4755 144th Ave. Extinguished $0

JUNE 6/21/2016 ST#2 133 Cooking Fire Fire 443 Oak St. Extinguished Prior to Arrival $0

JUNE 6/22/2016 ST#2 134 False Alarm Fire Alarm 895 Ottawa Beach Rd. Reset Water Flow Alarm $0

JUNE 6/24/2016 ST#2 135 Structure Fire Fire 895 Ottawa Beach Rd. Extinguished, Overhauled, Cleared $175,000

JUNE 6/24/2016 ST#1 135 Structure Fire Fire 895 Ottawa Beach Rd. Extinguished, Overhauled, Cleared $0

JUNE 6/24/2016 ST#2 136 Service Call Other 3611 Butternut Dr. Replaced Smoke Detectors $0

JUNE 6/27/2016 ST#2 137 Water Rescue Rescue James St. & Lakeshore Dr. Overturned Sailboat, Investigated $0

JUNE 6/27/2016 ST#1 137 Water Rescue Rescue James St. & Lakeshore Dr. Overturned Sailboat, Investigated $0

JUNE 6/27/2016 ST#1 138 Assist HCFD Assist 800 W. 25th St. Assist HCFD $0

JUNE 6/28/2016 ST#2 139 Water Rescue Rescue 633 Lakeside Rd. Investigate $0

JUNE 6/28/2016 ST#1 139 Water Rescue Rescue 633 Lakeside Rd. Investigate $0

JUNE 6/29/2016 ST#2 140 Aircraft Crash Rescue 1260 Ottawa Beach Road Medical Care $0



PARK TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT

2016 ANNUAL ACTIVITY SUMMARY

Total Burning Permits Issued: 413

Total Number of Calls: #VALUE!

Total Dollar Loss From Fire: $316,600

Total Calls Per Month

ST#1 ST#2

JAN #VALUE! #VALUE! Fire #VALUE!

FEB #VALUE! #VALUE! Fire Alarm #VALUE!

MAR #VALUE! #VALUE! Hazmat #VALUE!

APR #VALUE! #VALUE! Medical #VALUE!

MAY #VALUE! #VALUE! Rescue #VALUE!

JUN #VALUE! #VALUE! Electric #VALUE!

JUL #VALUE! #VALUE! Assist #VALUE!

AUG #VALUE! #VALUE! Other #VALUE!

SEP #VALUE! #VALUE!

OCT #VALUE! #VALUE!

NOV #VALUE! #VALUE!

DEC #VALUE! #VALUE!
JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Station 2 20 19 9 6 26 28 0 0 0 0 0 0

Station 1 12 3 5 5 6 9 0 0 0 0 0 0

12

3
5 5 6

9

0 0 0 0 0 0

20

19

9
6

26

28

0 0 0 0 0 00

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

To
ta

l C
al

ls

Park Township Fire Department Calls Per Month 2016 Fire
11%

Fire Alarm
24%

Hazmat
7%

Medical
16%

Rescue
16%

Assist
5%

Other
17%

Incident Type



Date: July 14, 2016 

 

To:  Park Township Board 

 

RE:  Agenda Item 8 and 9.a.  Public Hearing on PW1 Condition Amendment Request 

 

This is a follow up to the request made in May of 2015 and presented again in April of 

2016.  The request from PW1 is to amend condition PUD Section 3. N to include a new 

layout for the planned docks.  If you recall the initial PUD approved in 2011 provided for 

up to 80 boat slips but restricted the areas in which those slips could be constructed.  

 

Subsequent to that initial approval both the Michigan Department of Environmental 

Quality and the US Army Corps of Engineers, both with the ultimate authority over 

structures constructed within Lake Macatawa, approved a configuration different from 

that included within the initial PUD.  

 

In April of this year PW1 approached you with a request to amend Condition 3.N., that 

section that governs the slip layout.  At that time you instructed PW1 to resolve the 

outstanding legal issues with the neighboring properties and also indicated that the now 

in place PUD moratorium would apply to the PW1 request.  

 

Subsequent to that April, 2016, meeting PW1 has indeed resolved the outstanding 

litigation and we have documentation from those adjoining properties stating as such.  

 

At the last board meeting you approved scheduling this public hearing to consider the 

request for the condition amendment, thereby, perhaps, deciding that the moratorium did 

not apply to this particular item.  This is not a PUD amendment nor a new PUD 

application, but only a “condition amendment.”  A public hearing was conducted back in 

2015 but legal counsel has recommended another hearing due to the length of time that 

has passed from that initial hearing.  

 

Attached for your review is the resubmitted application for the condition amendment, 

which includes several drawings showing the new proposed slip area.   

 

The agenda item has two parts, the first the public hearing and the second the 

consideration of the request. We anticipate that representatives from PW1 will be in 

attendance to answer any questions you may have.  

 

Manager’s Recommendation:  conduct the public hearing and approve the amendment to 

Section 3 (N) regarding the new boat slip area.   



June 9, 2016Submitted by | Point West 1, LLC | Nederveld Inc.

P O I N T   W E S T 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AMENDMENT



 

217 Grandville Avenue, SW Suite 302 • Grand Rapids, MI 49503 • P. 616.575.5190 • F. 616.575.6644 

Ann Arbor • Chicago• Columbus • Grand Rapids • Holland • Indianapolis • St. Louis 

        w w w . n e d e r v e l d . c o m 

 
June 9, 2016 
 
 
Mr. Ed DeVries 
Zoning & Code Compliance 
Park Township 
52 – 152nd Avenue 
Holland, Michigan 49424 
 
 
RE: Point West I Conditions of Approval Modification 
 
 
Dear Mr. DeVries: 
 
We respectfully request the Township Board place on the agenda for the July 14, 2016 Board meeting the 
continuation of the postponement of the above referenced project.   
 
At the May 14, 2015 Township Board Meeting, the request of our client Point West I to modify a condition 
to the approved Point West PUD was postponed pending resolution of all issues with the neighbors to north 
and south as well as civil litigation and MDEQ contested case.  
 
It is our view that the Point West I modification request to the report condition does not fall within the 
currently imposed moratorium.   
 
Point West 1 Report Conditions as adopted October 31, 2012: 

3. Recommend Conditions of Approval  
C)  No revision or change of these conditions shall be made except by Park Township Board action after a 
public hearing, with notice of such hearing to be given as then required by law for Township Board hearings 
with respect to proposed planned unit development projects.  A revision or change in these conditions shall 
not be considered an amendment to the planned unit development approval granted by the Township Board 
for this Project.    

 
As indicated in Item C Section 3 of the report shown above, a revision or change to the conditions shall not 
be considered an amendment to the PUD.   
 
We appreciate the consideration to be placed on the July 14, 2016 Board meeting for continuation of the 
postponement.  Should you have any questions or need any additional information, please do not hesitate 
to contact me at (616) 575-5190. 
 
 
Sincerely,     
      
      
 
 
Greg Raad    
Chief Executive Officer 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 
NARRATIVE ...............................................................................................................Pages 4 

 
ORIGINAL PREFERRED BOAT SLIP AREA PLAN ............................................................... Page 6 
 
ELDEAN SHIPYARD SETTLEMENT LETTER ..................................................................... Page 7 
 
REVISED PROPOSED BOAT SLIP PLAN .......................................................................... Page 8 
 
POINT WEST I FINAL REPORT ................................................................................ Pages 9-31 
 
APPLICATION............................................................................................................ Page 32 
 

 

 



Narrative 
 
Original PUD Approval 
The Point West 1 (PW1) Planned Unit Development (PUD) was approved by Park Township on November 17, 
2011 as a cottage-style neighborhood that drew architectural inspiration from the existing character of the 
surrounding cottages and 19th century history of the site.  Consistent with historical use of the site, boat slips 
were proposed and approved as an amenity of the PUD that could be enjoyed by existing cottage owners and 
new owners alike.  The approved 80 slip marina is not a full service marina and will not have accommodations for 
in/out service, storage, fuel, or maintenance of watercraft.    
 
Although the boat slips were approved as a component of the PUD, it was acknowledged that additional review 
and approvals from the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and the Army Corps of Engineers 
(Corps) would be required prior to construction.  With this knowledge, the previously approved PUD site plans for 
PW1 had indicated “preferred boat slip areas” with the understanding that additional review and approvals by the 
DEQ and Corps may influence the final location of the boat slips and potentially require an amendment to the 
approved site plans. Therefore, a condition of approval was placed on the PUD which defined a process for review, 
by the Township Board, of any suggested modifications to the slip locations.  This condition was intentionally 
written to not be considered an amendment to a PUD.  
 
MDEQ and USACE Approval 
After the PUD approval, a marina layout plan was submitted to the DEQ and the Corps that proposed boat slips 
within the preferred boat slip areas.  Review of the proposed boat slips by the DEQ and Corps included multiple 
public notices by the DEQ and Corps and public hearings held by the DEQ at the Park Township Hall.  Of primary 
concern by the DEQ, Corps, and public alike was the lake-ward reach of the originally proposed marina 
configuration.  In response to public comments and concerns, the agencies requested the boat slip plan be 
redesigned to reduce their lake-ward reach.  This requires that boats slips be placed closer to shore and outside 
of the preferred boat slip areas.  After many meetings, plan reviews, and public hearings a site plan was created 
that reduced the lake-ward reach of the boat slips by nearly 150’ from the originally proposed.  This plan was 
subsequently approved by the DEQ in July 2014 and the Army Corps in July 2015.  
 
May 2015 Condition Modification Request to Township Board 
An application was filed and presentation was made to the Park Township Board to modify Condition N within the 
PW1 PUD Report through the process outlined when the PUD was approved and contained within the PUD Report.  
The specific request was to remove the indication of a preferred boat slip area and allow PW1 the right to construct 
boat slips anywhere within their riparian interest area.  The result of this public hearing was the request of the 
Township Board to have PW1 resolve pending disputes with their neighbors before action on the request and 
therefore the Township Board postponed action on the request.  
 
Neighbor Disputes and Resolutions 
When PW1 requested the waiver of Condition N in May 2015, there was ongoing litigation with the neighbor to 
the North (“DenUyl”) and pending litigation with the neighbor to the South (“Eldean”), both involving the 
riparian lines of those properties as well as the location of areas adjacent to their properties for which claims 
were made that boat slips could not be installed.  Further, Eldean had entered appearances in the MDEQ 
permit process contesting the MDEQ approvals (collectively the “Neighbor Disputes”). 
 

 Since May 2015, PW1 has extended substantial time energy and financial resources in resolving the 
Neighbor Disputes in order to satisfy the Township Board’s conditions to reviewing Condition N of the 
PUD (Preferred Boat Slips). These Neighbor Disputes have been resolved.  

 
 The settlements of the Neighbor Disputes and the finalization of the MDEQ/Corps of Engineers process 

has necessitated substantial changes in the original preferred Boat Slip Plan, to include the following: 
 

 As a part of the MEDQ approval process a dock limit line has been established over the portion of their 
riparian interest area lake-ward of the permitted boat slips thereby precluding any such future requests.  



 
 In settlement with the north neighbor, the common riparian line was agreed upon and in honoring a 

contested restrictive agreement, the view corridor which was originally proposed in a central location on 
the approved Preferred Boat Slip Plan has moved to the north. 

 
 In settlement with the south neighbor, the common riparian line which, with an area of PW1’s riparian 

interest, has been agreed would not be developed with boat slips. 
 
Requested Action by Township Board 
The June 2016 Preferred Boat Slip plan not only reflects settlement with the neighbors but also provides a 
comparable and perhaps enhanced view shed of Lake Macatawa. The submission of this plan differs from the 
original modification request in May of 2015 where PW1 was previously requesting to omit all reference to 
preferred boat slip areas and allow construction wherever permitted by jurisdictional agencies. This revised 
submission accounts for resolution of Neighbor Disputes and redefines a location for the preferred boat slip 
area.  

 
PW1 has devoted substantial resources to resolving the Neighbor Disputes in reliance on the Board’s position 
that it would consider a change to Condition N only after those Disputes were resolved and they now have 
been. Condition N always contemplated that the MDEQ and Army Corp’s approvals would be obtained and in 
so doing would likely   require modification of Condition N, as so stated in the Condition. 
 
PW1 has invested millions of dollars in the vertical construction of the PUD, however, the amenity represented 
by the boats slips to be constructed is most important to the continued development and sale of the residential 
condominiums.  Now that PW1 has met the conditions of the Board’s consideration of Condition modification, it 
is appropriate that the Board review and approve the newly submitted Preferred Boat Slip Plan. 
 
This revised “preferred boat slip area” has been indicated based on the recommendations of the DEQ and the 
Corps to supplement the efforts to reduce the encroachment of boat slips for the continued enjoyment of all 
parties. 
 
Therefore, based on the permitting decisions and recommendations of the DEQ and the Corps, PW1 
respectfully requests a modification to the approved Point West 1 Conditions of Approval (Condition 
N) contained within the Final Report to revise the proposed limits of the “preferred boat slip areas” 
of the original plan and to allow boat slips within the preferred boat slip areas shown on the 
Attached June 2016, Revised Preferred Boat Slip Plan. 
 
 

 



EXHIBIT A

kcavanaugh
Rectangle

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
ORIGINAL "PREFERRED BOAT SLIP AREA" DOCUMENT A PART OF THE PUD APPROVAL





X

X

SINGLE

FAMILY

COTTAGES

'B'

SINGLE

FAMILY

COTTAGES

'A'

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
XXXX X

X

© 2016 Nederveld, Inc.

www.nederveld.com

800.222.1868

Ann Arbor            Grand Rapids

                  Chicago                    Holland

June 9th, 2016

project no. 09200061G-110C

N

SCALE: 1" = 100'

APPROX. AGREED TO DOCK LIMIT LINE FOR LAKEWARD REACH

A
G

R
E
E
D

 
U

P
O

N
 
R
I
P
A
R
I
A
N

 
L
I
N

E
 
 
 
 
N

4
7
°
4
9
'
3
6
"
E

PREFERRED BOAT

SLIP AREA

 REVISED PREFERRED BOAT SLIP PLAN

A

G

R

E

E

D

 

U

P

O

N

 

R

I

P

A

R

I

A

N

 

L

I

N

E

 

 

 

 

N

2

7

°

3

5

'

3

1

"

E

C

E

N

T

E

R

L

I

N

E

 

O

F

 

L

A

K

E

A
G

R
E
E
D

 
U

P
O

N
 
R
I
P
A
R
I
A
N

 
L
I
N

E

POSSIBLE BOAT

SLIP AREA

(CURRENT FAIRWAY)



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

1 

 Exhibit B 

 

 REPORT 

 

 Pursuant to the provisions of the Park Township Zoning Ordinance (the “Zoning 

Ordinance”), the following is a report of the Park Township Board of Trustees (the “Board”) 

concerning an application by Greg Raad, of Nederveld, Inc, and Mark Harmsen as a 

representative and on behalf of Point West I, L.L.C., a Michigan limited liability company whose 

registered agent is Jim Rosloniec and whose registered address is 2905 Lucerne, Grand Rapids, 

Michigan (the “Developer”), for approval of a Planned Unit Development project (the “Project”).  

The Project consists of a cottage-style neighborhood with a maximum of forty (40) residential 

units, eighty (80) boat slips, reconfiguration of private roads, parking, public water and sewer 

along with other private utilities, and other related site improvements, on approximately 8.9 acres 

of property located generally at 2365 South Shore Drive and identified as Tax Parcel ID Number 

70-15-33-387-019 (the “Premises”).   

1. Conclusion and Decision of the Board. 

After a thorough review of the standards provided in Section 38-365 of the Park 

Township Code of Ordinances, the Board concludes that the Project is consistent with and 

promotes the intent and purpose of Chapter 38, Division 8 of the Park Township Code of 

Ordinances. The Planning Commission has recommended to the Park Township Board that the 

Project be approved as a Planned Unit Development, subject to all of the conditions contained in 

this Report. The Final Development Plan for the Project is presently on file with the Park 

Township Zoning Administrator, and consists of all of the following documents and information.  

A) A spiral bound booklet entitled “Final PUD for Point West I” dated 7/26/11, 

prepared and compiled by Nederveld , Inc., including Project Overview, Site Background, 

Project Details, and Additional Information;  and 

B) A document entitled “Existing Site Conditions and Natural Features Plan of: 

POINT WEST I, LLC” prepared by Nederveld, Inc,, a Michigan corporation whose address is 

217 Grandville Ave., Suite 302, Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503, Drawn by WDS (dated 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

2 

06/22/09), as last Checked by RJB  dated 05/31/11 (No. 1 – Final PUD Submittal), Project No. 

09200061, Sheet C-201; and 

C) A document entitled “Parallel Plan for: POINT WEST I, LLC” prepared by 

Nederveld, Inc,, a Michigan corporation whose address is 217 Grandville Ave., Suite 302, Grand 

Rapids, Michigan 49503, Drawn by WDS (dated 10/26/09), as last Checked by RJB  dated 

11/24/09 (No. 1 – Preliminary PUD Submittal), Project No. 09200061, Sheet C-101, showing 

how the Premises could be developed based on the current zoning of the Premises (C-2 Resort 

Service District) by splitting the Premises into two lots, with a total of 72 multi-family residential 

units (25 on Lot A and 47 on Lot B) and a total of  80 boat slips, along with 230 parking spaces 

(two per multi-family unit and one per boat slip, with two additional parking spaces); and 

D) A document entitled “Final PUD Plan for: POINT WEST I, LLC” prepared by 

Nederveld, Inc,, a Michigan corporation whose address is 217 Grandville Ave., Suite 302, Grand 

Rapids, Michigan 49503, Drawn by WDS (dated 05/18/11), as last Checked by RJB  dated 

05/31/11 (No. 1 – Final PUD Submittal), Project No. 09200061, Sheet C-204, containing a 

legend, General Notes, and Utility Notes, showing the preferred boat slips areas,  the no boat slip 

zone, the boat house (club house), the pool, the possible pool house building, the hillside 

building, private drives, parking areas, and the build-to zones / setback lines for the various types 

of single family cottage areas, the flex areas, and Hillside area; and 

E) A document entitled “Details for: POINT WEST I, LLC” prepared by Nederveld, 

Inc,, a Michigan corporation whose address is 217 Grandville Ave., Suite 302, Grand Rapids, 

Michigan 49503, Drawn by WDS (dated 05/18/11), as last Checked by RJB  dated 05/31/11 (No. 

1 – Final PUD Submittal), Project No. 09200061, Sheet C-205;  and 

F) A document entitled “Parking Plan for: POINT WEST I, LLC” prepared by 

Nederveld, Inc,, a Michigan corporation whose address is 217 Grandville Ave., Suite 302, Grand 

Rapids, Michigan 49503, Drawn by WDS (dated 05/18/11), as last Checked by RJB  dated 

05/31/11 (No. 1 – Final PUD Submittal), Project No. 09200061, Sheet C-206;  and 

G) A document entitled “Landscape Plan for: POINT WEST I, LLC” prepared by 

Nederveld, Inc,, a Michigan corporation whose address is 217 Grandville Ave., Suite 302, Grand 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

3 

Rapids, Michigan 49503, Drawn by CLM (dated 05/31/11), Project No. 09200061, Sheet L-101, 

including Landscape Notes, Concept Plant Schedule, Lighting Schedule, and Sign Schedule. 

2. Basis for the Decision. 

The Board bases its decision that the request for approval of the Project be granted upon 

its concurrence with the Planning Commission‟s consideration of the standards contained in 

Section 38-365 of the Park Township Code of Ordinances. It is important to note that Section 38-

365 of the Park Township Code lists standards to be considered rather than requirements that 

must be followed in every instance. 

 A) The Project is consistent with and promotes the intent and purpose of Chapter 38, 

Division 8 of the Park Township Code of Ordinances, including the considerations referenced in 

Section 38-363 of the Park Township Code of Ordinances.
1
  

The Property is located within the Macatawa Park area, which consists of essentially of 

the dune area situated between Lake Michigan and Lake Macatawa. The Property had 

                                                
1 Sec. 38-363.  Description and purpose. 

(a)   The use, area, height, bulk, and placement regulations of this division are primarily applicable to the usual situation of one 

principal building per lot. In certain larger developments these requirements result in a less desirable development for the 

achievement of the purposes of this division than if a controlled degree of flexibility is allowed. For example, a large-scale 

residential development might better achieve the purposes of this division if a portion of the open space requirements were 

consolidated into tot lots or community parks rather than on an individual, lot-for-lot basis. 

(b)   A development may be such large size as to justify permitting certain incidental uses not normally permitted in the zoning 

district. As an example, a multiple-family development might include a coffee shop, food store, or barbershop primarily for the 

residents of the development. Permitting these uses within the development can, in certain cases, increase convenience, be 

compatible with the overall character of the development and not be injurious to adjoining properties. 

(c)   Planned unit developments are intended to permit and control the development of preplanned areas as planned developments 

for various compatible uses permitted by this division, and for other special uses not so permitted. In so doing, a degree of 

flexibility is allowed in use, area, height, bulk, and placement regulations for planned unit developments. Planned unit 

developments are not intended to permit property to be developed at a greater density than would be allowed by the current 

zoning district or by the projected land use classification identified in the township comprehensive or basic plan (as then in force) 

adopted pursuant to Public Act No. 33 of 2008 (MCL 125.3801 et seq.). 

(d)   However, it is also the intent of a planned unit development to afford each type of use reasonable protection from 

encroachment or interference by other incompatible land uses, and that reasonable protection be afforded to uses adjacent to the 

planned unit development. 

(e)   All zoning pursuant to this division shall give due consideration to maintenance of reasonable conditions regarding emission 

and transmission of injurious or obnoxious noise, vibration, gas, smoke, dust, dirt, litter, odor, light glare, traffic congestion, ease 

of police and fire protection, drainage, lateral land support, blighting influence, effect on surrounding property values, light and 

air, overcrowding of persons, sanitation, surface water and groundwater quality, water supply and sewage disposal, general 

appearance and character of the area, and other similar considerations which have an effect on the achievement of the purposes of 

this division. 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

4 

historically been used for commercial purposes, including a hotel and restaurant. The historical 

development of the Macatawa Park area has been of cottages, on lots generally smaller than 

permitted in any Zoning District within the Township and at a density that exceeds three units 

per acre. The Project will not permit the Property to be developed at a greater density than would 

be allowed by the current zoning district (C-2 Resort Service).  

Pursuant to Section 38-373 of the Park Township Code of Ordinances,
2
 the Planning 

Commission previously determined (at its meeting held on February 16, 2010) the maximum 

density of the Project to be forty (40) residential units based upon the parallel plan submitted by 

the Developer as provided in Section 38-366(6) of the Park Township Code. The determination 

of maximum density for the Project was a rather unique and complicated situation, due in part to 

the inconsistency between the current underlying zoning classification of the Property and the 

projected zoning of the Property as designated in the Master Plan currently in effect.  The 

Property is currently zoned in the C-2 Resort Service District [which allows both multiple family 

dwellings (if the development is five acres or less) and marinas (when authorized as a special 

use)
3
], but the projected zoning of the Property as designated in the current Master Plan is split 

                                                
2 Sec. 38-373.  Maximum density. 

(a)   Consistent with zoning district and master plan.  Subject to the limitation of subsection (b) of this section, and with the 

exception of the potential for a density bonus permitted for planned residential developments as provided in section 38-402 and 

open space design developments as provided in section 38-403, the maximum density permitted for a planned unit development 

shall not exceed the density that would otherwise be permitted on the property according to the provisions of this chapter and the 

zoning map in effect at the time the application for planned unit development is submitted, or according to the current general 

land use and circulation plan map in the township comprehensive plan land use and circulation plan, adopted by the township, 

pursuant to state law.   

(b)   Density determination by parallel plan.  The number of units permitted shall be determined through preparation of a parallel 

plan, as required by section 38-366(6). For purposes of preparing a parallel plan for a planned residential development, the area 

regulations to be used pursuant to section 38-366(6)b shall be as follows: front yard of not less than 40 feet; side yard of not less 

than ten feet; rear yard of not less than 50 feet; minimum lot width of not less than 100 feet; and minimum lot area of not less 

than one acre. For purposes of preparing a parallel plan for an open space design development, the area regulations to be used 

pursuant to section 38-366(6)b shall be as follows: front yard of not less than 40 feet; side yard of not less than ten feet; rear yard 

of not less than 50 feet; minimum lot width of not less than 100 feet; and minimum lot area of not less than two acres. The 

planning commission shall review the parallel plan and determine the number of units that could be feasibly developed following 

the parallel plan. This number, as determined by the planning commission, shall be the maximum number of units permitted on 

the property developed as a planned unit development, with the exception of planned residential developments as provided in 

section 38-402 and open space design developments as provided in section 38-403. For planned residential developments and 

open space design developments, this number, as determined by the planning commission, shall be considered the base density, 

which shall be the maximum density of the project unless the project qualifies for a density bonus as a cluster planned residential 

development under section 38-402(g), or as a cluster open space design development under section 38-402(g).  

3 Section 38-452(23) of the Park Township Code, which is subsection listing uses permitted in the C-2 Zoning District, provides 

as follows. 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

5 

between low density residential [which allows a maximum of three dwelling units per acre] and 

commercial.  

The Developer submitted a parallel plan that complied with the requirements of the 

Zoning Ordinance, illustrating how the Property could be developed with multi-family 

residential units meeting standard lot size, lot width and setbacks required by the current 

underlying zoning district (C-2). The parallel plan showed the Property split into two lots (Lot A 

and Lot B, both of which would be less than five acres in size) accessed by a private road. The 

parallel plan showed the Property to be developed with a total of 72 residential units and 80 boat 

slips: Lot A in the Parallel Plan would be developed with 25 residential units, along with parking 

spaces for the residential units and additional parking spaces for a marina use / boat slips;  Lot B 

in the Parallel Plan would be developed with 47 residential units, along with parking spaces for 

the residential units;  additional parking spaces were identified along the private road. Neither 

the state, the county nor the Township require a preliminary plat for the Property to be divided 

into two lots accessed by a private drive and used as multiple family dwelling developments [see, 

e.g., Section 18-88(j) of the Park Township Code
4
]. Based upon the parallel plan submitted, the 

Developer originally requested to develop the Property as a mixed use development, consisting 

of single family cottages and attached condominiums with a maximum density of 69 residential 

units (8.3 units/acre) along with boat slips (but not a full service marina) pending Michigan 

                                                                                                                                                       
 

   Marinas when authorized as a special use by the planning commission. In considering such authorization, the 

planning commission shall consider the following standards: 

a.   The size, nature and character of the marina; 

b.   The proposed location of the marina; 

c.   The location of entrances and drives leading to the marina with respect to potential traffic congestion or 

hazards; 

d.   The parking facilities to be provided for the marina; 

e.   The location and character of the storage areas and facilities to be provided by the marina for boats, cradles, 

and other boat accessories; 

f.   The facilities to be provided by the marina for the display of new and used boats for sale; 

g.   How well the marina harmonizes, blends with and enhances adjoining properties and the surrounding 

neighborhood; 

h.   Any potential disturbance or nuisance from the marina operation for adjoining properties and the surrounding 

neighborhood; and 

i.   The effect of the marina on adjoining properties and the surrounding neighborhood. 
4 (j)   Division of unplatted parcel.  The division of an unplatted parcel of land into two, three, or four lots involving the 

dedication of a new street shall require the approval of the township board prior to taking such action. All such applications shall 

be made in writing and shall be accompanied by a drawing of the proposed division. The township board shall not approve such 

application nor shall a building or occupancy permit be issued in such cases until the subdivider has secured the approval of the 

Ottawa County Health Department and evidence of such approval submitted to the township board. 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

6 

Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and United States Army Corps of Engineers 

(USACE) approvals.  

Even though the parallel plan showed a density of 72 multifamily residential units, the 

Planning Commission carefully reviewed the application, including the parallel plan, and the 

Zoning Ordinance to determine the maximum number of residential units that could be feasibly 

developed following the parallel plan, as required by Section 38-373 of the Park Township Code.  

This thorough review was necessary due to not only the discrepancy between the current 

underlying Zoning District (C-2) and the projected zoning designated in the Master Plan in effect 

(low density residential), but also due to the discrepancy between the multi-family units shown 

on the parallel plan (which require a minimum usable floor area of 650 sq ft per unit for one 

bedroom units, 750 sq ft per unit for two bedroom units, and 900 sq ft per unit for three bedroom 

units, with no setback or separation distances necessarily required between units) and the single 

family cottages proposed as part of the Project (which require a minimum usable floor area of 

1,000 sq ft for one story dwelling units, 1,100 sq ft for one and one-half story dwelling units, and 

1,400 sq ft for two story dwelling units, and require minimum lot areas and setbacks from 

adjoining dwelling units). Township Staff (i.e., the former Zoning Administrator) advised the 

Planning Commission that it could determine the maximum density of the Project by one of two 

alternatives, one which would follow the current zoning of the Property and yield 65.4 residential 

units, the other which would follow the Master Plan and yield 58 residential units.
5
 The 

                                                
5 Staff memo titled “Point West 1 Density Scenarios” provides in relevant part as follows. 

 

Background:  

Section 38-373 (a) of the Park Township Zoning Ordinance states that the density for a PUD may be determined from 

either current zoning or the master plan. The property is currently zoned C-2 which permits multifamily developments 

up to 5 acres in size in accordance with the regulations of the R-5 district. The R-5 district requires 4,500 square feet 

per unit for multifamily units and 8500 square feet per unit for single family units. The property is planned for 

commercial along the shore and low density residential (3 lots per acre) for the remainder. 

 

Proposed: 

The applicant has proposed a parallel plan that shows the property split in two so that neither is greater than 5 acres. 

This plan compensates for a road and a cul-de-sac; it shows that a total of 72 units would be permitted on the remainder 

using the 4,500 square feet per unit calculation. 

 

Alternative 1 (by Zoning): 

Using only 5 acres for a multifamily development (4,500 sq. ft. per unit) as specified in the C-2 district would allow 

48.4 units. The remaining 3.32 acres does not have a specific permitted density per the zoning ordinance. The planning 

commission may determine that since the C-2 district refers back to R-5 and since the development includes about 12 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

7 

Township Planning Consultant advised the Planning Commission to use a hybrid approach, 

using the density permitted pursuant to the Master Plan as a starting point, and taking into 

consideration some of the vested density under the current Zoning District, and recommended a 

maximum density of 43 residential units for the Project. The acting-chair of the Planning 

Commission described the Township Planning Consultant‟s recommendation as “well thought 

out” but nonetheless he and the rest of the Planning Commission ultimately rejected the 

maximum densities as proposed by the Developer (72 residential units), the Township Zoning 

Administrator (65 or 58 residential units), and the Township Planning Consultant (43 residential 

units) for the Project. At the Planning Commission‟s regular meeting held on February 16, 2010, 

the Planning Commission, after extensively reviewing the parallel plan and various proposals, 

determined the maximum density for the Project (i.e., the number of units that could be feasibly 

developed following the parallel plan, taking into consideration the discrepancy between the 

current zoning and the proposed designation in the Master Plan, and the discrepancy between 

size of multi-family and single-family residential units) at 40 residential units.  

The Project (residential cottages that will blend harmoniously with the character and 

pattern of existing cottages in the Macatawa Park area, and a limited marina with 80 boat slips) is 

compatible with the surrounding neighborhood.  The surrounding area has been developed with 

historic cottages at a higher density than typical residential neighborhoods, and to the southeast 

of the Property, there is a full service marina.  The Project will further provide reasonable 

protection for the adjacent and neighboring properties from the encroachment or interference by 

other incompatible land uses that may otherwise be permitted in the underlying current zoning 

district (C-2). The maximum density of the Project (40 residential units, as determined by the 

                                                                                                                                                       
single family dwellings the density specified in the R-5 district for single family (8,500 sq. ft. per unit) may be 

appropriate for the remaining 3.32 acres. The zoning adjacent to the property is R-4; this district also requires 8,500 sq. 

ft. per unit for single family dwellings. Using 8,500 sq. ft. per unit for the remaining 3.32 acres would equal 17 more 

units for a total of 65.4 units, not compensating for the road or cul-de-sac. 

 

Alternative 2 (by Master Plan): 

When looking at the master plan map it is unclear whether the portion along the shore that is planned for commercial 

would be 5 acres or more. For arguments sake let‟s assume that it is. The commercial areas described in the master plan 

do not include a specific density for this type of development. Therefore, using the 48.4 units as calculated in the 

alternative 1 (zoning) scenario would be appropriate. Using the density specified in the master plan for low density 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

8 

Planning Commission on February 16, 2010) will lessen traffic congestion and the overcrowding 

of persons that could occur if the Property were developed in a manner consistent with the 

current underlying zoning district (C-2) permitted pursuant to Section 38-452 of the Park 

Township Code.
6
   

 B) The Project is compatible with the adjacent land uses and the natural 

environment, and does not adversely affect the capacities of public services and facilities.  The 

Property is located within the Macatawa Park area, which consists essentially of the dune area 

situated between Lake Michigan and Lake Macatawa. The historical development of the 

Macatawa Park area has been of cottages, on lots generally smaller than permitted in any Zoning 

District within the Township and at a density that exceeds three units per gross acre (which is 

contrary to both the current zoning and the projected density under the current Master Plan). The 

property that is located adjacent to the southeast has been developed as the Eldean Shipyard 

marina, a full service marina. The Property had historically been used for commercial purposes, 

including a hotel and restaurant. Most recently, up until 1995, the Property was used for a 300-

seat restaurant, a 28-room motel, and approximately 40 multi-family residential apartment units. 

The entire Property could be developed with one or more of the uses permitted in Section 

38-452 of the Park Township Code under the current zoning classification (C-2).  These potential 

uses include, but are not limited to, a multi-family apartment complex (with as many as 72 

residential units), a hotel/motel, a restaurant (including as a drive-in car eating place), 

campgrounds, amusement enterprises, a liquor store, an auto-repair service station, a movie 

theater, a full service marina, and/or other similar commercial establishments. The Project, 

consisting predominantly of single family cottages utilizing a form-based code approach as a 

degree of flexibility to ensure that the cottages will blend harmoniously with the character and 

pattern of existing cottages in the Macatawa Park area, along with a limited use marina 

                                                                                                                                                       
residential of approximately 3 units per acre would permit an additional 10 units for a total of 58 units, not 

compensating for the road or cul-de-sac. 
6 The Property could be developed with one or more of the uses permitted in Section 38-452 of the Park Township Code, which 

include, but are not limited to, a multi-family apartment complex (with as many as 72 residential units), a hotel/motel, a 

restaurant (including as a drive-in car eating place), campgrounds, amusement enterprises, a liquor store, an auto-repair service 

station, a movie theater, a full service marina, and/or other similar commercial establishments. 

 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

9 

consisting of a maximum of 80 boat slips, however, would develop the Property in a manner that 

is more compatible with the adjacent land uses (both the existing cottages and the full service 

marina) and the natural environment than many of the uses that would be permitted pursuant to 

Section 38-452 of the Park Township Code. 

The private, limited use marina is compatible with the adjacent land uses.  The 

Township‟s Planning Consultant reported, at the June 21, 2011 meeting of the Planning 

Commission, that there would be minimal impact from a private, limited use marina such as the 

one proposed as part of the Project (80 boat slips). The Township‟s Planning Consultant reported 

that his review of the literature indicated that small marinas are encouraged for this type of resort 

development. The size (80 boat slips), nature and character (small, private, limited use marina) of 

the marina will not adversely affect the adjacent land uses, which include not only the existing 

cottages in the Macatawa Park area but also the Eldean Shipyard marina. There will be no boat 

storage areas, facilities, nor any retail sales of boats, as part of the Project. The limited use 

marina complies with the required parking ratio of one parking space per one boat slip. Limiting 

the 80 boat slips to the “Preferred Boat Slip Area” shown on the Final Development Plan, and 

prohibiting boats from the “No Boat Slip Zone” will further reduce or eliminate any potential 

disturbance or nuisance or adverse effects of the limited use marina on the adjacent neighboring 

residential properties. 

The Project is compatible with the natural environment. As provided and explained more 

fully in the Final Development Plan, the Developer is taking important environmental 

stewardship of the Property in developing the Project.  The Project will utilize sustainable site 

and building design that helps safeguard the environmental features of the Property.  This 

includes utilizing the criteria of the leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) 

program operated with the United States Green Building Council, or other similar accredited 

program.  The Project will have effective stormwater and erosion controls (the Ottawa County 

Drain Commissioner granted conceptual drainage approval for the Project by letter dated 

December 1, 2010). The Project will utilize efficient landscaping and heat island management 

including green roofs. The Project will also participate in the Clean Marina Program, seeking to 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

10 

reduce and eliminate releases and discharges of harmful pollutants, sediments, nutrients, general 

refuse and other items that can damage aquatic environments. 

Finally, the Project will not adversely affect the capacities of the public services. Public 

utilities (water and sewer) are available and adequate to service the Project.  As indicated in the 

traffic study, Project will not result in any significant impacts to the safety and efficiency of the 

existing and proposed street system.  The Township Fire Chief has reviewed the Project and 

determined that it will not adversely affect the Township‟s ability to provide fire protection to 

the Project or any of the adjacent properties.  [The written report from the Township Fire Chief is 

attached as Exhibit 2.] 

 C) The Project will be developed at a density that exceeds three residential units per 

gross acre, and therefore is not totally consistent with the Master Plan currently in effect. The 

Master Plan currently in effect identifies the projected land use of a portion of the Property to be 

low density residential (three residential units per gross acre) and a portion of the Property to be 

commercial. However, two factors lead to a conclusion that the spirit of the standard referenced 

in Subsection 38-365(3) of the Park Township Code [“Whether the proposed planned unit 

development is consistent with the current township comprehensive or basic plan (as then in 

force) adopted pursuant to state law, including, but not limited to, density calculations.”]  is met 

by the Project. 

First, as noted above, the considerations found in Section 38-365 of the Park Township 

Code are standards to be reviewed by the Planning Commission in making its report and 

recommendation and by the Township Board in making its decision in granting or denying 

approval; they are not requirements that must be followed in every instance. Second, density 

calculations are only one aspect to be considered in reviewing the standard.  The Project, with 

single family residential uses, albeit at a slightly increased density than three residential units per 

gross acre, is more consistent with the current Master Plan designation for the portion of the 

Property not designated to be commercial, than would be many of the uses permitted pursuant to 

Section 38-452 of the Park Township Code (including but not limited to those listed in footnote 6 

in Section 2.B above). 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

11 

 D) The Project is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the 

Township, including but not limited to traffic control, environmental concerns, lighting, 

pedestrian safety, and drainage.  The Final Development Plan includes a Traffic Review Study 

prepared by Peter C. LaMourie, P.E. PTOE of Progressive AE (the “Traffic Study”).  The Traffic 

Study was based on a proposal of 80 boat slips and 45 residential units, five more units than the 

maximum density of 40 residential units previously approved by the Planning Commission.  The 

Traffic Study found that “even with the reduction in the past uses trip generation results due to 

internal trips, the proposed uses are projected to generate only one third to one half of the 

number of daily trips that the prior uses generated.”  Further, the Traffic Study indicates that, 

based upon the review and analysis of the traffic engineer, it is apparent that: 

[T]he proposed uses will be accommodated by the existing / revised street system 

during peak days, even without comparing past land uses.  The proposed street 

layout makes sense from a vehicular standpoint by accommodating both on-site 

and off-site residential traffic.  Also, the addition of a new separate sidewalk 

along Bay Road will provide a safer environment for all pedestrians, especially 

along the narrow section just north of the gate. 

 

The Traffic Study also suggested a couple of traffic calming measures that could be utilized to 

keep vehicle speeds down, for both vehicular and pedestrian safety, which were incorporated 

into the Final Development Plan.  The Traffic Study concluded: “Based upon our review of the 

proposed uses, the current site plan, and relative data regarding trip generation, we believe the 

proposed project will not result in any significant impacts to the safety and efficiency of the 

existing and proposed street systems.” 

 The Project is consistent with pedestrian safety.  In addition to the measures taken for 

traffic safety/pedestrian safety noted above, the Project also includes improved pedestrian 

walkways and clearly identifiable crosswalks.  These include safe pedestrian crosswalks at the 

Gatehouse Building at the southeast end of the Property, as well as pedestrian crosswalks across 

different sections of Bay Road, and sidewalks along Bay Road, Lake Macatawa, and within the 

residential area of the Project, as well as a bicycle lane. 

 As provided in the Final Development Plan, all new construction within the Project will 

include fire suppression sprinkle systems, which will assist in containing any fires within the 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

12 

new construction.  Further, the Township Fire Chief has reviewed the Project and determined 

that it will accommodate appropriate fire-fighting equipment and improve the Township‟s ability 

to provide fire protection to the Project and adjacent properties in the Macatawa Park area. 

As provided and explained more fully in the Final Development Plan, the Developer is 

committed to important environmental stewardship of the Property in developing the Project.  

The Project will utilize sustainable site and building design to help safeguard the environmental 

features of the Property.  The Project will follow the criteria of the Leadership in Energy and 

Environmental Design (LEED) program operated with the United States Green Building Council 

or other similar accredited program.  The Project will have effective stormwater and erosion 

controls (the Ottawa County Drain Commissioner granted conceptual drainage approval for the 

Project by letter dated December 1, 2010). The Project will utilize efficient landscaping and heat 

island management including green roofs. The Project will also participate in the Clean Marina 

Program, seeking to reduce and eliminate releases and discharges of harmful pollutants, 

sediments, nutrients, general refuse and other items that can damage aquatic environments.  

Finally, all lighting will be shielded and/or directed downward, to avoid light pollution. 

3. Recommended Conditions of Approval.  

The conditions that the Planning Commission recommends the Township Board impose 

with respect to the Project as a Planned Unit Development are as follows. 

 A) Except as expressly modified or revised by these conditions, the Developer shall 

comply with all agreements, plans, representations, and warranties included in the Final 

Development Plan.  All improvements (including but not limited to buildings, streets, roads, 

drives, parking areas, sidewalks, utilities, ground cover, trees, landscaping, lighting, signage, 

drainage features, etc.), shall be located and constructed in complete compliance with the Final 

Development Plan. No change shall be made in the Final Development Plan unless the Planned 

Unit Development approval is first amended by the Township Board following the procedures 

then provided by State law and the Zoning Ordinance for approval of a planned unit 

development project.  

kcavanaugh
Highlight



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

13 

 B) The Project shall comply with all federal, state and/or Ottawa County laws, rules, 

regulations or requirements. 

 C) No revision or change of these conditions shall be made except by Park Township 

Board action after a public hearing, with notice of such hearing to be given as then required by 

law for Township Board hearings with respect to proposed planned unit development projects.  

A revision or change in these conditions shall not be considered an amendment to the planned 

unit development approval granted by the Township Board for this Project. 

 D)  These conditions shall be binding on the Developer and all successor owners or 

parties in interest in the Project. 

E) The Planned Unit Development approval shall be personal to the Developer and 

shall not be transferred by the Developer except to a third parties who agree in writing to assume 

the Developer‟s obligations under this planned unit development approval for the Project. The 

Developer may sell or lease on a seasonal basis boat slips and sell residential units within the 

Project following completion of the infrastructure for the Project without first obtaining the 

Township Board‟s written consent.  This section is not intended to prevent initial and subsequent 

owners of the residential units from leasing their units.  The Developer shall not lease any built 

but unsold residential unit to the public, unless such residential unit has been on the market for 

sale and has not been sold for a period of six (6) months (as measured from the date the final 

occupancy permit is granted) or unless such unit is occupied by an employee or independent 

contractor of Developer, and any lease to the public shall be for no less than a three (3) month 

period.  

 F) The right is reserved to the Township Board in its approval of the Project to 

impose additional conditions if reasonably necessary to achieve the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance, in compliance with the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act. 

 G) In the event of any conflict between these conditions and the Final Development 

Plan, these conditions shall control.  In the event of any conflict between documents included in 

the Final Development Plan, the more rigorous requirement shall control. 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

14 

 H)  Any violation of these conditions shall constitute a violation of the Zoning 

Ordinance and, in addition to the remedies provided therein, shall be cause for the Township 

Board to suspend or revoke any zoning or building permit applicable to the Project. 

I) Except as expressly and specifically modified by the Final Development Plan, the 

Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Chapter 38 of the Park Township 

Code of Ordinances, as well as all other applicable Township Ordinances in the Park Township 

Code, as the Code may be amended from time to time.  

 J)  The Project will be served by public utilities (e.g., water and sewer). Upon 

approval by the Holland Board of Public Works and any other applicable regulatory agencies and 

departments of the Project utilities, the Developer shall, at no cost to the Township or any other 

public entity, grant appropriate easements to the public entities / utility companies necessary for 

the installation, operation, maintenance and repair of all public utilities and services.  This shall 

include any necessary easement for the existing thirty-inch (30”) watermain located on the 

Property.  The Developer shall also grant appropriate easements to private utility companies for 

electrical distribution, telephone, natural gas, cable television, fiber optics and other similar 

utilities and services, all of which must be installed underground. 

 K) All exterior lighting shall be shielded and screened, designed and directed 

downward toward the ground areas of lawns, streets, and sidewalks, and shall not cause glare to 

spill over onto any neighboring properties.  

L)  Prior to the Township issuing any building permits for any building or unit within 

the Project, the private drives shall be paved and shall be constructed with at least a twelve (12) 

inch sand sub-base, a six (6) inch aggregate surface course and two (2) one and one-half (1 ½) 

inch bituminous hard surface layers consistent with the Michigan Department of Transportation 

Standards for Construction 22A, or any applicable set of replacement standards.  The bituminous 

hard surface layers may be applied at separate times, but the second layer shall be applied not 

later than the following: (i) six (6) months after the installation of the first layer, or (ii) thirty (30) 

days after the asphalt plants begin production in the spring of the year. 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

15 

The Developer shall, at its sole cost and expense, erect and maintain street signs bearing 

the approved name of the private drives, which shall be located at the intersection of the private 

drives.   

The Developer shall, at its cost and expense, design, erect and maintain an appropriate 

safety rail along the sidewalk that abuts Lake Macatawa in accordance with the attached Safety 

Rail Plan which shall be part of the Final Development Plan.  The Developer / Property Owner 

may add additional safety railings as the Developer / Property Owner deems necessary. 

The Developer (or a successor association) shall be solely responsible for the ongoing 

repair and maintenance for the private roads within the Project.  If repairs to and maintenance of 

the private drives are not made so as to maintain the private drives in reasonably good and usable 

condition, the Township shall have the authority, but not the obligation, to repair and maintain 

the private drives and assess the Developer and/or property owners within the Project for the 

total cost, plus an administrative fee of ten percent (10%) of the total cost of such repairs and 

maintenance.  The Developer shall continue to allow property owners (and their guests/invitees) 

in the Macatawa Park Plats to access their properties by utilizing the following private roads 

located within the Project (Bay Road, Interlake Walk Road, and the unnamed road adjacent to 

the immediate north of the Single Family Cottages „A‟/Hillside „G‟/Flex Area „F‟ areas) at no 

cost, except (i) as may be otherwise agreed with respect to the security gate, (ii) such property 

owners sharing in the cost of maintenance and repair of those roads, and (iii) such property 

owners paying for damage or destruction caused by them or their guests, contractors or invitees. 

The Developer, in its sole discretion, may limit access to the road identified as “Michigan Walk” 

(accessing from the unnamed private road adjacent to the immediate north of the Single Family 

Cottages „A‟/Hillside „G‟/Flex Area „F‟ areas).   



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

16 

M) No zoning or building permits shall be issued for the construction of a building or 

structure within the Project until the Ottawa County Drain Commissioner has issued final 

approval in writing the drainage plan for the Project as a whole.  No occupancy permit shall be 

issued for a building or structure within the Project until the Township has received written 

certification from the Drain Commissioner's engineer that all drainage required for the Project as 

a whole has been completed to the satisfaction of the Drain Commissioner's engineer.  Developer 

shall pay all costs incurred in obtaining this written opinion from the Drain Commissioner's 

engineer. 

 N)  The configuration of the marina / boat slips contained within the Project shall be 

subject to the review and approval of the applicable state and federal agencies [e.g., the Michigan 

Department of Natural Resources (MDNR), the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality 

(MDEQ) and/or the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE)].  The marina / boat slips 

shall not be permitted to operate as a full service marina business. No fuel, indoor or outdoor 

boat storage (other than the 80 boat slips themselves), retail sales of boats, or in/out service shall 

be permitted on the Property. As noted in Condition 3.A above, and except as provided in this 

Condition 3.N, the boat slips / limited use marina shall be operated in compliance with the Final 

Development Plan, including but not limited to the Boat Slips Rules and Regulations.  In the 

event the Developer desires to make material changes to the Boat Slips Rules and Regulations 

that are less restrictive than initially approved, such changes will not require an amended planned 

unit development approval, but rather may be made by the Developer, subject to the review and 

written approval of the Township Board, such approval to not be unreasonably withheld. 

Notwithstanding any provision or statement contained within the Final Development Plan to the 

contrary, all boat slips shall be located in the area identified as the “Preferred Boat Slip Area” in 

the Final Development Plan;  no boat slips shall be permitted within the area identified as the 

“No Boat Slip Zone” in the Final Development Plan.  Any change in the configuration of the 

“No Boat Slip Zone” shall require an amendment to these conditions as approved by the Board  

kcavanaugh
Highlight



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

17 

 O) The maximum density of the Project shall not exceed forty (40) residential units, 

as previously determined by the Planning Commission (at its meeting held on February 16, 

2010) to be the number of units that could be feasibly developed on the Property pursuant to 

Section 38-373 of the Park Township Code of Ordinances, following the parallel plan submitted 

by the Developer as provided in Section 38-366(6) of the Park Township Code.  There may be 

no more than twenty-three (23) residential units located within the areas identified on the Final 

Development Plan as single family cottages; there may be six to ten (6-10) residential units 

located within the areas identified as on the Final Development Plan as flex areas, and there may 

be six to eighteen (6-18) residential units  located within the area identified on the Final 

Development Plan as the hillside area;  as noted in the first sentence of this condition, however, 

the maximum density of the Project shall not exceed forty (40) residential units. 

P) Individual single family cottages shall be constructed in compliance with the 

Final Development Plan, including but not limited to the building spacing / positioning 

provisions of the Macatawa Cottage Style Architectural Pattern included in the approved Final 

Development Plan.  Except as noted on the Final Development Plan between Flex Area “F” and 

Hillside Area “G”, there shall be a minimum separation distance between all buildings, including 

single family cottages, of fourteen feet (14.0‟) as measured in a straight line at the closest points 

(but not including roof overhangs as indicated in the Final Development Plan) between 

buildings.  Except as noted on the Final Development Plan between Flex Area “F” and Hillside 

Area “G”, there shall also be a minimum of a six foot (6‟) straight clear distance between all 

buildings, allowing a clear view sightline. The minimum separation distance of fourteen feet 

(14‟) and the minimum clear sight distance of six feet (6‟) indicated above shall also be included 

in the revised final version of the Macatawa Cottage Style Architectural Pattern. 

Q) In order to alleviate potential adverse effects on surrounding property owners, all 

construction of the infrastructure for Project (including but not limited to private drive and 

sidewalk improvements, public utilities, parking, etc.) shall occur between Labor Day in the Fall 

and Memorial Day in the Spring;  this limitation shall not apply to emergency maintenance or 

repairs of the infrastructure. Construction of the infrastructure for the Project shall be completed 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

18 

by May 31, 2014.  If Developer cannot comply with this condition, Developer shall have the 

right to request the Township Board to extend this completion date, in the Township Board‟s 

discretion (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld), without having to formally amend 

the planned unit development approval.  During construction of the infrastructure portion of the 

Project, the Developer shall ensure that the existing Sunset Walk is properly graded so that 

emergency vehicles can access and traverse Sunset Walk on a daily basis.  All construction 

related traffic shall be instructed to use 32
nd

 Avenue for ingress and egress to the Project site 

rather than South Shore Drive.  The Developer shall identify, and all construction contractors 

shall utilize, a construction staging area for construction materials, construction equipment, etc., 

on the Property that is located in a manner so as to have the least adverse effect on neighboring 

properties.  The Developer may relocate the identified construction staging area from time to 

time as needed, but the construction staging area identified and utilized shall seek to have a 

minimal impact on neighboring properties. 

R)  All landscaping must be completed in compliance with the Final Development 

Plan, except for minor modifications approved in writing by the Township Zoning 

Administrator. All landscaping shall be kept free of refuse and debris, and shall be serviced by 

underground irrigation sufficient to maintain the landscaped setback area in a healthy and 

growing condition. The Developer and the subsequent owners shall ensure that any landscape 

materials that exhibit evidence of insects, pests, diseases and/or damage shall be promptly and 

appropriately treated, and all dead plant material shall be promptly removed and replaced with 

similar living plant material. All landscaping installed on the east side of Bay Road (i.e., on the 

Lake Macatawa side of the Property) shall be properly selected to ensure that the vegetation 

planted will not grow to a height that exceeds twenty-five feet (25‟). 

S) If Developer elects to proceed with the Project, by so doing Developer shall be 

deemed to have accepted and agreed to comply fully at all times with all of the terms and 

provisions of this resolution and Report.  Any condominium documents, sale or lease of boat slip 

agreements and any other information provided to buyers of the residential units shall include 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

19 

language that provides that the Project shall at all times comply with the provisions, 

requirements, and conditions of this Planned Unit Development approval. 

T)  The Developer shall, at the Developer‟s sole cost and expense, record a document 

with the Ottawa County Register of Deeds to inform potential purchasers of any of the Property 

involved in the Project that the Project is subject to a planned unit development approved by the 

Township, the conditions and regulations of which may be reviewed by any interested person in 

the Office of Planning and Community Development.  The Developer shall submit to the 

Township a copy of the recorded document within sixty (60) calendar days after approval of the 

Project by the Township Board. 

U) Open space and green space have a number of environmental and community 

benefits, including but not limited to the following.  Green space reduces the impervious cover 

within a development, which impervious cover can contribute to the degradation of water 

resources by increasing the volume of surface runoff and preventing infiltration of rainfall into 

the soil surface.  Requiring a minimum amount of green space within this Project can thus 

potentially reduce pollutant loads to Lake Macatawa, a significant water resource in the 

Township.  Green space also reduces soil erosion potential by reducing the amount of clearing 

and grading that will be required on the Property to construct the development.  Green space can 

potentially preserve urban and rural residential wildlife habitats.  Green space can create a sense 

of community and pedestrian movement within a development.  Green space preserves open 

space that may be made available for recreational purposes. 

The Developer shall submit a revised site plan showing the inclusion of “green space” 

equivalent to at least twenty percent (20%) of the buildable acreage for the Project.  For purposes 

of this condition, the phrase “buildable acreage” shall mean “gross useable acreage” as defined 

in Section 38-6 of the Park Township Code [the total area per acre in any P.U.D. district (i.e., the 

Property) that is suitable for development, i.e., excluding areas of swamps, steep slopes, or other 

natural or manmade limitations, which preclude or limit development]. For purposes of this 

condition, the phrase “green space” may include open grass areas, natural native landscaped 

areas, linear parks, children‟s play areas, tot lots, recreational walking trails, picnic areas, 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

20 

greenways, etc.  The Township Board shall review the revised site plan and approve the same 

provided that it complies with the requirements of this condition.  Once the revised plan has been 

reviewed and approved by the Township Board, it shall become and be considered to be part of 

the Final Development Plan.  No building permits shall be granted for the Project until the 

Township Board has reviewed and approved the revised plan. 

V) After the installation of forty (40) boat slips and the completion of one boating 

season, the Township shall appoint a committee comprised of one Planning Commission 

member, one Township Board member, the Township Manager, one representative of the 

Applicant and one representative of the Macatawa Park Association to review potential traffic 

congestion at the entry gate to the Project.  The committee shall, within sixty (60) calendar days 

after being formed, determine whether any traffic congestion adversely affects the ingress and 

egress to the Macatawa peninsula.  In the event that the committee determines that there is such 

an adverse effect, then, in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare, the Developer 

shall add a second traffic lane and by-pass gate along with a visitor gate, in compliance with and 

as shown in the drawing entitled “Gatehouse Improvements” prepared by Nederveld, dated 24
th
 

of November 2009 [identified as project no. 09200061G1 (Gatehouse)], which was submitted as 

page 19 of the Preliminary PUD Submittal for Point West I.  This condition shall not be deemed, 

and the committee shall not be considered to have the authority, to require the elimination of any 

boat slips nor in any way be deemed to prohibit or limit the construction or installation of 80 boat 

slips as permitted by Condition N above.  

Point West I PUD -  rev by Board 11-17-2011 SF File No. 89-1281 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

21 

 Exhibit 1 

 

Lands located in the State of Michigan, County of Ottawa, Township of Park, located generally 

at 2365 South Shore Drive, in Park Township, Ottawa County, Michigan, identified as Tax 

Parcel ID# 70-15-33-387-019, on land legally described as follows. 

 
DESCRIPTION:  The land referred to is, situated in the County of Ottawa, Township of Park, State of 

Michigan, is described as follows: 

 

Parcel 1 

 

That part of Heneveld‟s Supervisor‟s Resubdivision of Macatawa Park, Section 33, Town 5 

North, Range 16 West, Park Township, Ottawa County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 9 of Plats, 

on Page 32 described as:  Beginning at the most Southerly corner of Lot 195 of said Heneveld‟s 

Supervisor‟s Resubdivision; thence North 12 degrees 55 minutes 12 seconds East along the 

Easterly line of said Lot 195, 51.47 feet more or less to the shore of Lake Macatawa, being Point 

“A”; thence recommencing at the point of beginning; thence along a curve to the left having a 

radius of 483.80 feet, an arc length of 180.95 feet and whose long chord bears North 35 degrees 

18 minutes 12 seconds West 179.90 feet; thence North 45 degrees 47 minutes 58 seconds West 

70.10 feet; thence North 50 degrees 41 minutes 58 seconds West 57.67 feet; thence South 39 

degrees 18 minutes 01 second West 82.96 feet; thence South 50 degrees 41 minutes 15 seconds 

East 20.00 feet; thence South 39 degrees 17 minutes 59 seconds West 87.59 feet to the Southerly 

line of Bluff Walk; thence North 68 degrees 52 minutes 21 seconds West 66.20 feet; thence South 

74 degrees 26 minutes 19 seconds West 60.67 feet; thence South 68 degrees 02 minutes 50 

seconds West 246.57 feet; thence North 21 degrees 56 minutes 52 seconds West 4.00 feet; thence 

South 68 degrees 03 minutes 24 seconds West 35.00 feet; thence North 21 degrees 56 minutes 42 

seconds West 14.01 feet; thence South 68 degrees 03 minutes 20 seconds West 47.19 feet; thence 

South 59 degrees 09 minutes 55 seconds West 72.44 feet; thence North 30 degrees 52 minutes 15 

seconds West 24.65 feet; thence South 34 degrees 28 minutes 57 seconds West 35.00 feet; thence 

South 12 degrees 55 minutes 56 seconds West 25.00 feet; thence South 25 degrees 47 minutes 56 

seconds East 10.00 feet to the Southerly line of Bluff Walk; thence North 59 degrees 10 minutes 

06 seconds East 10.85 feet; thence South 21 degrees 42 minutes 11 seconds East 36.16 feet; 

thence South 50 degrees 25 minutes 26 seconds West along the Southerly line of Crescent Walk 

80.62 feet; thence  North 39 degrees 34 minutes 33 seconds West 12.00 feet; thence North 33 

degrees 38 minutes 44 seconds East 36.25 feet; thence North 03 degrees 15 minutes 37 seconds 

West 64.30 feet; thence North 25 degrees 09 minutes 38 seconds West 28.37 feet; thence North 

71 degrees 52 minutes 49 seconds East 60.00 feet; thence North 26 degrees 25 minutes 58 

seconds West 53.45 feet; thence North 43 degrees 28 minutes 27 seconds East 69.97 feet; thence 

North 59 degrees 00 minutes 40 seconds East 43.28 feet; thence North 34 degrees 30 minutes 13 

seconds East 20.06 feet; thence North 43 degrees 56 minutes 52 seconds West 39.54 feet; thence 

North 32 degrees 59 minutes 05 seconds West 97.74 feet; thence North 20 degrees 34 minutes 00 

seconds West 109.00 feet; thence North 58 degrees 52 minutes 33 seconds East 20.58 feet; thence 

North 10 degrees 12 minutes 14 seconds West 79.74 feet to the Northerly line of  Interlake Walk; 

thence North 75 degrees 42 minutes 55 seconds East 215.67 feet; thence North 64 degrees 48 

minutes 50 seconds East 17.06 feet; thence North 71 degrees 11 minutes 56 seconds East 113.54 

feet; thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 73.70 feet, an arc distance of 20.80 feet 

and whose long chord bears North 79 degrees 17 minutes 04 seconds East 20.73 feet; thence 

North 37 degrees 43 minutes 03 seconds West 80.97 feet; thence North 21 degrees 00 minutes 23 

seconds West 146.71 feet; thence North 36 degrees 50 minutes 57 seconds East 136.89 feet more 

or less to the shore of Lake Macatawa; thence Southeasterly  along the shore of Lake Macatawa 

to Point “A”, being the point of ending. 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

22 

 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM Commencing at the most Southerly corner of Lot 195 of said 

Heneveld‟s Supervisor‟s  Resubdivision; thence Northeasterly 180.95 feet along a 483.80 foot 

radius curve to the left, chord = North 35 degrees 18 minutes 12 seconds West 179.90 feet; thence 

North 45 degrees 47 minutes 58 seconds West 70.10 feet; thence North 50 degrees 41 minutes 58 

seconds West 57.67 feet; thence South 39 degrees 18 minutes 01 second West 82.96 feet; thence 

South 50 degrees 41 minutes 15 seconds East 20.00 feet; thence South 39 degrees 17 minutes 59 

seconds West 87.59 feet to the Southerly line of Bluff Walk; thence North 68 degrees 52 minutes 

21 seconds West 66.20 feet; thence South 74 degrees 26 minutes 19 seconds West 60.67 feet; 

thence South 68 degrees 02 minutes 50 seconds West 246.57 feet; thence North 21 degrees 56 

minutes 52 seconds West 4.00 feet; thence South 68 degrees 03 minutes 24 seconds West 35.00 

feet; thence North 21 degrees 56 minutes 42 seconds West 14.01 feet; thence South 68 degrees 03 

minutes 20 seconds West 47.19 feet; thence South 59 degrees 09 minutes 55 seconds West 72.44 

feet; thence North 30 degrees 52 minutes 15 seconds West 24.65 feet; thence South 34 degrees 28 

minutes 57 seconds West 35.00 feet; thence South 12 degrees 55 minutes 56 seconds West 25.00 

feet; thence South 25 degrees 47 minutes 56 seconds East 10.00 feet to the Southerly line of Bluff 

Walk; thence North 59 degrees 10 minutes 06 seconds East 10.85 feet; thence South 21 degrees 

42 minutes 11 seconds East 36.16 feet; thence South 50 degrees 25 minutes 26 seconds West 

80.62 feet along the Southerly line of Crescent Walk; thence North 39 degrees 34 minutes 33 

seconds West 12.00 feet; thence North 33 degrees 38 minutes 44 seconds East 36.25 feet; thence 

North 03 degrees 15 minutes 37 seconds West 64.30 feet; thence North 25 degrees 09 minutes 38 

seconds West 28.37 feet; thence North 71 degrees 52 minutes 49 seconds East 60.00 feet; thence 

North 26 degrees 25 minutes 58 seconds West 53.45 feet; thence North 43 degrees 28 minutes 27 

seconds East 69.97 feet; thence North 59 degrees 00 minutes 40 seconds East 43.28 feet; thence 

North 34 degrees 30 minutes 13 seconds East 20.06 feet; thence North 43 degrees 56 minutes 52 

seconds West 39.54 feet; thence North 32 degrees 59 minutes 05 seconds West 97.74 feet; thence 

North 20 degrees 34 minutes 00 seconds West 89.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence 

continuing North 20 degrees 34 minutes 00 seconds West 20.00 feet; thence North 58 degrees 52 

minutes 33 seconds East 20.58 feet; thence South 10 degrees 12 minutes 14 seconds East 21.04 

feet; thence South 58 degrees 52 minutes 33 seconds West 16.73 feet to the point of beginning. 

 

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM Commencing at the most Northerly corner of Lot 156 of 

said Heneveld‟s Supervisor‟s Resubdivision of Macatawa Park; thence North 50 degrees 01 

minute West along the Northeasterly line of Lots 154 and 157 of said plat 20.00 feet to the place 

of beginning ; thence North 50 degrees 01 minute West along said Northeasterly line 5.00 feet; 

thence North 78 degrees 49 minutes 39 seconds West 11.41 feet; thence South 39 degrees 59 

minutes West 54.50 feet; thence South 50 degrees 01 minute East 15.00 feet; thence North 39 

degrees 59 minutes East 60.00 feet to the place of beginning. 

 

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM Crescent Walk and Bluff Walk. 

 

Together with a non-exclusive easement for ingress and egress in Liber 1346, pages 662 and 663. 

 

Parcel 3 

 

That part of Lot 154 Heneveld‟s Supervisor‟s Resubdivision of Macatawa Park according to the 

plat thereof recorded in Liber 9 of Plats, on Page 32 Ottawa County Records lying Southerly of 

the following described line:  Commencing at the most Southerly corner of Lot 195 of said plat; 

thence along a curve to the left having a radius of 483.80 feet, an arc length of 180.95 feet and 

whose long chord bears North 35 degrees 18 minutes 12 seconds West 179.90 feet; thence North 

45 degrees 47 minutes 58 seconds West 70.10 feet; thence North 50 degrees 41 minutes 58 

seconds West 57.67 feet to the point of beginning of said line; thence South 39 degrees 18 



Point West I PUD 

As Revised & Approved by Board  
                                     11/17/2011 

 

23 

minutes 01 second West 82.96 feet; thence South 50 degrees 41 minutes 15 seconds East 20.00 

feet; thence South 39 degrees 17 minutes 59 seconds West 87.59 feet to the point of ending. 

 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM Commencing at the most Northerly corner of Lot 156 of said 

Heneveld‟s Supervisor‟s Resubdivision of Macatawa Park; thence North 50 degrees 01 minutes 

West along the Westerly side of Bay Road 20.00 feet; thence South 39 degrees 59 minutes West 

60.00 feet; thence South 50 degrees 01 minute East 20.00 feet to the Westerly corner of said Lot 

156; thence North 39 degrees 59 minutes East 60.00 feet to the place of beginning. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Point West I PUD -  rev by Board 11-17-2011 SF File No. 89-1281 



kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
X

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
Nederveld Inc./Greg Raad

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
(616) 575-5190

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
March 31, 2015

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
33

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
387

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
019

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
Point West I LLC/Mark Harmsen

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
Point West I LLC

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
2365 South Shore Drive, Macatawa, Michigan 49434

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
harmsenm@hotmail.com

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
(616) 293-9606

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
*Re-filed June 8, 2016

kcavanaugh
Typewritten Text
*Fee already on file with Township from previous submittal







Date: July 14, 2016 

 

To:  Park Township Board 

 

RE:  Agenda Item 9.b:  Ottawa County Fair Board Sunday Use Request 

 

The Ottawa County Fair Board has requested that you approve a corporate picnic event 

for Sunday, August 7.  The reservation is for Heinz Kraft and will not include any music 

or alcohol service.  

 

The current lease with OCF requires any Sunday use to be approved by the township 

board.   

 

Manager’s Recommendation:  To approve the request by the OCF for a corporate event 

on Sunday, August 7, 2016. 

  



--------------------------------- 

From: "Jeff Myaard"   

To: "Loran Serne"  

Cc:   

Sent: Wed, 15 Jun 2016 07:30:05 -0400  

Subject: RE: Kraft Heinz Company Picnic 

One of our directors, Loran Serne has already asked to be put on the agenda at the next Park Township 

board meeting. We will let you know as soon as possible.  

Jeff Myaard   

Ottawa County Fair  

--------------------------------- 

On Jun 14, 2016 6:57 PM, <Kaitlin.Brower@kraftheinzcompany.com> wrote: 

Jeff - That would be great.  Please request permission and let us know if that day would work.  How  

long do you anticipate it would take to find out if they could grant permission? 

  

Thanks, 

Kaitlin 

-----------------------------------  

From: Jeff Myaard [mailto:myaardfire@gmail.com]   

Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 4:41 PM  

To: Brower, Kaitlin E  

Subject: RE: Kraft Heinz Company Picnic 

  

We need to get permission from Park Township per our rental agreement.  We can ask permission if you 

wish us to. 

Jeff Myaard   

Ottawa County Fair  

On Jun 14, 2016 4:33 PM, <Kaitlin.Brower@kraftheinzcompany.com> wrote: 

Thanks Jeff!  Is Sunday, August 7th available? 

-----------------------------------  

From: Jeff Myaard [mailto:myaardfire@gmail.com]   

Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 4:03 PM  

To: Brower, Kaitlin E  

Subject: Re: Kraft Heinz Company Picnic 

  

Sorry, I didn't get a chance to get back with you earlier today. Included is a price sheet.  The fairgrounds 

would be $1,500 and $150 for bathroom attendants.  Saturday August 6, 2016 is currently open for 

rental and August 26 is open.  

  

Jeff Myaard 

Ottawa County Fair 

  



------------------------------------ 

On Tue, Jun 14, 2016 at 3:22 PM, <Kaitlin.Brower@kraftheinzcompany.com> wrote: 

Hello – I’m following up on my email below.  Last week, I spoke with Jeff about having the Kraft Heinz 

company picnic at the Ottawa County fairgrounds.  He said he would look into availability for the 

beginning of August and would call me back, although I have not heard back from him.  I tried touching 

base with Jeff today at 616-XXX-XXXX and left him a message.  Just following up via email, too, to see if 

anyone can assist.  We are looking to book something quickly so we can start working out all the other 

details.  

  

You can reach me on my cell phone at 586-808-0858.  Looking forward to hearing from someone soon. 

  

Thanks! 

Kaitlin Brower 

-----------------------------------  

From: Brower, Kaitlin E   

Sent: Wednesday, June 08, 2016 3:21 PM  

To: 'picnics@ottawacountyfair.com'  

Cc: Flores, Olga (Olga.Flores@us.hjheinz.com)  

Subject: Kraft Heinz Company Picnic 

  

Hello, 

  

I work at the Kraft Heinz Factory in Holland, MI.  We are looking to do our company picnic  

around the beginning of August, and we are considering the Ottawa County Fairgrounds.  We  

have approximately 250 employees and would be looking to include employee family  

members as well.  We would like to reserve a picnic area and possibly bring in some family  

games and activities such as inflatables, lawn games, etc.  We would also like to have a catered  

meal.  We have a very tight budget.  Would someone be able to provide me with some details  

about picnic reservations at the Ottawa County Fairgrounds?  If it’s easier to talk live, you can  

call me on my cell at XXX-XXX-XXXX. 

  

Thank you! 

Kaitlin 

  

Kaitlin Brower 

Sr. HR Generalist – Holland, MI 

The Kraft Heinz Company 

Kaitlin.Brower@KraftHeinzCompany.com 

Office: 616-XXX-XXXX 

  

  



 

Date: July 14, 2016 

 

To:  Park Township Board 

 

RE:  Agenda Item 9.c:  Transit Committee Update: Propensity Study Funding 

 

At the May board meeting you discussed some issues related to transit service within 

the township.  At that time Steve Bulthuis, Executive Director for the Macatawa Area 

Coordinating Council (MACC) reported that grant funds might be available to conduct a 

“transit propensity” study, a study that would analyze and document transit use potential.  

The study methodology includes examining the demographics of township residents 

(age, income, disabilities, etc.) and attempts to project potential usage of transit 

services.  Mr. Bulthuis also indicated that the awarding of grant funds could be known by 

late June or early July.  

 

At this time the grants funds for this study have not yet been awarded to the MACC but 

this might be an opportune time to again review some of the issues involved with transit. 

 

Current issues being discussed by the Transit Committee include knowing the results of 

the transit propensity study, the estimate of riders and the economic numbers related to 

both anticipated revenues and expenses of transit service.  Rates for transit users will 

also be examined in detail. 

 

Manager’s Recommendation:     



From:  Steve Bulthuis <sbulthuis@the-macc.org> 
Sent:  Wednesday, June 29, 2016 10:59 AM 
To:  Jerry Hunsburger 
Cc:  Jerry Felix; Elisa Hoekwater 
Subject: RE: Park Township Transit Study 
 
Jerry, 
 
Unfortunately, we have not heard from MDOT regarding our grant application to conduct a Regional 
Transit Access and Connectivity Study (they did ask for some additional information so we believe we 
made the first cut).  MDOT is not saying when the awards will be announced. 
 
Regarding the analysis for your township, we would begin by completing the tasks that we intend to do 
for each of the non-transit areas of the MACC: 
 
1. Update our database with any known future developments  
2. Identify automobile ownership  
3. Identify income factors (median household income, etc.) 
4. Identify other data helpful to projecting ridership (population density, etc.) 
 
As I mentioned the last time I was at your shop, I think it is very important to supplement the traditional 
data noted above with some interviews of potential “rider generators” (e.g. adult group homes) to get a 
good understanding of their needs.  I am estimating we will need to conduct 3-5 interviews for PT.  
 
The deliverable will be a report that includes total estimated ridership, transit service option(s) and costs 
for providing the proposed service.    
 
The timeline included in the grant application for the work described above is to begin 9/23/16 and 
finish in April.  As I noted when we last talked, we can do the analysis for PT first which does not alter 
the start date much (we can look at a late August launch), but should be able to complete the portion 
for Park Township sooner than April (I will have to consult with Elisa and Linda LeFebre to get a better 
idea of how long they estimate a Park-only analysis would take). 
 
I also stand by my pledge made to your Board – Park Township’s costs for the effort will not exceed 
$10,000. If we get the grant, it will be less. 
 
Hopefully this is enough for your agenda packet.  As soon as I hear on our grant application I will contact 
you.   
 
Steve        
 
Steve Bulthuis 
Executive Director 
Macatawa Area Coordinating Council 
301 Douglas Avenue 
Holland, MI  49424 
616.395.2688 (p) 
616.395.9411 (f) 
www.the-macc.org 

c.org 

http://www.the-macc.org/


 

Date: June 9, 2016 

 

To:  Park Township Board 

 

RE:  Agenda Item 9.d:  MACC Bylaw Amendment 

 

For some time MACC has been reviewing its bylaws for clarification and more efficient 

operating procedures.  Supervisor Hunsburger has been instrumental in pushing this 

item since some sections of the bylaws have not been strictly adhered to. 

 

Attached is a copy of the draft amendments and we anticipate that MACC Executive 

Director Steve Bulthuis will be on hand to provide you additional details.   

 

The main amendment is to create a permanent seat on the Executive Committee 

reserved for a member jurisdiction.  At the present time all of the members of the 

Executive Committee cannot be a representative of the member jurisdictions.  While 

some pushed for all of the Executive Committee seats to be held by member 

jurisdictions the proposed amendment only provides for one of the five seats to be 

allocated to a member.   

 

In order for the amendment to become official it needs to be approved by each of the 

member communities (nine in all) and must be approved by two thirds of the members of 

each member jurisdiction. (The nine member communities include the cities of Holland 

and Zeeland, and the townships of Holland, Port Sheldon, Olive, Zeeland, Laketown, 

Fillmore and Park.) 

 

I must admit that this is the first organization I have been affiliated with that is not 

“governed” by its due paying members.  But, at least one member on the Executive 

Committee is a start. 

 

Manager’ Recommendation:       



 

On May 31, 2016, at 4:42 PM, Steve Bulthuis <sbulthuis@the-macc.org> wrote: 

Jerry, 

  

Article XII of the Bylaws states that, “All amendments to the Bylaws must be in writing and submitted to 

such units of government at least fifteen (15) days prior to any vote on such amendment”.  Thus the 

reference in my note below to the 15-day review period.  So, technically, no one should be taking action on 

these until June 15 at the earliest.  I am available June 9 or July 14 – whichever you prefer.  Let me know 

and I will be there. 

  

Steve     

  

Steve Bulthuis 

Executive Director 

Macatawa Area Coordinating Council 

301 Douglas Avenue 

Holland, MI  49424 

616.395.2688 (p) 

616.395.9411 (f) 

www.the-macc.org 

-------------------------------  

 

Subject: Revised MACC Bylaws 

Good Afternoon, 

  

Attached are the revised MACC Bylaws approved by the Policy Board as well as a memo from me noting the 

changes.   

  

Please remember that, per Article XII, a 2/3 vote of your board/council is needed for approval. 

This email is your official notice in writing, as required in Article Xii, and triggers the 15-day review period. 

  

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or if you need further assistance with this process. 

  

Thanks. 

  

Steve   

  

Steve Bulthuis 

Executive Director 

Macatawa Area Coordinating Council 

301 Douglas Avenue 

Holland, MI  49424 

616.395.2688 (p) 

616.395.9411 (f) 

www.the-macc.org 



















 

 

TO:  Park Township Board 

FROM: Professional Planner Selection Committee:   Ed deVries, Doug Dreyer, Jeff Pfost, 

Jerry Hunsburger, Skip Keeter, and Jan Steggerda 

 

DATE:  July 6, 2016 

 

RE:  Item 9.e: Recommendation - Contracted Professional Planning Services 

 

In April, 2016 the Board determined that alternatives for Professional Planning Services should 

be considered. To that end, the existing contract/job description for Professional Planning 

Services was sent to all Board members, appointed members of the Planning Commission & 

Zoning Board of Appeals, and staff asking for input and suggested changes. Once updated, this 

document was used as a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) was drafted. 

 

In May, 2016 a "Request for Qualifications for Professional Planning and Zoning Services" was 

issued. Proposals were due by June 14, 2016.  As of that date we received the following two (2) 

proposals: 

 

1.  McKenna Associates 

2.  MainStreet Planning Company 

 

The Committee met on June 16 to consider options and to review the proposals received. There 

was a brief discussion about contracting with another governmental unit in our area for Planning 

Services. Research indicated that this option was not available as there was not currently 

anyone in the area that Planner time available to share. Also, the possibility of having an 'in-

house' part-time planner was considered by the Committee and determined not to be a practical 

option at this time. 

 

The Committee carefully reviewed the two (2) proposals received and determined that both met 

the requirements stated in the RFQ.  Both appeared to have the experience, staff support and 

capability to meet the needs of Park Township. The Committee decided they wanted to meet 

with each company that submitted a proposal. Interviews were scheduled for Tuesday, June 

28TH.  A list of predetermined questions was developed and these were asked at each 

interview. 

 

Following the interviews, the Committee discussed the pros and cons of each company in 

relation to needs of Park Township. The Committee felt that either company could provide the 

needed planning services, however, there was 100% agreement that the best "fit" for Park 

Township was MainStreet Planning Company. 

 



The Committee unanimously recommends that MainStreet Planning Services be contracted as 

an "at will" contractor for Planning Services, subject to reference checks and working out final 

language in a Services Agreement.  NOTE: All reference checks were very positive with no 

concerns stated by any of the four municipalities contacted. 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Committee recommends that a "Professional Services Agreement 

for Planning Consulting Services" be signed with MainStreet Planning Company, Rockford, 

Michigan, with services as stated in our RFQ and our Agreement, and fees as stated in the Fee 

Agreement page of their proposal. 

 

ATTACHED: Fee arrangement from MainStreet Planning Co. proposal  

Professional Planning Services Agreement 

MainStreet Planning Company proposal 



































































































1 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR 

PLANNING CONSULTING SERVICES  

This Agreement is entered into this 14
th

 day of July, 2016 by and between Park Township, 

Ottawa County, State of Michigan, referred to as "Township" and MainStreet Planning Services, 

a Michigan Corporate Entity, referred to as "MainStreet."  

The Township desires to engage MAINSTREET to render professional planning services for the 

Township and MAINSTREET desires to provide said services and agrees to do so for 

compensation based upon the terms and conditions detailed below:  

SECTION I. SCOPE OF SERVICES.  

MAINSTREET shall perform the specified services under this agreement to provide on-going 

professional planning and zoning advisory assistance, as detailed below.  Services may be 

assigned verbally or in writing by the Township.  

1. Attendance as primary advisor to all Planning Commission meetings and as a 

supplemental advisor as needed at Zoning Board of Appeals and Township Board 

meetings.   

 

2. To fully research, review, make written reports, and make recommendations as necessary 

on proposals and/or relevant planning issues as may be assigned, including all site plans, 

special uses, subdivisions, land divisions, plats, site condominiums, PUD’s, rezoning and 

other administrative and statutory responsibilities of the Planning Commission and 

Zoning Board of Appeals.  Conduct site inspections as needed.  Send reports and other 

materials to Planning Commissioners or other Township officials in advance of meetings. 

 

3. To advise, assist and coordinate with Township officials on laws, statutes and practices 

surrounding land use development and zoning.  This includes researching and 

recommending language revisions or drafting text amendments to Township zoning and 

land use development ordinances.   

 

4. Upon authorization from the Township, provide communication for routine questions 

from the public on planning and zoning issues and procedures. 

 

5. Work directly with the Planning Commission and Township Board on periodic reviews 

and routine updates of the Township’s Master Plan, Zoning Ordinance or other pertinent 

ordinances or planning/zoning practices.  

 

6. Provide training to some or all members of the Planning Commission, Township Board, 

Zoning Board of Appeals or Township staff as requested by the Township Manager.  

 

7. Communicate and coordinate with Ottawa County, state and other local and regional 

agencies regarding township trends, plans and programs for rezoning, master planning and 

general Township development.  

 

8. Provide or advise on specialized planning services, such as parks and recreation planning, 

capital improvement programming, as requested by the Township Manager. 

 

9. Keep the Planning Commission and Township officials aware of new planning studies, 



2 

 

statutes, applicable case law, or new interpretations or commonly accepted practices being 

applied in the field of land use development, zoning and the support of sustainable 

community. 

 

10. Assist, as requested by the township, in the preparation of required legal notices for all 

Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals meetings, rezoning requests, and special use 

requests.  

 

11. Assist in review and preparation of agenda materials for all Planning Commission 

meetings and, if requested, Zoning Board of Appeals meetings.  Review draft minutes 

upon request.  

 

12. Provide phone access, email and establish times to meet citizens and/or township officials 

and applicants as needed and agreed upon.  
 

13. Maintain and revise application forms and checklists as requested.  

 

SECTION II. FEES: 

MAINSTREET will provide the above described services at the rates shown on the attached Fee 

Schedule (and as included in MAINSTREET’s original proposal, dated June 14, 2016), including 

all meetings, contacts, reviews, recommendations and other activities assigned by the Township.  

Mileage and incidental office related costs such as copying and report assembly will be billed 

separately on a reimbursement basis. 

SECTION III.  PRINCIPALS:  

 

It is understood by both parties that the principal planners assigned by MAINSTREET for 

conducting the Township services included in this agreement are Janis N. Johnson and Timothy J. 

Johnson.  Any assignments of those services by other employees or contractors to MAINSTREET 

shall be pre-approved by the Township.   

 

SECTION IV.  INSURANCE:  

 

MAINSTREET will provide general and professional liability insurance in an amount of at least 

$1,000,000 and will continue to keep such insurance policies in force for the term on this 

agreement.  The Township shall be named an additional insured on said policies.  

 

SECTION V. SCOPE OF SERVICES AMENDMENTS: 

The Township or MAINSTREET may, from time to time, request modifications of this 

Agreement or amendments to the Scope of Services to be performed hereunder. Such changes, 

including the amount of MAINSTREET's compensation, which are mutually agreed upon by the 

Township and MAINSTREET, shall be incorporated as written amendments to this agreement.  

SECTION VI. ASSIGNABILITY:  

The Agreement shall not be assigned or transferred by either MAINSTREET or the Township to 

any entity not connected with MAINSTREET without prior written approval by either party.  

 



3 

 

SECTION VII.  TOWNSHIP RESPONSIBILITY: 

If requested by MAINSTREET, Township shall furnish at no charge to MAINSTREET:  

1.  Copies of all reports, ordinances, maps, code of ordinances and bylaws or rules of 

procedure, plans, drawings, aerial photos, data and similar materials relevant to the 

performance of the scope of services.  

2.  The Township shall be responsible for any professional, legal, engineering or accounting 

services connected with any project and shall coordinate development reviews.  

3.  The Township shall be responsible for scheduling meeting rooms and the costs of 

publication for postings, notices and mailings.  

SECTION VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DATA:   

It is understood that most materials prepared for Township business are public records.  However, 

all of the materials developed shall be deemed to be property of the township and MAINSTREET 

shall not give out township materials or reports to anyone unless directed to do so by the 

Township.  MAINSTREET, however, may at times utilize materials they have prepared such as 

ordinances, for examples, to show to other municipalities who are considering preparing 

something similar.  MAINSTREET may also utilize maps and graphics that they have prepared 

for other municipalities when preparing proposals, to show examples of similar work.  

Upon completion or termination of this Agreement, all reports, charts, maps, and graphics shall 

become the property of the Township, and shall not be furnished to any other party without 

written permission of the Township.  

It is understood and agreed that all final documents, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, reports, 

and specifications prepared pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of professional service. 

They are and shall remain the property of the Township.  

SECTION IX. CONFIDENTIALITY:  

While it is understood that most materials prepared for the township business are public records, 

information obtained and reports prepared by MAINSTREET under this Agreement shall be 

considered confidential and shall not be made available to any individual or organization by 

MAINSTREET without prior approval of the Township.  

SECTION X:  TERMINATION;  

This professional services agreement may be terminated by either the Township or 

MAINSTREET upon thirty (30) days written notice.   In such case MAINSTREET shall be 

compensated by the Township for all work completed prior to termination upon delivery of 

products completed to the Township.  

SECTION XI. NON-DISCRIMINATION: 

MAINSTREET shall, when applicable, comply with the requirements of all federal, State, and 

Local laws, ordinances and regulations relating to minimum wages, social security, 

unemployment compensation insurance, and Worker's Compensation, and shall not discriminate 

against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex, creed, color or national 



4 

 

origin.  

 
SECTION XII. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS:  

In the performance of this Agreement, MAINSTREET agrees to comply with all applicable State, 

Federal, and local statutes, ordinances, and regulations, and obtain any and all permits applicable 

to the performance of this Agreement.  

IN WITNESS the Township and MAINSTREET have executed this Agreement as of the date 

above and in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan.  

PARK TOWNSHIP     MAINSTREET PLANNING COMPANY 

 

 

__________________________   _______________________________ 

Supervisor      by: Janis N. Johnson, Principal 

MainStreet Planning Company  

 

__________________________    

Clerk  

 

Date: _____________________   Date: ____________________ 



Date: July 14, 2016 

 

To:  Park Township Board 

 

RE: Agenda Item 9.f:  Recreation Software Purchase 

 

For some time now we have been reviewing software for recreation program 

registrations. In previous years we included up to $35,000 in the budget for this type of 

software and have included $20,000 in the current budget.  Our delay in purchasing 

software was our desirability of integrating any software into our BS&A accounting 

software.  Many systems can perform as needed but any financial transactions (entry 

fees) would have to be manually entered into our current system.   

 

After much searching and several site visits we have found a program that meets all of 

our requirements.  Attached for your review is a proposal from Rec Pro for a fully BS&A 

integrated system.  This is in use by many other statewide municipalities and will cost 

$13,000 for full implementation.  Additional annual fees will apply, as per the proposal.   

 

We currently generate nearly $90,000 from recreation related fees, generated by several 

thousand participants.  We believe this software system will greatly streamline the 

registration process, allow easier on line registration and generate variety of reports to 

better allow us to analyze our programs and participation.   

 

Included in the proposal are links to the RecPro web site (http://recprosoftware.com and 

http://recprosoftware.com/?page_id=23497 ).  Also included is a list of other 

municipalities that use this software.   

 

Recreation Director Dykens will also be available to answer any questions you may 

have.  

 

Manager’s Recommendation:  To approve the purchase of RecPro software in an 

amount of $13,000.  

 

 

http://recprosoftware.com/
http://recprosoftware.com/?page_id=23497


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

1 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

 

THE RECREATION SOFTWARE SOLUTION! 
 

Bid# 2843 
June 22, 2016 

 
 
 

Prepared by: Dale Geiger 
 (586) 469-4200 ext. 103 

dgeiger@recprosoftware.com 
 

http://recprosoftware.com/
mailto:dgeiger@recprosoftware.com
http://recprosoftware.com


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

2 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

Table of Contents 

 

 

Description 
 

Page 

Cover Letter 3 

Why ReCPro™ Software? 4 

Software Features Overview 5 

Hardware / Operating System Requirements 6 

References 8 

Pricing – Software, Support & Training 9 

5 Year Cost Projection 9 

Other Fees Associated with On-Line Registration 10 

Point of Sale Equipment Pricing 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://recprosoftware.com/


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

3 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

 
 

June 22, 2016 
 
Park Township Parks & Recreation 
Attn: Danielle Dykens 
52-152nd Avenue 
Holland, MI  49424 
 
Dear Daniele, 
 
I would like to express my appreciation for the opportunity you have given R.C. Systems to 
demonstrate our Parks & Recreation Management System called ReCPro™ Software and to 
provide this proposal. 
 
ReCPro™ Software is scalable so you can choose features based on your organization’s current 
needs and add features in the future as those needs expand.  We have prepared this proposal 

based on our understanding of your current needs.  CLICK HERE to review all of our product 

features on our website. 
 
R.C. Systems was founded in 1985 (31 Years) and has been offering products and services to the 
recreation market since 1995 (21 Years).  We offer user-friendly products that are proven and 
reliable.  We offer friendly, knowledgable and patient customer support that is second to none. 
 
Our goal is to build strong partnerships with our customers and continually improve our products 
to meet the expanding needs of those customers. 
 
We look forward to a continued long and mutually rewarding relationship between our two 
organizations.  Please do not hesitate to call if you have any more questions regarding our system 
or the services we can provide.   
 
Regards, 

 
Dale R. Geiger 
Vice President 
R.C. Systems, Inc. 
 
 
 
 

http://recprosoftware.com/
http://recprosoftware.com/?page_id=23497


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

4 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

Why ReCPro™ Software? 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Mobile Friendly 
ReCPro™ offers dynamic and 

responsive registration 
website designs. 

 

Social Media Sharing 
Our social media sharing 
tools will help increase 

interest and participation in 
your programs. 

 

User Friendly 
ReCPro is extremely easy to 

use and has always been 
“Designed with the User in 

Mind”. 

 

ReCPro Listens 
ReCPro™ encourages 
customers to provide 

feedback on recommended 
features to develop. 

 

First Class Support 
The support team at 

ReCPro™ is knowledgeable, 
friendly, patient and 

available when needed. 

 

Functional Scalability 
Choose features based on 
your department’s current 
needs.  Add features when 

those needs expand. 

 

Standard Reports 
ReCPro™ contains hundreds 

of standard reports.  All 
reports can be previewed, 

printed, emailed or exported. 

 

Customized Layout 
Customize layout & results 

of data grids & reports 
using the options for sorting 

& column choosing. 

 

Personalized Design 
Personalize your experience 

by choosing from several 
different standard themes 

for your internal users. 

http://recprosoftware.com/


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

5 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

ReCPro™ Software Features Overview 

 

 

CLICK HERE to review additional information about our product features 

 

 

 

Activity Registration 
Increase department 

efficiency by using ReCPro™ 
Activity Registration 

 

Online Registration 
Eliminate long lines by using 

ReCPro™ Online 
Registration 

 

Facility Reservation 
Avoid schedule conflicts by 

using ReCPro™ Facility 
Reservation 

 

Membership / Passes 
Increase member retention by 
using ReCPro™ Membership 

Management  

 

Child Care / Camps 
Increase department 

efficiency by using ReCPro™ 
Child Care Registration 

 

League Scheduling 
Save time by using the 

ReCPro™ League tools for 
drafting & scheduling 

 

Inventory / POS 
Manage inventory accurately 

by using the ReCPro™ 
Inventory and POS features 

 

Payment Processing 
Process payments with 

confidence by using 
ReCPro™ Pay Processing 

 

Statistical Reporting 
Evaluate data and make 
informed decisions by 

using ReCPro™ Reporting 

 

Locker Rentals 
Generate additional 

revenue by using ReCPro™ 
Locker Management 

 

E-mail Marketing 
Increase public awareness 

by using the ReCPro™ Email 
Marketing Tools 

 

Customer Mgmt 
Improve customer service by 

using ReCPro™ Customer 
Account Management 

http://recprosoftware.com/
http://recprosoftware.com/?page_id=23497


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

6 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

ReCPro™ Hardware / Operating System Requirements 

ReCPro™ is a Client/Server Application. It is a requirement for your department to supply a 
Windows Server and Windows Workstations that meet the requirements below. 
 
ReCPro™ SQL Server Database MUST be installed on a Windows Server on your LAN.  The 
selected server CANNOT be running Microsoft Exchange Server as SQL Server and Exchange 
Server cannot be installed on the same server.   ReCPro™ comes bundled with a SQL Server 
(Express Ed.) Database so it is NOT a requirement for your department to purchase SQL Server 
(Standard or Enterprise Ed.) unless you plan to purchase more than 25 User Licenses. 
 

 
Required Software: 

 Microsoft.Net Framework 4.5 

 Microsoft SQL Server 2014, 2012 or 2008 (ReCPro™ comes bundled with the Express Ed.) 

 Windows Based Operating System (both Client and Server) 
 
Supported SQL Server Versions: (IMPORTANT: We no longer support SQL Server 2005) 

 SQL Server 2014 (Express, Standard or Enterprise)  

 SQL Server 2012 (Express, Standard or Enterprise)  

 SQL Server 2008 (Express, Standard or Enterprise) 
 
Supported Client Operating Systems: (IMPORTANT: We no longer support Windows XP) 

 Windows 10 32bit/64bit 

 Windows 8 32bit/64bit 

 Windows 7 32bit/64bit 

 Vista (SP2) 32bit/64bit 
 

Supported Server Operating Systems: (IMPORTANT: We no longer support Windows Server 2003) 

 Windows Server 2012 R2 

 Windows Server 2012 

 Windows Server 2008 R2 

 Windows Server 2008 
 

Supported Windows Virtualization Solutions:  

 VMWare Player 

 Hyper-V 

 VirtualBox 

 Virtual PC 
 

http://recprosoftware.com/


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

7 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

ReCPro™ Hardware / Operating System Requirements 

Space Requirements:  

 SQL Server (Express Ed.) can generally be used in many situations. SQL Server 2014 & 
2012 (Express Ed.) have a 10 gigabyte size limit and SQL Server 2008 (Express Ed.) has a 
4 gigabyte database size limit.  If at any time, your data requirements start to get close 
to this limit, you can easily upgrade to the Standard or Enterprise Edition of SQL Server 
without any data loss. 
 

 The client application is relatively small and only takes up a few hundred megabytes of 
space.  Aside from the (.net) Frameworks requirements, disk space on the client 
desktop is minimal. 

 

 

Using ReCPro™ Online Registration requires you to either host the Registration Website on an 
internal server (preferably on the same server ReCPro™ is installed) or host with one of our 
recommended 3rd Party web host partners (currently DiscountASP or InfoQuest). 
 

Web Server Requirements: (if you host Registration Website internally)  

 Minimum 4 GB RAM  

 Minimum Dual Core processor 

 Microsoft.Net Framework 4.5 

 Microsoft SQL Server 2014, 2012 or 2008 (ReCPro™ comes bundled with the Express Ed.) 

 Microsoft Internet Information Services (IIS) – (Supported Versions: 8.5, 8.0, 7.5, 7.0, 6.0) 

 Minimum Bandwidth – 768 Up and Down 

 SSL Certificate (256-bit) 
 

Port Requirements: 

 Hosting on your Internal Server will require you to open BOTH port 80 (HTTP) AND port 
443 (SSL).  The website will not function properly without both of these ports.   
 

 Hosting at Third Party will require you to open a SECURE port on your network so the 
website can communicate with and pass data to the internal Microsoft SQL Server 
Database using Web Services – EXAMPLE : Port 443 (SSL) 

 
Supported Website Browsers:  (for Online Registration Website) 

 Internet Explorer (Supported Version 11, 10, 9, 8) 

 Microsoft Edge 

 Google Chrome  

 Mozilla Firefox  

 Safari 

 

http://recprosoftware.com/


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

8 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

ReCPro™ References 

 
 Northwest Ottawa Recreation Authority   Grand Haven, MI 

Jill Vander Stel – Director                             Phone: (616) 850-5125   
vandersj@ghaps.org                                         http://nora.ghaps.org 

 
 Township of Byron Parks & Recreation                Byron Center, MI 

Derek Melville – Director                         Phone: (616) 878-1998  
Derek@byrontownship.org                               
 

 Cedar Springs Area Parks & Recreation                 Cedar Springs, MI 
Amanda Gerhardt – Director               Phone: (616) 696-7320 
director@csaparksandrec.com                       
 

 Hudsonville Community Education                Hundsonville, MI 
Rebecca Fabiano – Manager               Phone: (616) 669-1740 x3 
rfabiano@hudsonville.k12.mi.us                http://commed01.hudsonville.k12.mi.us 
 

 City of Marshall Recreation                            Marshall, MI 
Justin Miller – Recreation Superintendent Phone: (269) 781-5166    
jmiller@cityofmarshall.com                            http://www.marshallrec.com  

 
 Pittsfield Township Parks & Recreation                 Pittsfield Township, MI 

Mark Gasche – Director                                     Phone: (734) 822-2119   
gaschem@pittsfield-mi.gov                                      http://recreation.pittsfield-mi.gov 

 
 City of Saline Parks & Recreation                 Saline, MI 

Jody Roberts – Recreation Secretary           Phone: (734) 429-3502  
jroberts@cityofsaline.org                 http://salinerec.com 

 
 DeWitt Area Recreation Authority (DARA) DeWitt, MI 

Chad Stevens – Director                                  Phone: (517) 482-5117 
cstevens@dewittrecreation.org                 http://www.dewittrecreation.org  

 
 West Bloomfield Parks & Recreation         West Bloomfield, MI 

Kelly Hyer – Recreation Supervisor              Phone: (248) 451-1910  
khyer@westbloomfieldparks.org                

 

 
 

http://recprosoftware.com/
mailto:vandersj@ghaps.org
http://nora.ghaps.org/
mailto:Derek@byrontownship.org
mailto:director@csaparksandrec.com
mailto:rfabiano@hudsonville.k12.mi.us
http://commed01.hudsonville.k12.mi.us/
mailto:jmiller@cityofmarshall.com
http://www.marshallrec.com/
mailto:gaschem@pittsfield-mi.gov
http://recreation.pittsfield-mi.gov/
mailto:jroberts@cityofsaline.org
http://salinerec.com/
mailto:cstevens@dewittrecreation.org
http://www.dewittrecreation.org/
mailto:khyer@westbloomfieldparks.org


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

9 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

ReCPro™ Software, Annual Support & Training  

 

Feature 
Retail 
Price 

Sale         
Price 

Annual 
Support & 

Maint(2) 

Online 
Setup & 
Training  

Year 1 
Grand 
Total 

Base Package(1) with (5) Concurrent 
User Licenses $4,000  $2,000  $1,000  $700  $3,700  

eCommerce Website $4,000  $2,000  $1,000  $700 $3,700  

Activity Registration $1,500  $750  $375  $400  $1,525  

Facility Reservation $1,500  $750  $375  $400  $1,525  

League Scheduling $1,000  $500  $250  $300  $1,050 

Integrated Payment Processing $1,000  $500  $250  $0  $750 

Sub-Total – Features  $13,000  $6,500  $3,250  $2,500  $12,250  

      

Additional Annual Fees     Annually   1st Year 

SSL Certificate(3)     $250   $250 

3rd Party Website Hosting(4)     $500    $500  

Sub-Total – Additional Fees      $750   $750  

      

Grand Total – Year 1 $13,000  $6,500  $4,000  $2,500  $13,000  
(1) Base Package Includes: (Customer Account Management, G/L Export, Merchandise Sales, E-mail 

Marketing and System Admin Features for User Management and System Setup). 
(2) Annual Support ($3,250.00) is billed annually and will increase a maximum of 10% every 3 years.   
(3) SSL Cert will keep all customer info secure on your registration site.  This is a REQUIRED annual fee. 
(4) Website Hosting is a REQUIRED annual fee if you cannot host the registration site internally. 

 

5 Year Cost Projection 

 
5 Year 
Costs 

Software 
License 

Annual(1) 
Support 

SSL        
Cert 

Website 
Hosting 

On-Line(2) 
Training 

Annual 
Payment 

Year 1  $6,500 $3,250  $250  $500 $2,500 $13,000 

Year 2  $0  $3,250 $250  $500  $0  $4,000  

Year 3  $0  $3,250   $250  $500  $0  $4,000  

Year 4  $0   $3,575  $250  $500  $0  $4,325   

Year 5  $0   $3,575  $250  $500  $0  $4,325   

Total $6,500   $16,900  $1,250  $2,500  $2,500  $29,650   

 
(1) Annual Support is billed annually and will increase a maximum of 10% every 3 years. 

 

http://recprosoftware.com/


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

10 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

Other Fees Associated with Online Registration  

The purpose of this section is to bring to your attention ‘Other Fees’ you may incur by utilizing 
the Online Registration features.  The fees listed here are not part of the contract with R.C. 
Systems, Inc., they are simply listed so there are no surprise costs down the road. 
 
 

  # of Years Annual  
# Description of Other Fees  Up Front Fee Total 
1 SSL Certificate                                           1 $250.00  $250.00(*)  
2 3rd Party Web Hosting  (if necessary) 1 $500.00  $500.00(*)  
3 Website Domain Name  (if necessary) TBD TBD TBD 

 
(1) If you purchase ReCPro™ ‘Online Registration’, the SSL Certificate is REQUIRED and will keep all 

personal customer information ‘secure’ on your website.  Our recommendation is to let us purchase 
the SSL on your behalf so we can maintain the renewal whenever it expires annually.  Upon purchase 
and renewal, we will bill your department for the fee defined above.  We purchase the SSL 
Certificates from GeoTrust.  http://www.geotrust.com  

 
(2) If you cannot Internally host the ‘Online Registration’ website, it is REQUIRED that you host the 

registration site with one of our recommended 3rd Party Web Hosting partners.   You can eliminate 
the listed annual cost by hosting the ‘Online Registration’ site on an internal server.  If you intend to 
use one of our partners, our recommendation is to allow us to register the account and be the 
administrator as it will result in faster and smoother installation and updates of the website. 

 
(3) If you currently don’t own a ‘domain name’, you may decide to purchase a domain name for your 

new registration website.  If you purchase more years up front, it will reduce the ‘annual fee’ although 
you will pay the full amount up front. You can go to http://www.register.com to check the availability 
of different domain names.  

 

(*)  In the event the vendor increases their costs for these services, we will be forced to pass those increased 
costs on to your organization. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://recprosoftware.com/
http://www.geotrust.com/
http://www.register.com/


  ReCPro™ Software Proposal 
 

R.C. Systems, Inc.    
35807 Moravian Drive 
Clinton Township, MI  48035 

11 

 

http://ReCProSoftware.com 
 (586) 469-4200 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION – Prices Good for 90 Days 
 

Point of Sale Equipment  

 

 Price   
Optional POS Equipment (for purchase through ReCPro™) Each Image 

 
Cash Drawer (POS-X ION-C16) - This 16” Cash Drawer will sit on top of the 
counter and allow you to have a secure place to keep all cash, check and 
credit card receipts.  The Cash Drawer connects to Receipt Printer and 
opens when a receipt prints.  Included:  USB Cable (EVO-CD-USB) 

 

$175.00 
 

 
 

 
Mounting Brackets (EVO-CD16B) - If you would like to Mount your Cash 
Drawer under a counter, these brackets will be necessary.   

 
$25.00 

  

 

 

 
Receipt Printer (POS-X EVO-PT3-1HU) - This EVO HiSpeed Receipt Printer 
will print quality thermal receipts and connects to the Cash Drawer. 

 
$285.00 

  

 

 
 

 
Thermal Receipt Paper (XWP-T220) – 1 Case (50 Rolls) Thermal Receipt 
Paper. 
 

$100.00 
 

 
 

 
**  ReCPro™ reserves the right to change at any time the Make, Model & Pricing of Equipment. 
Please verify latest information with ReCPro™ prior to placing an order. 
 

 

http://recprosoftware.com/


Date: July 14, 2016 

 

To:  Park Township Board 

 

RE: Agenda Item 9.g  Establish Public Hearing on Winter Plowing of Bike Paths 

 

A few months back you discussed an issue related to plowing of bike paths.  There was 

some thought given to perhaps discontinuing plowing some sections altogether.  Part of 

that discussion also included receiving public comment prior to any decision.  

 

In order to move this item along and reach a decision in plenty of time for the plowing 

season you  may wish to consider setting a public hearing sometime yet this summer or 

early fall.   

 

Attached for your review is a map of the entire pathway system and also a map showing 

those sections that are within 1 mile of all school facilities.  

 

Options to perhaps consider include continue plowing all paths, discontinue all plowing 

activities or to discontinue plowing on only certain sections.   

 

Manager’s Recommendation:   

 

 



WAUKAZOO
SCHOOL

GREAT LAKES
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

WEST OTTAWA SOUTH
HIGH

SCHOOL

LAKESHORE
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

WOODSIDE
SCHOOL

LAKEWOOD 
SCHOOL

PARK TOWNSHIP
AIRPORT

PARK
TOWNSHIP
OFFICE

VENTURA
CEMETERY

RECREATION
  CENTER

TUNNEL
PARK

WINSTROM
PARK

RILEY
TRAILS

CAMP 
GENEVA

MAINTENANCE

PUBLIC 
BOAT RAMP

FIREHOUSE

COMMUNITY 
CENTER

LAKEWOOD
CEMETERY

FAIRGROUNDS

HOLLAND
STATE
PARK

WEST OTTAWA NORTH
HIGH

SCHOOL

HOLIDAY
WEST

LAKESHORE 
CEMETERY

RANSOM ST.
PARK

LEISURE ESTATES
MOBILE
HOME

LEISURE

PARK

PARK

WEST
OTTAWA

SCHOOLS

HOLLAND
TOWNSHIP

MAINT. BLDG.

FIRE
STATION

QUINCY PARK

DUNTON
PARK

BEECH-WOOD

VILLAGE

FIRE 
STATION

6

7

30

19

18

36

1
23

4

9
10 11 12

13141516

21
22 23

24

2526

27

28

33

34
35

LakeLake
MacatawaMacatawa

LakeLake

Macatawa
Macatawa

La
ke 

     
    M

ich
iga

n
La

ke 
     

    M
ich

iga
n

PINEPINE
CREEKCREEK

BAYBAY

MACATAWAMACATAWA
BAYBAY

BIGBIG
     BAY     BAY

MARCIA
LANE

ELWILL
COURT

FELCH

GA
IL 

AV
EN

UE

ESSENBURG DRIVE

JIL
L A

VE
.

RO
UN

DH
OU

SE
 LN

.
WO

OD
SID

E 
DR

IV
E

ELWOOD
COURT

PINE CREEK
CT.

DEER COVE
DRIVE

GREAT NORTHERNSUNVIEW
DRIVE PHEASANT

RUN DEPOT LANEFOX TRAIL DR.

13
6T

H

OTTAWA
CREEK
LANE

BROOK LANE

RILEY
WATERCREST

COURT FRANKLIN                 STREET
N. KINGWOOD

COURT

S. KINGWOOD
COURT

KINGWOOD DR. BEL AIR STREET

EL
EM

ED
A 

ST
RE

ET

EVERGREEN
DRIVESHERWOOD

STREET MAPLE
STREET

ELEMEDA STREET

MA
YW

OO
D 

AV
EN

UE
OA

KD
AL

E 
CO

UR
T

W. MAE ROSE AVE.WOODLAND
DRIVE

LIBERTY STREET

MAYFLOWER
STREET

ELM LANE
MAE ROSE
AVENUEMYRA LANE MAYFAIR ST.

MARY
AVENUE

NEW

14
4T

H 
   A

VE
NU

E

AV
EN

UE

QUALITY DRIVE

OA
SI

S
AV

EN
UE

MIRAGE    CT.

SP
RU

CE
 LN

.

BYRAN DRIVE
SPRUCE
HOLLOW

DRIVE

KE
RR

I C
OU

RT

BENT

PINE CT. KRISTIN
LANE

14
0T

H 
AV

EN
UE

WESTWOOD LANE

CAMPUS AVE.

BE
NT

 PI
NE

 DR
.

PINE
CREEK
DRIVE

14
2N

D 
AV

EN
UE

ERIC
COURT JACK

STREETASPEN VALE
MICHELLE CT.

DUNCAN STREET

CA
MI

EL
A

CO
UR

T

BOER RUN

WESTBURY
COURT

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
LA

NE

PINE MEADOW
 DRIVE

MA
YF

IE
LD

ST
RE

ET

MA
PL

E A
VE

NU
E

   S
HA

DY
B RO

O
K 

 D
RI

VE

ROSE PARK DR.

MANUFACTURER'S
DRIVECAROL

STREET
CAROL ST.

BUTTERNUT DRIVE

JULIUS ST.

14
2N

D 
AV

E.

TH
OM

AS
 AV

EN
UE ELBERDENE

STREETDONNA
ST.

JA
CO

B 
AV

E.
PIN

E 
W

OO
D 

DR
. PINE WOODCOURT KIMBER

LANEHAYES STREET HAYES AVE.

14
2N

D 
AV

E.

PINE WATER
WAY

CHRISTO-
PHER CT.PINE LAKE

COURT GARFIELD       AVE.

EL
M

ST
RE

ET

BE
EC

H 
    

   S
TR

EE
T

ROBAR DR.

ARTHUR              AVE.

RIVER AVE.

N. CALVIN
STREET

FIRST AVE.

SECOND           AVE.

THIRD

JEFFERSON

STREETFOURTH

MADISON ST.

AN
ILI

NE
    

    
    

    
    

    
AV

EN
UE

FIFTH

MONROE ST.

ADAMS

STREETSIXTH AVE.

DOUGLAS       
       

   STREET

OAK HARBOR

JACKSON STREET

HOWARD

DOUGLAS AVENUE

GREENLY

PINEVIEW DRIVE

OAKVALLEY DR.

AVE.

CO
MM

ER
CE

 C
T.

SU
NN

YJ
UN

E
AV

EN
UE

JAMES

BURKE AVENUE
TIMBERWOOD

COURT
MANLEY AVENUE

DUNTON       AVENUE

VANDER VEEN AVENUE

FILLMORESTREET

(BEELIN
E)

WHITE
SPRUCE

CT.
JUNIPER

CT.

RED-
OAK

CT.

SU
NN

YC
RE

ST
CT

.

PINE CREST DRIVE
WEDGEWOOD

ORCHARD HILL
(VAC) STREET

WI
SP

ER
IN

G
WO

OD
S D

R.

SHORT
ST.

AVE.

AVE.

AVE.

RIDGEWOOD DR.

LAKE STREET

DIV
ISI

ON
 AV

E.

LANE

SHEFFIELD

FE
LC

H
VIE

W

TENNIS
CT

PARK ST.

N.   SHORE DR.

FOX TRAIL DR.

CREEK CT.

BYRAN DRIVE

  H
O WARD AVE.

C.
S.

X. 
 R

AI
LW

AY

CASCADE DR.

TRADITION
WAY

N, S, E, & W

CARMELLA LN.

PINE DR.

EVER-
GREEN
LANE

CHERRY LN.

SCARLET OAK CT.

PINEVIEW 
     LN.OA

K L
N.

NESTLE-
WOOD  DR.

LIB
ER

TY
DR

IVE

ST
.

HAZELBANK RD.

PANTHER DR.

1 2
3 4 5

EDGE
DRIVE

SA
GEB

RU
SH

DR
.

JO
SH

UA

SIL
VE

R 
FIR

CO
UR

T

REMINGTON LN.

FIR   DRIV
ERE

D 
AL

DE
R

DR
IVE

PE
AC

HL
EA

F
CO

UR
T

TH
OR

NB
UR

Y
DR

IVE

CO
UR

T

CO
UR

T

CREEK

VENTURA  DRIVE

LA
KE

S E
DG

E D
R.

NI
LE

S

LAKEVIEW ROAD

DE
FE

YT
ER

EL
IS

AB
ET

H

INAVALE AVENUE

NEW HOLLAND
FENDT  FARM DRIVE

RYAN

RANSOM STREET

AV
EN

UE

OAKLEAF

PINYON STREET
DRIVE RED PINE

ES
TATES

VER M
AE D R IVE

LAKE COURT 1ST STREET AV
EN

UE

2ND STREET

3RD STREET

4TH STREET

5TH STREET GREENLY
BELLWOOD
COURT6TH STREET

BROCKWOOD
COURT

EA
ST

ER
N 

AV
EN

UE

NORTH STREET

MA
PL

E 
BE

AC
H 

DR
.

EL
D E

R W
OO

D A
VE

NU
E DURWOOD

STREETSOUTH STREET

HO
LL

YW
OO

D 
AV

EN
UE

8TH STREET

RILEY
SHORE OAKS
EAST LANE SHORE OAKS

WEST LANE 

LAKE   DR I V E

EA
GL

E

AV
EN

UE

QUINCY

16
0T

H

STREET

15
2N

D

STREET

STREET

BUTTERNUT

14
8T

H

TW
IN

 O
AK

S
LA

NE

TWIN OAKS
STREET

14
6T

H 
AV

EN
UE

LILLIAN   STREET

JA
ME

SW
AY

AV
EN

UE

DR
IVE

ME MO RI AL

J AMESWAY AVENUE

FOXBORO
COURT

CREEK
EDGE

COURT

FO
XB

OR
O  

LA
NE

PI
NE

 ED
GE

BROOKW
IN

D 
DR

IVE

ST
AN

WO
OD

DR
IVE

WOODPINE DRIVE

DR
IVE

ASHLEY LANE

SA
ND

Y 
PIN

ES
 D

R

STREET

AV
EN

UE

COURT

COURT

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

KA
RS

TA
N 

HE
AT

H 
DR

.

DRIVE

DRIVE

ROLLI NG OAKS LANE

PHEASANT
TRAIL 

GEORGIAN BAY DRIVE 

HA
RK

EM
AS

 C
RE

EK
 DR

IVE 

TALL GRASS 
WEST CT. TALL GRASS

EAST CT.

STARBOARD DRIVE

A NCHOR

PO
RT

DR
IVE

CT.

AVENUE

LA
NE

CO
UR

T

COURT
COURT

DRIVE

TIM
BE

R 
LA

KE
  E

A S
T

TIMBER
CROSSING

TIM
BE

R 
LA

KE
 W

ES
T

SE
GO

NQ
UI

N 
DR

IVE
 TRA I L

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

14
6T

H

ROAD

DRIVE

DR
IVE

FO
RE

ST
 D

R.
AV

EN
UE

COURT

COURTST
RE

ET

COURT

DUNE DRIVE

DR
IVE

BA
Y

AVENUE

DRIVE

1

2
3

SHADOW DR.

AVE.

AVE.

AV
E.

MARLACOBA DR LAURIE LANE

GO
LD

CR
ES

T
DR

IVE

LEISURE BOULEVARD

WENDY WAY

TR
 TR

AI
L

16
8T

H

ER
IN

 IS
LE

 D
RI

VE
GO

LD
EN

EY
E

LAKEWOOD
TIFFANY RI DGE DRIVE

HY
DE

R 
CT

.

CT.

COUGAR
CT.

AV
E.

BIM
IN

I C
OU

RT

LA
KE

FR
ON

T D
RI

VE
GRISWOLD WALK

RANDALL
STREET

SU
N R

IDG
E D

R.

SUN CHASE DR.

LONG CT.

WALK

16
0T

H 
AV

E.

EAGLE BLVD.

WOODLARK     DRIVE

SHORELINE
DR

WO
OD

W
IN

D 
 D

RI
VE

17
0th

BR
IG

HT
ON

 STREET WOOD-
WIND

JU
DI

TH

LA
KE

CT. MELVIN
STREET

TIFFANY

LA
KE

 S
HO

RE

GLADMORE
STREET S. 

HA
MP

TO
N 

ST
.

NO
RT

H 
BR

ISTOL ST.

SO
UT

H 

BRISTOL

JACOBUSSE

BRISTOL
STREET

LAKEVIEW
 AVENUE

PERRYEMMA
STREET

WARNER DRIVE

1. GEORGE AVENUE

STRAIGHT AVE.

2. NORTH IDLEWOOD ROAD

CH
EY

EN
NE

  A
VE

.

NA
VA

JO
 AV

E.

AL
GO

NQ
UI

N 
AV

E.

SANDY
COURT

SANDCASTLE DR.

G OLDENEYE  DRIVE

TRILLIUM
WAY

SILVER ID G E D RIVETIFFANY
SHORES COURT BOULEVARD

BAY CIRCLE

COURT

CT
.

PINTA DRIVE

COLUMBUS STREET

BA
Y C

I R
C L

E  
D R

IV
E

STATE STREET

MAIN STREET

WE
ST

ER
N A

VE
NU

E

WASHINGTON STREET

STREET
CROSSWIND COURT

CR
OS

SW
IN

D

BEACHOTTAWA

BL
AI

N A
VE

NU
E

15
9T

H 
AV

EN
UE

WO
OD

 AV
EN

UE

WAUKAZOO

OA
KW

OO
D A

VE
NU

E

WINTERGREEN
DR.POST AVENUE

VALLEY VIEW
AVENUE

EDMEER DRIVE

FR
AN

CE
S

AV
EN

UE

VENESSA

SH
AR

ON
 AV

EN
UE

LIL
AC

 AV
EN

UE

PR
AI

RI
E A

VE
NU

E

WI
LL

IA
M 

AV
EN

UE

ME
AD

OW
CR

EE
K

FOXHAVEN DRIVE
TRAIL HEAD

DRIVE
HUNTERS TRAIL

2.

HI
GH

BA
NK

S 
CO

UR
T

POWDERHOR N SYLVAN STREETWO
OD

LA
ND

PLEASANT
RIDGE DR.

HO
ME

14
5T

H

ELDON ST.

BAY RIDGE DRIVE

MEADOW RIDGE DRIVE

BAY ME A D
OW

S 
DR

.
COUNT'S

COVE
COURT

WINTERSUN PLACE

ACORN
PINE BAY AVENUE

FOR EST  HILL S OLD TOWN ROAD
N.  BAYWOOD DR. GREENHILL

DRIVE

PIN
E 

BA
Y C

T.

CRESTWOOD
DRIVE

AV
E.

AV
E.

DRIVE

VAN'S

AVENUE

AVENUE

STREET

ST.

ST.

GR
OV

E 
   A

VE
.

DRIVE DR
IVE

AVENUE

AV
EN

UE

DRIVE

(FOREST)

(AVENUE)

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

HA
MI

LT
ON

 D
R.

DRIVE

FA
LL

EN
LE

AF
    

    
LN

.

SUPERIOR
COURT

SA
ND

YP
OI

NT
AMBERTRACE

DR.

S. BAYWOOD DR.

SYCAMORE

WISTERIA DRIVE

IR
OQ

UO
IS

 AV
E.

TUNNEL
BREEZE

IDLEWOOD RD.

COURT
3. SOUTH IDLEWOOD ROAD

BASIN COURT

WI
ND

ST
RE

AM
CT

.MI
CH

IG
AN

 AV
EN

UE

ORCHARD AVE. BREEZE
CT.

ARAPAHOE RD. BREEZE D RIVE

TANGLEWOOD
CT.RUTH AVE.

WHISPERING

JO
Y R

OAD

HEIGHTS
AVENUE

TA
NG

LE
WO

OD
   D

R.CENTRAL
BOWER STREETSUNSET BL UFF DRIVE

SUMMER-
SANDS CT. WYNWOOD

CT.

TIMBERCREST
COURT

SUMMERWIND
CT.

WOODLARK D R IVESU N

SE
T B

LUFF DRIVE

DRIFTWOOD DR.

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON
 

 PINERIDGE
COURTJAMES

NO
RW

OO
D A

VE
.

CT.

GR
EE

NW
OO

D

15
2N

D

CIMMORAN DR.

SC
OUTS

 HILL

CHIPPEWA DR.

CHAPEL LN.

BENTWOOD COURT

STREET
SPINNAKER
COURT

3. SUNFLOWER CT.

ST
ILL

WATER DRIVEERIN ISLE
COURT

SUNDANCE
ERIN ISLE  DRIVE

WILD STEM DR. STO NE YLAKE DRIVE

RED STEM DRIVE
BLUE ISLE

TIFFANY SHORES  DRIVE

JILL LOUISE
BLUE ISL E  DRIVE

SANDY R UN
 DR

.

BLACK LAKE

CRESCENT WALK

LAKEWAY DR.BAY ROAD

BLUE BELL
             CT. SCOTCH DR.

JE
NI

SO
N

PA
RK

 AV
E.

LA
KE

SID
E R

OA
D

1S
T A

VE

2N
D 

AV
E

LE
ON

AR
D

32ND

OAK
WOOD 

AV
E.

BAY COURT

FO XDO
W N RD.

SEMINOLE DRIVE

CH
ICA

GO

WILLOW STREET

LI T
T L

E   
S T

AT
IO

N SILVERSTONE
ROAD

NATCHEZ STREET GOOD-
WOOD

CT.
PORT CH

ES
TE

R  
R D

.

POPLAR STREET

DY
KE

N

WA
UK

AZ
OO

 D
RI

VE

AV
EN

UE

APACHE ST.

WAUKAZOO

BIRCH STREET

OAKHAM
PT ON WARWICK MAPLE  WALK

BIG

EDGEWOOD  DR.

CHIPPEWA DRIVE

FOREST DRIVE

MA
RQ

UE
TT

E

RO
OS

EV
EL

T

BEECH STREET

STONE  HARBO R RD.

ST.JAMES
CT.

WA UKAZOO DR IV
E

(FOREST AVENUE)

HEMLOCK AVE. WA
UK

AZ
OO

 D
R.

MARIGOLD LN.

PIN
E W

AL
KLINWOOD AVE.

SHORE
HIGHLAND

SOUTH
SUMMIT STREET

BE
EC

HW
OO

D 
ST

.

WOODLAWN

ST
EE

KE
TE

E A
VE

.

WH
ITM

AN

AV
EN

UE JEROME

AV
EN

UE

VIRGINIA PL.

AN
DE

RS
ON

S

ELMERWOLVERINE ST.

HA
RR

IN
GT

ON
 AV

E.

HARRINGTON
SCHOOL

SA
UN

DE
RS

HARDINGBLVD.CO
OL

ID
GE

AV
EN

UE

HO
LL

AN
D 

 AV
E.

STREET

OAK STREET

BA RKEN

TINE DRIVE

NORTH SHORE DRIVE

SE
A E

ST
A  

AV
E.

SU
NS

ET
BL

UF
F C

OU
RT

TIMB ERL E E DR IV E

BA
Y H

AV
EN

LE ISU RE L ANE

LA
KE

   BREEZE DR.

CREST DR. HARBOR INN ST.WR
EN

LA
NE

ORIOLE
LANE

CARDIN A L L
AN

E

EA G LE  
DR

IVE

EAGLE LANE

      
   O

TTAWA BEACH     
     

    
 R

OA
D

MAPLE STREETSUN
COURTLAKERIDGE DRIVE

DUNE

OA
K B

LU
FF

CT
. 

PINE STREET

WA
VE

 C
T.

SPRUCE STREET

OAK STREETSPYGLASS
HILL

LAKE STREET

ELM STREET

S. LAKESHORE DR.

ASH STREET

LAKE ST.

RICHARDSON
AVENUE

NO
RTH

   R
OAD 

TERRACE AVE.

L AKE MICHIGAN AVENUE

3RD.2ND.

BO
SM

A A
VE

.

B L A CK L
AK

E  A
VE

.1ST.

NO
RT

H 
PA

RK
 AV

E.

AUBURN AVE.

PAVILLION ST.

WOODLARK
COURT

LEIGH COURT

WINDRIF T WAY

KATRA DR.

AV
E.

HA
ZE

LW
OO

D
DR

IVE

16
0T

H
AV

E.PAUL ST.

DUNE CT.

NORTH WALK

WALK

LAWN      AVE.

BLUEGRASS LN.

BLUEFIELD DR.

MARKET ST.

SOUTHERN LN.

CO
LB

Y 
DR

.

LAKELAND AVE.

SH
AD

YS
ID

E A
VE

.

OL
YM

PI
A A

VE
.

PHOENIX PLACE

BELMONT LN.

BRADSHAW PARK LN.
HARRINGTON LANDING

 ST. C H A R L E S CI
R.

GRAND POINT

PO
IN

T
SU

PE
RI

OR
 C

T.

GEORGIAN BAY DR.

BEACHCOMBER WAY

1. MURPHY'S WAY
2. EVANSTON PARK PL.
3. ZELENKA FARMS LN.

MACATAWA LEGENDSBLVD.

W.
 PE

RR
Y

E. PERR Y CI
RC

LE

MA
TT

ISO
N  

DR
IV

E

6

1. CEDAR FALLS CT.
2. ANGEL FALLS CT.
3. WATERWHEEL CT.
4. ROCK TERRACE CT.
5. HORESHOE FALLS CT.
6. BROOK TROUT CT.

1
2

3

VAN DYKE

JA
ME

S
GA

TE CT
.

CH
RI

S 
CR

AF
T L

N.

CT.COMMODORE
LN.

SU
NF

IE
LD

 D
R.

WI
NT

ER
 

WI
NT

ER
OA

K W
.

OA
K E

.

WA
Y

WINTER- PINE

ISL
AN

D 
VIE

W
 D

R.

RED STEM DR.

WHITE SPRING DR.

KELLY RIDGE 
DR.

E.B. CREEK DR.

BR
ET

T W
OO

D 
CT

.

OL
D 

MA
CA

TA
WA

 
    

    
    

    
    

CT
.

NOROAK

INTERLAKE WALK

RD
.

BL
AC

KB
ER

RY
 

CT
.

EAGLE PL.

CT.

INTERLAKE WALK

MICHIGAN WALK

GROVE WALK

CRESENT WALK

SE
AW

AT
CH

 R
D.

DUNE VIEW
COURT 

NU
TT

AL
L  

    
 C

T.

OAK CREEK
LN.

TIMBER RIDGE
LN.

SILVER

SHELBY LN.

AV
EN

UE
SU

N 
ME

AD
OW

 

LAKESIDE RD.

DUNE CT.

BLUE BELL CT.

GROVE
MICHIGAN WALK

GRISWOLD WALK

BAY ROAD

AMBERWOOD 

OLDE
DEER TRAILAVALON DRIVE

4. TRICKLE STONE CT.
5. WILDFLOWER CT.

2. MALLARD CT.

6. MEADOWLARK CT.
7. WILLOW CREEK CT.
8. PEBBLE CREEK CT.
9. WATERLILLY CT.

1. WILLOWVIEW CT.

10. PEBBLE STONE CT
11. RIPPLING BROOK CT.
12. WHISPERING WAY
13. COTTAGE LN.

1.

3.4.
5.
6.7.

5.8.
9.

10.

11.

13.

12.

SAND DR.

FL
OR

EN
CE

DRIVE

CH
ER

RY
 ST

.

Sidewalk MasterSidewalk Master
MapMap

Park TownshipPark Township
Ottawa County, MichiganOttawa County, Michigan

LegendLegend

Scale:  1" = 1000'Scale:  1" = 1000'

<µ
00 2,0002,000 4,0004,0001,0001,000

FeetFeet January 2008January 2008
EXISTING SIDEWALK
FUTURE SIDEWALK

J:\
GI

S_
Cl

ien
t\O

tta
wa

-G
D\

Pa
rk-

GD
\Tw

p_
Pr

oj\
0-P

rin
tab

le_
Ma

ps
\Pa

rk 
Sid

ew
alk

 M
as

ter
_3

6x
43

p.m
xd

 - 8
/7/

20
09

 - (
PN

\EJ
D)

Jerry Felix
Oval

Jerry Felix
Oval

Jerry Felix
Oval

Jerry Felix
Oval

Jerry Felix
Oval

Jerry Felix
Text Box
Potential for Snow Routes (Not plowed in winter)    ---  = Area within 1 mile of school buildings; continue to plow these routes     Priority Routes include:Lake ShoreOttawa Beach RoadLakewoodSouth Shore



WAUKAZOO
SCHOOL

GREAT LAKES
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

WEST OTTAWA SOUTH
HIGH

SCHOOL

LAKESHORE
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

WOODSIDE
SCHOOL

LAKEWOOD 
SCHOOL

PARK TOWNSHIP
AIRPORT

PARK
TOWNSHIP
OFFICE

VENTURA
CEMETERY

RECREATION
  CENTER

TUNNEL
PARK

WINSTROM
PARK

RILEY
TRAILS

CAMP 
GENEVA

MAINTENANCE

PUBLIC 
BOAT RAMP

FIREHOUSE

COMMUNITY 
CENTER

LAKEWOOD
CEMETERY

FAIRGROUNDS

HOLLAND
STATE
PARK

WEST OTTAWA NORTH
HIGH

SCHOOL

HOLIDAY
WEST

LAKESHORE 
CEMETERY

RANSOM ST.
PARK

LEISURE ESTATES
MOBILE
HOME

LEISURE

PARK

PARK

WEST
OTTAWA

SCHOOLS

HOLLAND
TOWNSHIP

MAINT. BLDG.

FIRE
STATION

QUINCY PARK

DUNTON
PARK

BEECH-WOOD

VILLAGE

FIRE 
STATION

6

7

30

19

18

36

1
23

4

9
10 11 12

13141516

21
22 23

24

2526

27

28

33

34
35

LakeLake
MacatawaMacatawa

LakeLake

Macatawa
Macatawa

La
ke 

     
    M

ich
iga

n
La

ke 
     

    M
ich

iga
n

PINEPINE
CREEKCREEK

BAYBAY

MACATAWAMACATAWA
BAYBAY

BIGBIG
     BAY     BAY

MARCIA
LANE

ELWILL
COURT

FELCH

GA
IL 

AV
EN

UE

ESSENBURG DRIVE

JIL
L A

VE
.

RO
UN

DH
OU

SE
 LN

.
WO

OD
SID

E 
DR

IV
E

ELWOOD
COURT

PINE CREEK
CT.

DEER COVE
DRIVE

GREAT NORTHERNSUNVIEW
DRIVE PHEASANT

RUN DEPOT LANEFOX TRAIL DR.

13
6T

H

OTTAWA
CREEK
LANE

BROOK LANE

RILEY
WATERCREST

COURT FRANKLIN                 STREET
N. KINGWOOD

COURT

S. KINGWOOD
COURT

KINGWOOD DR. BEL AIR STREET

EL
EM

ED
A 

ST
RE

ET

EVERGREEN
DRIVESHERWOOD

STREET MAPLE
STREET

ELEMEDA STREET

MA
YW

OO
D 

AV
EN

UE
OA

KD
AL

E 
CO

UR
T

W. MAE ROSE AVE.WOODLAND
DRIVE

LIBERTY STREET

MAYFLOWER
STREET

ELM LANE
MAE ROSE
AVENUEMYRA LANE MAYFAIR ST.

MARY
AVENUE

NEW

14
4T

H 
   A

VE
NU

E

AV
EN

UE

QUALITY DRIVE

OA
SI

S
AV

EN
UE

MIRAGE    CT.

SP
RU

CE
 LN

.

BYRAN DRIVE
SPRUCE
HOLLOW

DRIVE

KE
RR

I C
OU

RT

BENT

PINE CT. KRISTIN
LANE

14
0T

H 
AV

EN
UE

WESTWOOD LANE

CAMPUS AVE.

BE
NT

 PI
NE

 DR
.

PINE
CREEK
DRIVE

14
2N

D 
AV

EN
UE

ERIC
COURT JACK

STREETASPEN VALE
MICHELLE CT.

DUNCAN STREET

CA
MI

EL
A

CO
UR

T

BOER RUN

WESTBURY
COURT

CR
EE

KS
ID

E 
LA

NE

PINE MEADOW
 DRIVE

MA
YF

IE
LD

ST
RE

ET

MA
PL

E A
VE

NU
E

   S
HA

DY
B RO

O
K 

 D
RI

VE

ROSE PARK DR.

MANUFACTURER'S
DRIVECAROL

STREET
CAROL ST.

BUTTERNUT DRIVE

JULIUS ST.

14
2N

D 
AV

E.

TH
OM

AS
 AV

EN
UE ELBERDENE

STREETDONNA
ST.

JA
CO

B 
AV

E.
PIN

E 
W

OO
D 

DR
. PINE WOODCOURT KIMBER

LANEHAYES STREET HAYES AVE.

14
2N

D 
AV

E.

PINE WATER
WAY

CHRISTO-
PHER CT.PINE LAKE

COURT GARFIELD       AVE.

EL
M

ST
RE

ET

BE
EC

H 
    

   S
TR

EE
T

ROBAR DR.

ARTHUR              AVE.

RIVER AVE.

N. CALVIN
STREET

FIRST AVE.

SECOND           AVE.

THIRD

JEFFERSON

STREETFOURTH

MADISON ST.

AN
ILI

NE
    

    
    

    
    

    
AV

EN
UE

FIFTH

MONROE ST.

ADAMS

STREETSIXTH AVE.

DOUGLAS       
       

   STREET

OAK HARBOR

JACKSON STREET

HOWARD

DOUGLAS AVENUE

GREENLY

PINEVIEW DRIVE

OAKVALLEY DR.

AVE.

CO
MM

ER
CE

 C
T.

SU
NN

YJ
UN

E
AV

EN
UE

JAMES

BURKE AVENUE
TIMBERWOOD

COURT
MANLEY AVENUE

DUNTON       AVENUE

VANDER VEEN AVENUE

FILLMORESTREET

(BEELIN
E)

WHITE
SPRUCE

CT.
JUNIPER

CT.

RED-
OAK

CT.

SU
NN

YC
RE

ST
CT

.

PINE CREST DRIVE
WEDGEWOOD

ORCHARD HILL
(VAC) STREET

WI
SP

ER
IN

G
WO

OD
S D

R.

SHORT
ST.

AVE.

AVE.

AVE.

RIDGEWOOD DR.

LAKE STREET

DIV
ISI

ON
 AV

E.

LANE

SHEFFIELD

FE
LC

H
VIE

W

TENNIS
CT

PARK ST.

N.   SHORE DR.

FOX TRAIL DR.

CREEK CT.

BYRAN DRIVE

  H
O WARD AVE.

C.
S.

X. 
 R

AI
LW

AY

CASCADE DR.

TRADITION
WAY

N, S, E, & W

CARMELLA LN.

PINE DR.

EVER-
GREEN
LANE

CHERRY LN.

SCARLET OAK CT.

PINEVIEW 
     LN.OA

K L
N.

NESTLE-
WOOD  DR.

LIB
ER

TY
DR

IVE

ST
.

HAZELBANK RD.

PANTHER DR.

1 2
3 4 5

EDGE
DRIVE

SA
GEB

RU
SH

DR
.

JO
SH

UA

SIL
VE

R 
FIR

CO
UR

T

REMINGTON LN.

FIR   DRIV
ERE

D 
AL

DE
R

DR
IVE

PE
AC

HL
EA

F
CO

UR
T

TH
OR

NB
UR

Y
DR

IVE

CO
UR

T

CO
UR

T

CREEK

VENTURA  DRIVE

LA
KE

S E
DG

E D
R.

NI
LE

S

LAKEVIEW ROAD

DE
FE

YT
ER

EL
IS

AB
ET

H

INAVALE AVENUE

NEW HOLLAND
FENDT  FARM DRIVE

RYAN

RANSOM STREET

AV
EN

UE

OAKLEAF

PINYON STREET
DRIVE RED PINE

ES
TATES

VER M
AE D R IVE

LAKE COURT 1ST STREET AV
EN

UE

2ND STREET

3RD STREET

4TH STREET

5TH STREET GREENLY
BELLWOOD
COURT6TH STREET

BROCKWOOD
COURT

EA
ST

ER
N 

AV
EN

UE

NORTH STREET

MA
PL

E 
BE

AC
H 

DR
.

EL
D E

R W
OO

D A
VE

NU
E DURWOOD

STREETSOUTH STREET

HO
LL

YW
OO

D 
AV

EN
UE

8TH STREET

RILEY
SHORE OAKS
EAST LANE SHORE OAKS

WEST LANE 

LAKE   DR I V E

EA
GL

E

AV
EN

UE

QUINCY

16
0T

H

STREET

15
2N

D

STREET

STREET

BUTTERNUT

14
8T

H

TW
IN

 O
AK

S
LA

NE

TWIN OAKS
STREET

14
6T

H 
AV

EN
UE

LILLIAN   STREET

JA
ME

SW
AY

AV
EN

UE

DR
IVE

ME MO RI AL

J AMESWAY AVENUE

FOXBORO
COURT

CREEK
EDGE

COURT

FO
XB

OR
O  

LA
NE

PI
NE

 ED
GE

BROOKW
IN

D 
DR

IVE

ST
AN

WO
OD

DR
IVE

WOODPINE DRIVE

DR
IVE

ASHLEY LANE

SA
ND

Y 
PIN

ES
 D

R

STREET

AV
EN

UE

COURT

COURT

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

KA
RS

TA
N 

HE
AT

H 
DR

.

DRIVE

DRIVE

ROLLI NG OAKS LANE

PHEASANT
TRAIL 

GEORGIAN BAY DRIVE 

HA
RK

EM
AS

 C
RE

EK
 DR

IVE 

TALL GRASS 
WEST CT. TALL GRASS

EAST CT.

STARBOARD DRIVE

A NCHOR

PO
RT

DR
IVE

CT.

AVENUE

LA
NE

CO
UR

T

COURT
COURT

DRIVE

TIM
BE

R 
LA

KE
  E

A S
T

TIMBER
CROSSING

TIM
BE

R 
LA

KE
 W

ES
T

SE
GO

NQ
UI

N 
DR

IVE
 TRA I L

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

14
6T

H

ROAD

DRIVE

DR
IVE

FO
RE

ST
 D

R.
AV

EN
UE

COURT

COURTST
RE

ET

COURT

DUNE DRIVE

DR
IVE

BA
Y

AVENUE

DRIVE

1

2
3

SHADOW DR.

AVE.

AVE.

AV
E.

MARLACOBA DR LAURIE LANE

GO
LD

CR
ES

T
DR

IVE

LEISURE BOULEVARD

WENDY WAY

TR
 TR

AI
L

16
8T

H

ER
IN

 IS
LE

 D
RI

VE
GO

LD
EN

EY
E

LAKEWOOD
TIFFANY RI DGE DRIVE

HY
DE

R 
CT

.

CT.

COUGAR
CT.

AV
E.

BIM
IN

I C
OU

RT

LA
KE

FR
ON

T D
RI

VE
GRISWOLD WALK

RANDALL
STREET

SU
N R

IDG
E D

R.

SUN CHASE DR.

LONG CT.

WALK

16
0T

H 
AV

E.

EAGLE BLVD.

WOODLARK     DRIVE

SHORELINE
DR

WO
OD

W
IN

D 
 D

RI
VE

17
0th

BR
IG

HT
ON

 STREET WOOD-
WIND

JU
DI

TH

LA
KE

CT. MELVIN
STREET

TIFFANY

LA
KE

 S
HO

RE

GLADMORE
STREET S. 

HA
MP

TO
N 

ST
.

NO
RT

H 
BR

ISTOL ST.

SO
UT

H 

BRISTOL

JACOBUSSE

BRISTOL
STREET

LAKEVIEW
 AVENUE

PERRYEMMA
STREET

WARNER DRIVE

1. GEORGE AVENUE

STRAIGHT AVE.

2. NORTH IDLEWOOD ROAD

CH
EY

EN
NE

  A
VE

.

NA
VA

JO
 AV

E.

AL
GO

NQ
UI

N 
AV

E.

SANDY
COURT

SANDCASTLE DR.

G OLDENEYE  DRIVE

TRILLIUM
WAY

SILVER ID G E D RIVETIFFANY
SHORES COURT BOULEVARD

BAY CIRCLE

COURT

CT
.

PINTA DRIVE

COLUMBUS STREET

BA
Y C

I R
C L

E  
D R

IV
E

STATE STREET

MAIN STREET

WE
ST

ER
N A

VE
NU

E

WASHINGTON STREET

STREET
CROSSWIND COURT

CR
OS

SW
IN

D

BEACHOTTAWA

BL
AI

N A
VE

NU
E

15
9T

H 
AV

EN
UE

WO
OD

 AV
EN

UE

WAUKAZOO

OA
KW

OO
D A

VE
NU

E

WINTERGREEN
DR.POST AVENUE

VALLEY VIEW
AVENUE

EDMEER DRIVE

FR
AN

CE
S

AV
EN

UE

VENESSA

SH
AR

ON
 AV

EN
UE

LIL
AC

 AV
EN

UE

PR
AI

RI
E A

VE
NU

E

WI
LL

IA
M 

AV
EN

UE

ME
AD

OW
CR

EE
K

FOXHAVEN DRIVE
TRAIL HEAD

DRIVE
HUNTERS TRAIL

2.

HI
GH

BA
NK

S 
CO

UR
T

POWDERHOR N SYLVAN STREETWO
OD

LA
ND

PLEASANT
RIDGE DR.

HO
ME

14
5T

H

ELDON ST.

BAY RIDGE DRIVE

MEADOW RIDGE DRIVE

BAY ME A D
OW

S 
DR

.
COUNT'S

COVE
COURT

WINTERSUN PLACE

ACORN
PINE BAY AVENUE

FOR EST  HILL S OLD TOWN ROAD
N.  BAYWOOD DR. GREENHILL

DRIVE

PIN
E 

BA
Y C

T.

CRESTWOOD
DRIVE

AV
E.

AV
E.

DRIVE

VAN'S

AVENUE

AVENUE

STREET

ST.

ST.

GR
OV

E 
   A

VE
.

DRIVE DR
IVE

AVENUE

AV
EN

UE

DRIVE

(FOREST)

(AVENUE)

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

HA
MI

LT
ON

 D
R.

DRIVE

FA
LL

EN
LE

AF
    

    
LN

.

SUPERIOR
COURT

SA
ND

YP
OI

NT
AMBERTRACE

DR.

S. BAYWOOD DR.

SYCAMORE

WISTERIA DRIVE

IR
OQ

UO
IS

 AV
E.

TUNNEL
BREEZE

IDLEWOOD RD.

COURT
3. SOUTH IDLEWOOD ROAD

BASIN COURT

WI
ND

ST
RE

AM
CT

.MI
CH

IG
AN

 AV
EN

UE

ORCHARD AVE. BREEZE
CT.

ARAPAHOE RD. BREEZE D RIVE

TANGLEWOOD
CT.RUTH AVE.

WHISPERING

JO
Y R

OAD

HEIGHTS
AVENUE

TA
NG

LE
WO

OD
   D

R.CENTRAL
BOWER STREETSUNSET BL UFF DRIVE

SUMMER-
SANDS CT. WYNWOOD

CT.

TIMBERCREST
COURT

SUMMERWIND
CT.

WOODLARK D R IVESU N

SE
T B

LUFF DRIVE

DRIFTWOOD DR.

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON
 

 PINERIDGE
COURTJAMES

NO
RW

OO
D A

VE
.

CT.

GR
EE

NW
OO

D

15
2N

D

CIMMORAN DR.

SC
OUTS

 HILL

CHIPPEWA DR.

CHAPEL LN.

BENTWOOD COURT

STREET
SPINNAKER
COURT

3. SUNFLOWER CT.

ST
ILL

WATER DRIVEERIN ISLE
COURT

SUNDANCE
ERIN ISLE  DRIVE

WILD STEM DR. STO NE YLAKE DRIVE

RED STEM DRIVE
BLUE ISLE

TIFFANY SHORES  DRIVE

JILL LOUISE
BLUE ISL E  DRIVE

SANDY R UN
 DR

.

BLACK LAKE

CRESCENT WALK

LAKEWAY DR.BAY ROAD

BLUE BELL
             CT. SCOTCH DR.

JE
NI

SO
N

PA
RK

 AV
E.

LA
KE

SID
E R

OA
D

1S
T A

VE

2N
D 

AV
E

LE
ON

AR
D

32ND

OAK
WOOD 

AV
E.

BAY COURT

FO XDO
W N RD.

SEMINOLE DRIVE

CH
ICA

GO

WILLOW STREET

LI T
T L

E   
S T

AT
IO

N SILVERSTONE
ROAD

NATCHEZ STREET GOOD-
WOOD

CT.
PORT CH

ES
TE

R  
R D

.

POPLAR STREET

DY
KE

N

WA
UK

AZ
OO

 D
RI

VE

AV
EN

UE

APACHE ST.

WAUKAZOO

BIRCH STREET

OAKHAM
PT ON WARWICK MAPLE  WALK

BIG

EDGEWOOD  DR.

CHIPPEWA DRIVE

FOREST DRIVE

MA
RQ

UE
TT

E

RO
OS

EV
EL

T

BEECH STREET

STONE  HARBO R RD.

ST.JAMES
CT.

WA UKAZOO DR IV
E

(FOREST AVENUE)

HEMLOCK AVE. WA
UK

AZ
OO

 D
R.

MARIGOLD LN.

PIN
E W

AL
KLINWOOD AVE.

SHORE
HIGHLAND

SOUTH
SUMMIT STREET

BE
EC

HW
OO

D 
ST

.

WOODLAWN

ST
EE

KE
TE

E A
VE

.

WH
ITM

AN

AV
EN

UE JEROME

AV
EN

UE

VIRGINIA PL.

AN
DE

RS
ON

S

ELMERWOLVERINE ST.

HA
RR

IN
GT

ON
 AV

E.

HARRINGTON
SCHOOL

SA
UN

DE
RS

HARDINGBLVD.CO
OL

ID
GE

AV
EN

UE

HO
LL

AN
D 

 AV
E.

STREET

OAK STREET

BA RKEN

TINE DRIVE

NORTH SHORE DRIVE

SE
A E

ST
A  

AV
E.

SU
NS

ET
BL

UF
F C

OU
RT

TIMB ERL E E DR IV E

BA
Y H

AV
EN

LE ISU RE L ANE

LA
KE

   BREEZE DR.

CREST DR. HARBOR INN ST.WR
EN

LA
NE

ORIOLE
LANE

CARDIN A L L
AN

E

EA G LE  
DR

IVE

EAGLE LANE

      
   O

TTAWA BEACH     
     

    
 R

OA
D

MAPLE STREETSUN
COURTLAKERIDGE DRIVE

DUNE

OA
K B

LU
FF

CT
. 

PINE STREET

WA
VE

 C
T.

SPRUCE STREET

OAK STREETSPYGLASS
HILL

LAKE STREET

ELM STREET

S. LAKESHORE DR.

ASH STREET

LAKE ST.

RICHARDSON
AVENUE

NO
RTH

   R
OAD 

TERRACE AVE.

L AKE MICHIGAN AVENUE

3RD.2ND.

BO
SM

A A
VE

.

B L A CK L
AK

E  A
VE

.1ST.

NO
RT

H 
PA

RK
 AV

E.

AUBURN AVE.

PAVILLION ST.

WOODLARK
COURT

LEIGH COURT

WINDRIF T WAY

KATRA DR.

AV
E.

HA
ZE

LW
OO

D
DR

IVE

16
0T

H
AV

E.PAUL ST.

DUNE CT.

NORTH WALK

WALK

LAWN      AVE.

BLUEGRASS LN.

BLUEFIELD DR.

MARKET ST.

SOUTHERN LN.

CO
LB

Y 
DR

.

LAKELAND AVE.

SH
AD

YS
ID

E A
VE

.

OL
YM

PI
A A

VE
.

PHOENIX PLACE

BELMONT LN.

BRADSHAW PARK LN.
HARRINGTON LANDING

 ST. C H A R L E S CI
R.

GRAND POINT

PO
IN

T
SU

PE
RI

OR
 C

T.

GEORGIAN BAY DR.

BEACHCOMBER WAY

1. MURPHY'S WAY
2. EVANSTON PARK PL.
3. ZELENKA FARMS LN.

MACATAWA LEGENDSBLVD.

W.
 PE

RR
Y

E. PERR Y CI
RC

LE

MA
TT

ISO
N  

DR
IV

E

6

1. CEDAR FALLS CT.
2. ANGEL FALLS CT.
3. WATERWHEEL CT.
4. ROCK TERRACE CT.
5. HORESHOE FALLS CT.
6. BROOK TROUT CT.

1
2

3

VAN DYKE

JA
ME

S
GA

TE CT
.

CH
RI

S 
CR

AF
T L

N.

CT.COMMODORE
LN.

SU
NF

IE
LD

 D
R.

WI
NT

ER
 

WI
NT

ER
OA

K W
.

OA
K E

.

WA
Y

WINTER- PINE

ISL
AN

D 
VIE

W
 D

R.

RED STEM DR.

WHITE SPRING DR.

KELLY RIDGE 
DR.

E.B. CREEK DR.

BR
ET

T W
OO

D 
CT

.

OL
D 

MA
CA

TA
WA

 
    

    
    

    
    

CT
.

NOROAK

INTERLAKE WALK

RD
.

BL
AC

KB
ER

RY
 

CT
.

EAGLE PL.

CT.

INTERLAKE WALK

MICHIGAN WALK

GROVE WALK

CRESENT WALK

SE
AW

AT
CH

 R
D.

DUNE VIEW
COURT 

NU
TT

AL
L  

    
 C

T.

OAK CREEK
LN.

TIMBER RIDGE
LN.

SILVER

SHELBY LN.

AV
EN

UE
SU

N 
ME

AD
OW

 

LAKESIDE RD.

DUNE CT.

BLUE BELL CT.

GROVE
MICHIGAN WALK

GRISWOLD WALK

BAY ROAD

AMBERWOOD 

OLDE
DEER TRAILAVALON DRIVE

4. TRICKLE STONE CT.
5. WILDFLOWER CT.

2. MALLARD CT.

6. MEADOWLARK CT.
7. WILLOW CREEK CT.
8. PEBBLE CREEK CT.
9. WATERLILLY CT.

1. WILLOWVIEW CT.

10. PEBBLE STONE CT
11. RIPPLING BROOK CT.
12. WHISPERING WAY
13. COTTAGE LN.

1.

3.4.
5.
6.7.

5.8.
9.

10.

11.

13.

12.

SAND DR.

FL
OR

EN
CE

DRIVE

CH
ER

RY
 ST

.

Sidewalk MasterSidewalk Master
MapMap

Park TownshipPark Township
Ottawa County, MichiganOttawa County, Michigan

LegendLegend

Scale:  1" = 1000'Scale:  1" = 1000'

<µ
00 2,0002,000 4,0004,0001,0001,000

FeetFeet January 2008January 2008
EXISTING SIDEWALK
FUTURE SIDEWALK

J:\
GI

S_
Cl

ien
t\O

tta
wa

-G
D\

Pa
rk-

GD
\Tw

p_
Pr

oj\
0-P

rin
tab

le_
Ma

ps
\Pa

rk 
Sid

ew
alk

 M
as

ter
_3

6x
43

p.m
xd

 - 8
/7/

20
09

 - (
PN

\EJ
D)



Date: July 14, 2016 

 

To:  Park Township Board 

 

RE: Agenda Item 9.h:  Bid Award:  Greenly Bike Path  

 

For some time we have been discussing the proposed construction of the Greenly Bike path, 

from 168th to 152nd.  You previously authorized the engineering for the project.  

 

We have requested bids for the project and will open those bids on Tuesday, July 12.  

We have $850,000 included in the Bike Path Fund for construction of this section and 

hope to bring you a bid that fits that budget.   

 

Prein and Newhof, township engineers, have prepared all of the bid documents and will 

be conducting the bid opening.  They will also review the proposals and make a 

recommendation to us regarding the approved contractor. 

 

As part of securing the best bid we have provided an option in the bid documents to 

allow the contractor to complete the project either this fall or by next spring, whichever 

option provides the lowest price.   

 

We intend to provide you an update once the bids are opened on July 12. 

 

Manager’s Recommendation:  Consider awarding a bid for the Greenly Bike Path 

system as per a recommendation from the engineer.  

  



 



Date: July 14, 2016 

 

To:  Park Township Board 

 

RE:  Agenda Item 9.i: Water Trail Discussion 

 

Over the past year you have discussed the merits of participating in the planning and 

implementation of the state-wide Water Trail.  Some time back you also contributed 

$5,000 toward the creation of a master trail plan prepared by the Land Information 

Access Association (LIAA).   

 

The master plan has been completed with several sites identified on Lake Macatawa.  In 

Park Township two sites have been identified, one down near the Coast Guard station 

on the north side and one at the township boat launch on the south side. Ottawa County 

Parks and Rec will manage the north side site.   

 

For the south side there is potential to cut into the existing west breakwall and install an 

ADA compliant kayak launch device.  

 

Attached for your review is a memo from Supervisor Hunsburger, an excerpted version 

of the master plan that includes the information on the project and some specific 

information on Lake Mac.  The south side boat launch site is on pages 54 and 61-63 (pdf 

pages).   

 

The potential next step in the process is to apply for a grant from the State of Michigan 

to help offset the $30,000 cost of the ADA compliant launch ramp.  You wish to take this 

time to discuss the merits of moving ahead.  A landscape architect will need to be 

involved with the grant application to add detailed site drawings and drafting 

specifications for any work on the site and breakwall.   Currently the parking lot (the 

access to the breakwall)  is gravel.  You could, of course, simply fund the entire project 

without grant funds but there still a need for an architect to certify the final project as 

ADA compliant.  Some work on the lot may be needed along with making sure the 

slopes are compliant and sufficient ADA access to the breakwall is maintained.  

 

There is also some information included in the memo regarding applying for Federal 

designation as a National Water (Recreation) Trail  

 

Manager’s Recommendation:  Consider the enclosed information regarding the Water 

Trail  

 



 

TO:  Park Township Board 

FROM:  J. Hunsburger 

DATE: July 6, 2016 

RE: Park Township boat ramp - S. Shore Drive 

 

The Park Township owned boat ramp on S. Shore Drive (next to Clearwater Marine) is in need of an 

'upgrade'.  If you have been there in recently you understand why I say this. (SEE ATTACHED MAP -  Park 

Twp. property in red outline) 

 

This area has great potential, however, it will take a landscape architect /planner to assist us in 

determining what this could look like (and what the improvements could cost). 

 

The reason I bring this topic up now is because this area is being considered as a key location for the 

"Water Trail" project being developed for Lake Macatawa, and a larger project called the "Lake Michigan 

Water Trail....an extension of the National Recreation Trail. (SEE ATTACHED ).   Included with the 

document attached is a resolution to the Department of Interior indicating our support for this project. 

 

I would like to discuss this topic and have the Board consider supporting the resolution.  Also, we need 

to determine if Park Township wants to work towards the development/improvement of our boat ramp 

on South Shore Drive to potentially be a part of the "Water Trail". A landscape architect "plan" would be 

needed if we want to apply for available "Water Trail" funding grants. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

A.  Approve the resolution to the Department of Interior designating that the Lake Michigan Water Trail 

be considered a National Recreation Trail. 

B.  Work with the Ottawa County Parks & Recreation to obtain quotes to engage the services of a 

landscape architect to have options developed for the potential improvement of the boat ramp area, 

and to complete applications for grant funding for participation in the Water Tail project on Lake 

Macatawa. 

 

attachment 











 Lake Michigan  
Coastal Communities 
Trail Towns Master Plan 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  1 

Introduction 

 
The human, health and community benefits associated with recreational trails have 
been widely studied and well documented. Trails can help encourage healthy lifestyles 
and active living by supporting recreational activities that are inclusive and accessible 
to people of all ages and abilities. Trails can help preserve the environment by 
protecting important human and wildlife corridors and reducing air pollution through 
alternative modes of transportation. Trails can help foster a strong sense of community 
and place, providing an opportunity for social interaction and access to community 
amenities such as parks, neighborhoods and schools. 
 
Recreational trails can also have a significant impact on the local economy. Trails can 
help attract and support tourism and new business opportunities. Local residents also 
spend money on trail-related activities and related businesses. As the link between 
trails and economic development is better understood, many communities are looking 
for ways to capitalize on their current trail networks. This document is designed to 
discuss and illustrate how nine communities along the Lake Michigan coastline and its 
connecting waterways (Ludington, Park Township, Holland, Ottawa County, South 
Haven, St. Joseph, Bridgman, New Buffalo and Buchanan) can better leverage their 
existing and future water and non-motorized trail systems to maximize trail-based 
tourism and economic development opportunities — that is, to redefine their 
communities and their regions as “Trail Towns.” 
 
Due to its primarily rural setting and relatively flat roads, the Lake Michigan coastline 
is an ideal location for bicycle touring. In fact, U.S. Bicycle Route 35 passes directly 
through many of the nine participating communities discussed in this plan. Therefore, 
this document will also highlight ways these coastal communities can maximize 
bicycle tourism.  
 
Trail Towns - A Michigan Perspective 
 
The Trail Town concept is gaining traction in communities and along trails all over 
Michigan. In southeastern Michigan, the Clinton River Watershed Council and the 

The Trail Town Concept  
“Communities are realizing the 
economic potential of trails as highly 
desirable destinations that bring dollars 
into the places they serve…trails and 
greenways attract visitors from near 
and far — visitors who facilitate job 
growth in tourism-related 
opportunities like restaurants, local 
stores and lodging. Communities are 
increasingly utilizing this ‘Trail Town’ 
model of economic revitalization that 
places trails as the centerpiece of a 
tourism-centered strategy for small-
town revitalization.”                     

 Excerpted from a 2007 article published 
by the Rails to Trails Conservancy  



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities  Trail Towns Master Plan 

2 

Huron River Watershed Council have independent Trail Town initiatives. The 
initiatives are designed to help towns within each watershed develop inclusive 
universally accessible amenities that support trail users and leverage their riverside 
assets (e.g., restaurants, shops, hotels, campgrounds) for water-oriented community 
development.  
 
Last year, St. Clair County, in partnership with several regional economic 
development agencies and Michigan State University Extension, developed formal 
Trail Town Master Plans for eight communities along Michigan’s Thumb coast.  
 
In northern Michigan, the cities of Alpena, Atlanta, Grayling, Mackinaw City, 
Topinabee, Boyne City and Charlevoix have developed formal Trail Town plans.  
 
The North Country Trail Association (NCTA), under the auspices of the National Park 
Service, also has a formal Trail Town Program. The program provides information 
and resources to local officials on how they can better promote their town to hikers of 
the North Country Trail. The NCTA has awarded official “Trail Town” status to 19 
communities along the trail, including nine in Michigan.  
 
In June of 2014, Michigan Governor Rick Snyder signed into effect Public Act 210, 
which states that upon petition from a local official, the director of Michigan’s 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) may designate a city, village or township as 
a “Pure Michigan Trail Town,” provided the community meets certain criteria. As of 
this writing, DNR officials were still working to determine the extent of the criteria, 
but it is expected to become finalized by spring of 2016. A full copy of Public Act 210 
can be found in Appendix A. 
 
In an effort to better understand the Trail Town concept and develop useful strategies 
and recommendations for these nine coastal communities along Lake Michigan, a 
comprehensive literature review was conducted. The literature review found a number 
of resources for specific components of the Trail Town concept, such as downtown 
design guidelines, walkability tactics, accessibility standards and promotional 
strategies. However, only a handful of examples were identified that addressed how 
each of the specific components all work together to create a “Trail Town.” The 

Huron River Watershed Trail Town 
Program  
The Huron River Watershed Council 
manages a robust Trail Town Program in 
five communities along the Huron River 
under its River Up! Initiative.   

Image Provided By: Huron River Watershed Council 
 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  3 

original source identified, Trail Towns - Capturing Trail-Based Tourism, A Guide for 
Communities in Pennsylvania1 (published by the Allegheny Trail Alliance in 2005), 
and the Trail Town Manual for Communities in Northern Michigan2 (published by 
LIAA in 2013) were used as the basis for this plan.  
 
This document utilizes and summarizes portions of each Trail Town publication, 
applying specific concepts and recommendations to the nine project communities. 
However, in an effort to demonstrate or illustrate a specific point or suggestion, 
examples from other communities and trails in Michigan are highlighted and 
described throughout the document. 
 
This document recognizes the significant efforts that local business owners, municipal 
staff members, local officials, governmental bodies (e.g., Downtown Development 
Authorities) and regional economic development agencies already provide in support 
of tourism, economic development and trail building in each of the nine communities 
studied for this plan. The strategies and recommendations outlined in this document 
are only meant to highlight new ideas and spark discussions about how these coastal 
communities could better utilize their trail assets to expand on and complement 
existing recreation and community development efforts. Furthermore, many of the 
strategies and recommendations outlined in this document support ongoing local, 
regional and even statewide efforts to capitalize and leverage local assets for 
community and economic development. 
 
Trail Systems and Community Profiles 
 
Due to its regional scope and connective qualities, the primary focus of this plan is to 
highlight ways in which the nine coastal communities can establish Trail Town 
strategies around the Lake Michigan Water Trail and designated water trails along 
connected inter-coastal rivers (e.g., St. Joseph Water Trail, Galien Water Trail, and 
Grand River Water Trail). However, most of the nine communities along the coastline 

                                                           
1 Trail Towns - Capturing Trail-Based Tourism, A Guide for Communities in Pennsylvania. Allegheny Trail Alliance (2005) 
2 Trail Town Manual for Communities in Northern Michigan. LIAA (2013) 

Community Development Efforts  
The strategies and recommendations 
outlined in this plan are designed to expand 
on and complement existing community 
development efforts.  



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities  Trail Towns Master Plan 

4 

also have a well-used network of non-motorized terrestrial trails. As previously 
mentioned, most of the nine project communities are also connected by U.S. Bicycle 
Route 35, which runs the entire length of Michigan’s Lower Peninsula, ultimately 
connecting Sault Ste. Marie, Michigan to Mississippi. Ludington is also connected to 
U.S. Bicycle Route 20, which runs across the Lower Peninsula, ultimately connecting 
Marine City, Michigan to the Oregon coast.  
 
Trail Systems (Water Trails)  
 
Lake Michigan Water Trail  

Michigan’s Lake Michigan Water Trail begins in the Upper Peninsula and traverses 
760 miles to the Indiana border. The trail then continues around the western side of 
the lake to complete a 1,600-mile, four-state continuous loop. The Lake Michigan 
Water Trail passes by some of the most picturesque landscapes and beach 
communities in Michigan. Paddlers can directly access the Lake Michigan Water 
Trail in eight of the nine project communities by way of both formal (marina) and 
informal (road-ending) access sites. 
 
St. Joseph River Water Trail  

The 66-mile St. Joseph River Water Trail begins in Niles and meanders west, past the 
town of Buchanan and through thick forested areas before it finally empties out into 
Lake Michigan in the coastal town of St. Joseph.     
 
Paw Paw River Water Trail 

The 62-mile Paw Paw River Water Trail begins near the headwaters of the river in 
northeast Van Buren County. From there, the water trail flows through both Van 
Buren and Berrien counties where it joins the St Joseph River Trail in Benton Harbor. 
 
Galien River Marsh Water Trail 

The Galien River Marsh Water Trail begins at a DNR boat launch on U.S. 12 and 
flows for three miles into the coastal town of New Buffalo. Along the way, the water 
trail meanders through woodlands and protected wetlands, including the 86-acre 
Galien River County Park Preserve. The river is slow moving and easy to paddle both 
upstream and downstream.  

Lake Michigan Water Trail 
The Lake Michigan Water Trail 
traverses 1,600 miles around Lake 
Michigan. 

Galien River Marsh Water Trail 
The Galien River Marsh Water Trail 
meanders through woodlands and 
protected wetlands before arriving in 
New Buffalo. 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  5 

 
Bangor to South Haven Heritage Water Trail 

The 21-mile Bangor/South Haven Heritage Water Trail is located on the Black River. 
The water trail begins in the town of Bangor and weaves west through Van Buren 
County before finally emptying out into Lake Michigan in the coastal community of 
South Haven. Along the way, the water trail takes paddlers past historic American 
Indian sites, an old sawmill and a grist mill.  
 
Grand River Heritage Water Trail 

The 41-mile Grand River Heritage Water Trail encompasses nine distinct paddling 
routes along the Grand River in Ottawa County. The slow, meandering river averages 
about 3 miles per hour, making it an ideal river to see and explore the many natural 
and cultural assets along its shoreline. In addition, the water trail has three inclusive 
universally accessible launch sites, making the water trail accessible across the entire 
county.  
 

Kalamazoo River Water Trail 

The 130-mile Kalamazoo River Water Trail begins at the junction of its north and 
south branches near Albion and meanders west before spilling out into Lake Michigan 
in the coastal town of Saugatuck. The Kalamazoo River Water Trail has three 
universally accessible launches.    
 
Lake Macatawa Water Trail (Future) 

Concurrent to the development of this master plan, local officials, municipal staff and 
interested stakeholders from Ottawa County, Park Township and the City of Holland 
are exploring the development of a formal water trail around Lake Macatawa. The 6-
mile water trail would pass by beautiful lakefront homes, connect to the City of 
Holland and nearby parks, and ultimately connect to the Lake Michigan Water Trail.   
 
  

Lake Macatawa Water Trail 
Local officials, municipal staff and 
interested stakeholders from the greater 
Holland Community are currently 
exploring the development of a formal 
water trail around Lake Macatawa. 

Bangor to South Haven Heritage 
Water Trail 
The Bangor/South Haven Heritage Water 
Trail is located on the Black River. Soon-to-
be-completed improvements to the Black 
River Park Canoe and Kayak Launch in 
South Haven will provide universal access 
to the water trail.   
 



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities  Trail Towns Master Plan 

6 

Trail Systems (Non-Motorized)  
 
Each of the nine coastal communities described in this master plan has a local network 
of non-motorized terrestrial trails. There are also a number of long-distance trails that 
connect to other communities throughout the region. Many of the more developed 
trails have inclusive universally accessible design features such as wide paved 
surfaces with gentle slopes making them “stroll-able and roll-able” meaning walkable 
side-by-side, roll-able for parent pushing strollers, roll-able for someone using a 
wheelchair or walker and bike-able for someone with a disability using a hand-cycle 
Rather than listing every trail in each community, the following pages describe a 
handful of the most popular trails in each region.  
 
Southwest Michigan  

 
Harbor Country Trails  
Harbor Country Trails is a 36-mile bike route through the towns of New Buffalo, 
Union Pier, Lakeside, Harbert, Sawyer and Three Oaks. One of the primary 
trailheads for the bike route is located in New Buffalo. Harbor Country Trails is 
directed by the Friends of Harbor Country Trails. 
 
Backroads Bikeway  
The Backroads Bikeway is a series of trails that follow secondary roads throughout 
Berrien County. The Bikeway connects to several coastal communities including 
New Buffalo.   
 
Kal-Haven Trail 
The 34.5-mile Kal-Haven Trail, on the former Kalamazoo & South Haven Railroad, 
runs from Kalamazoo to the coastal community of South Haven. A recent trail 
expansion and streetscaping project in South Haven now extends the trail into the 
heart of downtown, where trail users can enjoy downtown shopping and dining and 
connect with the Van Buren Trail via a scenic connector route.  
 
 
 

Harbor Country Trails 
Harbor Country Trails is a 36-mile bike 
route throughout southwest Lower 
Michigan.  
 

Kal-Haven Trail 
The Kal-Haven Trail is a 34.5-mile rail trail 
that extends from Kalamazoo into 
downtown South Haven, where it connects 
with the Van Buren State Trail. 
 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  7 

Van Buren Trail   
The 14-mile Van Buren Trail State Park runs from South Haven to Hartford on the 
former Toledo & South Haven Railroad. Most of the trail surface is unimproved 
grass and gravel, but nicely maintained and well suited for mountain bikes or 
bicycles with fat tires. In November of 2015, a 4.5 mile section of the trail 
connecting Van Buren State Park to the South Haven trail system topped with a 10-
foot-wide asphalt surface (the City maintains a marked route that connects to a 
downtown trailhead). Equestrian and snowmobile use is permitted and popular 
along the entire length of the trail.  
 
McCoy’s Creek Trail  
McCoy’s Creek Trail is a 2.5-mile pathway that connects nearby woodland areas 
and the St. Joseph River to downtown Buchanan.  
 

Greater Holland Community 

The greater Holland Community is home to more than 150 miles of paved separate-
use trails and off-road dirt trails. Several looped routes in Holland’s bike path network 
incorporate popular city, township and state parks. Along the pathways, trail users 
experience scenic views of Lake Macatawa, Lake Michigan and the iconic DeZwaan 
windmill. A favorite route among bicyclists is the Lakeshore Connector Pathway that 
runs between Holland State Park and Grand Haven State Park.   
 
Ludington 

As previously mentioned, Ludington is the western 
terminus for U.S. Bicycle Route 20 in Michigan. The 
bicycle route passes through downtown Ludington on 
Rath Avenue, eventually heading north along Lakeshore 
Drive. U.S. Bicycle Route 35 also passes through 
Ludington on its way along the coastline.  
 
 
 
 
 

Holland Community Trails 
The greater Holland Community is home to 
more than 150 miles of trials, connecting 
most of the area’s most popular assets and 
attractions. 
 

McCoy’s Creek Trail 
McCoy’s Creek Trail is a 2.5-mile pathway 
located in downtown Buchanan. 
 

Ludington 
U.S. Bicycle Route 20 passes through downtown Ludington on 
Rath Avenue, eventually heading north along Lakeshore Drive. 



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities  Trail Towns Master Plan 

8 

Communities  
 
This Trail Town Plan focuses on eight coastal communities along Lake Michigan: 
Ludington, Holland, Ottawa County, Park Township, South Haven, Bridgman, St. 
Joseph and New Buffalo. A ninth community, Buchanan, is also included. Although 
Buchanan is not located along the Lake Michigan Shoreline, it is connected via the St. 
Joseph River Water Trail.   
 
Together, the nine communities are home to about 80,277 people (Ottawa County was 
not included in this total). However, given their location on Lake Michigan, the 
population of each community increases significantly during the summer months.  
All but two of the communities have a traditional downtown layout, with historic 
buildings centered along a “main” street, sidewalks, numerous waterfront and outdoor 
dining experiences, boutique-style shops, and art galleries. Most communities also 
have a fairly large marina where paddlers can easily access the water.  
 
Several of the nine communities work together to help shape the character and identity 
of their region. South Haven, St. Joseph, Bridgman, New Buffalo and Buchanan help 
define “southwest Michigan,” whereas Park Township, Holland and portions of 
Ottawa County help define the “Greater Holland Area.” 
 
Key stakeholders and staff in each region and community — especially the Ludington 
Community Development Office, Ottawa County Parks and Recreation, and the 
Southwest Michigan Planning Commission — were instrumental in the development 
of this plan and will be central agents in both local and regional Trail Town 
implementation efforts. 
 
While this concerted Trail Town Planning effort focused on the nine communities 
listed above, the applicability of the concepts, the process of evaluation, the basis of 
the recommendations, and the options for implementation serve as a model for other 
communities and trail systems throughout the state.  
 
 

Project Communities  
 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  9 

What is a Trail Town? 
 
According to the Allegheny Trail Alliance, a “Trail Town” is:  
 

A destination along a long-distance trail. Whether on a rail trail, towpath, water 
trail, or hiking trail, trail users can venture off the trail to enjoy the scenery, 
services, and heritage of the nearby community with its own character and 
charm. It is a safe place where both town residents and trail users can walk, 
find the goods and services they need, and easily access both trail and town by 
foot or vehicle. In such a town, the trail is an integral and important part of the 
community.3  

 
A Trail Town is an active, attractive, and interesting place with accessible and 
comfortable spaces, hosting a variety of activities that promote social interaction and a 
strong sense of place. A Trail Town should meet both the needs of trail users and the 
residents of the community. A Trail Town has the physical amenities that support trail 
users and bicycle tourists such as bike/kayak racks, wayfinding signs, wide sidewalks, 
drinking fountains, and benches with shade. A Trail Town also has the business 
amenities to support day-trip trail users and bike tourists (such as a bike shop, kayak 
outfitter, casual restaurant and ice-cream shop) as well as overnight trail users and 
bike tourists (such as a hotel, restaurant and laundromat).   
 
Each of the communities that were assessed as part of this planning effort already 
have many of the physical and business amenities that day-trip and overnight trail 
users and bike tourists are seeking. Many of the downtowns feature pedestrian-
friendly streets, a variety of quality locally-owned restaurants, and outdoor seating. 
Most of the downtowns also have ice-cream shops, bars (some even have a brewery) 
and a coffee house where trail users and riders can casually spend an hour or two 
before getting back on the trail or the road. Many of the downtowns also feature a 
variety of boutique-style shops, with diverse and unique goods. Open, accessible and 

                                                           
3 Trail Towns - Capturing Trail Based Tourism, A Guide for Communities in Pennsylvania. 
Allegheny Trail Alliance (2005) 

Accessible and Comfortable Spaces 
It is important to have restaurants with 
outdoor seating (see South Haven 
below), pedestrian-friendly streets and 
other quasi-public spaces within the 
downtown where trail users can get a 
good meal and spend a couple of hours 
before moving on to their next trail 
destination.   



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities  Trail Towns Master Plan 

10 

inviting storefronts and pedestrian-friendly streets encourage trail visitors and bike 
tourists to casually stroll through the downtown.  
 
All eight of the downtowns also have a number of physical amenities (public benches, 
bike racks, and parks) that allow trail users and bike tourists to rest, relax, or just hang 
out before getting back on their kayak or bike. For overnight trail users and bicycle 
tourists, there are a wide variety of accommodations (e.g., hotel, motel, bed-and-
breakfast, and campground) within or in close proximity to many of the downtown 
areas. 
 
Trail Town Strategy  
 
It is important for local and regional trail advocates, economic development 
professionals and public officials to understand that these coastal communities are not 
isolated communities; they are linked together by the trails and biking routes, creating 
regional destinations for paddling, bike touring, horseback riding and other 
recreational activities. Typically, water trails tend to be used by people seeking a two-
hour or half-day paddling excursion. However, some adventurous paddlers may be on 
the water trail for multiple days. Similarly, most bike tourists are seeking a half-day or 
entire day excursion. However, some bike tourists may be out for a couple of days and 
visit several communities, especially on weekends.    
 
In addition, although vacationers may visit (often repeatedly) the trail located at their 
primary destination or “hub,” they may access different sections of the same trail or 
different trails when they visit nearby towns throughout the duration of their stay.  
 
Long-distance trails and bicycle-friendly roadways attract tourists, especially trails 
and roads that pass by and through interesting towns, scenic areas or places of historic 
interest. Most trail users and bike tourists will require some degree of goods and 
services. According to the Allegheny Trail Alliance, studies show that the longer the 
trail, the farther people will come to use it, the longer people will stay, and the more 
they will spend. A day-tripper will spend four times as much as a local user, and an 
overnight visitor will spend twice the amount a day-tripper will spend. 
 

Business Amenities 
Trail users and bike tourists will find 
destinations such as breweries (see 
Bridgman below) in almost every project 
community, as well as overnight 
accommodations, shops, and eateries. 

Trail Town Strategy  
Most trail users and bike tourists will 
require some degree of goods and services. 
Making connections with local businesses 
is important in creating a friendly Trail 
Town community.   

Photo Collected From:  
Peddler Brewing Company, Seattle Washington  
 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  11 

Coastal West Michigan is fortunate in that it is already popular with tourists, has many 
interesting towns and places to visit, and has a very active and expanding network of 
water trails, non-motorized trails and bike-friendly roadways. Local officials, economic 
development professionals, local business owners and trail advocates in each 
community and region should continue to work with each other to expand existing 
trails, make new trail connections, promote trail-based tourism activities, and support 
positive trail experiences for the entire region.  
 
It will also be important for local community leaders, trail advocates, business owners 
and economic development organizations in each region to regularly communicate 
with each other, local businesses and participating state agencies about local road and 
trail conditions, safety concerns and trail/biking events. Regular communication can 
be especially useful when large paddle- or bike-themed events and/or tours pass 
through the region.   
 
Ultimately, Trail Town communities need to be friendly places that support, celebrate 
and encourage paddlers, equestrians, bike tourists and other trail users to visit, and 
then welcome them with warm hospitality. The basic elements of a “Trail Town 
Strategy” are described below. 
 

Basic Elements of a Trail Town Strategy 

 
 Entice trail users to get off the trail and bike tourists to get off the road and into 

your town. 
 

 Welcome trail users and bike tourists to your town by making information about 
the community readily available at the trailhead or key entryways into the 
community. 
 

 Make a strong, accessible and safe connection between your town and the trail. 
 

 Educate local businesses on the economic benefits of meeting the needs of trail 
and bicycle tourists. 

 

Trail Town Strategy  
Recruit new businesses or expand existing 
ones to fill gaps in the goods and services 
that trail users want and need. 



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities  Trail Towns Master Plan 

12 

 Recruit new businesses or expand existing businesses to fill gaps in the goods or 
services that trail users and bike tourists need. 
 

 Support and promote the inclusive universally accessible “trail friendly,” “bicycle 
friendly” and “pedestrian friendly” character of the town. 
 

 Work with neighboring communities to promote the entire trail corridor and bike-
friendly roadways as a tourist destination. 

 
According to the Allegheny Trail Alliance, it is also important to understand that the 
Trail Town initiative must come from within your community. Becoming a Trail Town 
is as much about local attitude as it is about physical improvements. Listed below are 
several considerations local officials, trail advocates and regional organizations should 
review to create a dynamic regional Trail Town environment.  
 
Considerations in Creating a Trail Town Environment  
 

 Local communities (and each region) can grow and thrive in new ways because of 
proximity to trails and a bike-friendly system of roadways. 
 

 The more Trail Towns there are along a corridor offering hospitality and services, 
the more attractive the region will be for tourism; the success of one community is 
important to the success of all the communities.  

 
 Leadership and initiative from within the community (especially the business 

community) will be necessary to turn each community into a Trail Town. 
 

 A safe, accessible and well-maintained trail and roadway is the centerpiece, so it’s 
important to cooperate with and support local trail-building and maintenance 
groups and public safety agencies. 
 

 A core bicycle/pedestrian-friendly philosophy should be adopted by local officials 
and business owners.  
 

Considerations in Creating a 
Trail Town Environment 
One way to establish a core bicycle- 
and pedestrian-friendly atmosphere in 
your town is to adopt a Complete Streets 
policy (resolution or ordinance). 
Complete Streets are streets designed 
and operated to enable safe access for 
all users, including pedestrians and 
bicyclists. Complete Streets should 
provide better mobility to citizens, 
trail users and road bikers, and safer 
trail-to-town connections. An 
example complete streets ordinance 
can be found in Appendix I. 
 
 
 
 

            
      



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  13 

 Trail users and road bikers should be accommodated both physically and socially 
within the downtown area. 
 

 Goods and services for trail users and bicycle tourists will be appealing to other 
types of tourists and local residents. 
 

 Local law enforcement agents can be important ambassadors in the town, along 
the trail and on rural roadways. 

 

Getting Organized to Create Your Trail Town 
 
In order to create, plan for and implement a successful Trail Town initiative, it is 
important to have the right team assembled from the community. The following 
sections describe some of the important roles and activities that will be needed to 
create and establish a Trail Town environment in each community. As local leaders, 
trail advocates, business owners and economic development professionals review 
these sections, it is important to identify where additional assistance might be needed. 
In some cases it will be imperative, at least initially, that regional agencies like the 
Southwest Michigan Planning Commission assist local leaders in some of these 
organizing and implementation efforts.  
 
A. Define the Trail Corridor. Before any Trail Town initiative can get started, it is 
important that local leaders understand the physical and administrative structure of the 
trail(s). Local leaders and trail advocates should ask themselves a series of questions 
to better understand the trail system(s) located in their community. For example: 
 

 What kind of trail is it?  
 How long is the trail and where does it connect to? 
 Who manages the trail and who is responsible for daily upkeep and annual 

maintenance? 
 
Brief summaries of the physical and administrative structure of several trails in the 
nine communities are described on pages 3-7. It was fairly clear in meetings with local 
officials in coastal communities that many did not know about the physical and 



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities  Trail Towns Master Plan 

14 

administrative structure of the Lake Michigan Water Trail. In fact, some local officials 
were even unaware there is a water trail located in their community. It is imperative 
that local Trail Town supporters inform local officials (e.g., planning commission, city 
council) about their local trail systems. In some instances, it may be valuable to host 
“field trips” with government officials so they can get a firsthand understanding of the 
issues and opportunities associated with their trail system.  
 
B. Assess Local Capacity. A Trail Town initiative could be part of the 
comprehensive community revitalization efforts directed by downtown merchants, a 
Downtown Development Association, a Main Street Program, a municipal community 
development department, or a combination of these organizations. Therefore, it is 
important to understand how well your local leaders are able to plan and implement 
new programs or ideas.  
 
Some coastal communities already have very active and successful Downtown 
Development Authorities (DDAs), merchant groups, community development 
departments and civic-minded organizations. It will be important to tap into those 
agencies or groups of people who are eager and willing to participate. From a regional 
perspective, Chambers of Commerce and Convention and Visitor Bureaus (CVBs) can 
assist in providing support and capacity. However, creating strong local teams will be 
vital for the long-term viability of any local Trail Town effort.  
 
Local officials and staff can utilize the following Four Point Approach4 to create a 
successful “Trail Town” environment in their community.   
 

Organizing gets everyone working toward the same goal. The tough work of 
building consensus and cooperation among groups that have an important stake 
in the downtown area can be eased by using the basic formula of a hands-on, 
volunteer driven program and an organizational structure consisting of a board 
and committees to direct the program. 
 

                                                           
4 National Main Street Center: http://www.preservationnation.org/main-street/ 

Understanding the Trail Corridor  
It is valuable to host “field trips” with 
government officials to the local trail network 
so they can get a firsthand understanding of 
the issues and opportunities associated with 
their trail system.  

 
 
 
 

            
      



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  15 

Promotion sells the image and promise of a Trail Town to all prospects. 
Marketing the downtown’s unique characteristics to local customers, investors, 
new businesses, and visitors requires an effective promotion strategy. It forges a 
positive town image through advertising, retail promotions, special events, and 
marketing campaigns carried out by the local volunteers. 
 
Design gets a Trail Town into top physical shape. Capitalizing on its best assets, 
such as historic buildings and traditional downtown layout, is just part of the 
story. An inviting and accessible atmosphere created through attractive window 
displays, professional signage, well-maintained sidewalks, accessible parking 
areas, appropriate street lights, and landscaping conveys a visual message about 
what a Trail Town is and what it has to offer. 
 
Economic Restructuring finds a new purpose for the town’s enterprises. By 
helping existing downtown businesses expand and by recruiting new businesses to 
respond to today’s market, the town can help convert unused space into productive 
property and increase the competiveness of business enterprises. 

 
C. Create or Enhance Your Local Organization. Everyone in the community has a 
stake in the future of their downtown. In order to be successful, local leaders must 
involve as many interested groups and individuals as possible from throughout the 
community. Citizens, paddlers, bicyclists, stakeholder groups, and local officials all 
need to support downtown revitalization efforts. Local leaders should also seek 
support from local civic groups, historical societies, financial institutions, religious 
institutions, business owners and civic organizations (both public and private) that 
have a stake in tourism and the downtown. Because of the residual health benefits 
trails provide to local residents, it can be helpful to seek support from local physicians 
or regional healthcare networks. In addition, it will be important to included people 
with disabilities as well as senior citizen and disability advocates.   
 
D. Develop the Local Volunteer Base. A Trail Town initiative requires support from 
the entire community. In addition to mobilizing community organizations, it is 
important to mobilize local volunteers. Volunteers bring new and different ideas 
forward and can help carry out activities. In addition, volunteers can help promote the 

Four Point Approach - Organizing    
A hands-on, volunteer-driven program 
and organizational structure consisting 
of local officials and important 
recreational and economic development 
staff will be needed to establish a robust 
Trail Town effort. People who 
participated in the local assessment 
meetings under this planning project 
would make ideal committee members.  
 
 
 
 

            
      



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities  Trail Towns Master Plan 

16 

positive aspects of the Trail Town initiative through word-of-mouth. Local leaders in 
each community should make concerted efforts to ensure the volunteer base is as 
broad as possible.   
 
E. Get the Message Out Locally. Marketing and advertising are essential to promote 
trail use and appreciation. A marketing committee can be helpful in organizing these 
efforts. A catchy name for the organization is also helpful, something that lets people 
know what the organization does and is easily remembered. The marketing committee 
will need to develop a relationship with the local media, explain to them what local 
leaders are doing, and let them know how they can help. It can also be helpful to 
submit articles (with photos) to local organizations in the community, speak at local 
civic and community service meetings (e.g., planning commission, city council, 
Rotary, Kiwanis), establish a social media platform, and have a presence at 
community events and festivals.  
 
Local officials, friends groups, and the various Chambers of Commerce and 
Convention and Visitor Bureaus in West Michigan can assist in promoting each 
community and their surrounding region as Trail Town destinations. These 
organizations have the ability and capacity to not only promote Trail Town activities 
locally, but also throughout the State of Michigan and the Midwest.  
 
F. Build Partnerships. As previously stated, implementing a Trail Town initiative 
requires support from the entire community. Building partnerships with existing 
community groups and stakeholders will help to develop broad-based local interest 
and buy-in as the initiative moves forward. Local leaders in each community should 
work to identify existing community groups, business owners and key figures, and 
discuss ways to unite the community around the Trail Town effort.  
 
As previously mentioned, it will also be important for local Trail Town teams to work 
with and coordinate efforts with neighboring Trail Town teams, regional planning 
agencies, and economic and community development organizations.   
 
 

Get the Message Out 
It can also be helpful to submit articles 
(with photos) to local organizations in the 
community, speak at local civic and 
community service meetings (e.g., 
planning commission, city council, 
Rotary, Kiwanis), establish a social media 
platform, and have a presence at 
community events and festivals.  

 
 
 
 

            
      



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  17 

G. Find the Resources to Implement Your Trail Town Concept. Implementing a 
comprehensive Trail Town initiative will require funding. Funding through grants and 
other economic assistance programs can be secured for community and economic 
development initiatives from local, county, state and federal agencies. These financial 
aid programs may include Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund grants from the 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources, Transportation Alternative Program 
(TAP) grants from the Michigan Department of Transportation, Rural Development 
grants from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), grants from 
Michigan’s Coastal Zone Management Program (CZMP), and grants from the 
Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC). Local financing tools, like 
Tax Increment Financing (TIF), can also be utilized. In addition, tax credits are 
available to small businesses who make accessibility improvements that better serve 
customers with disabilities (information can be found at: www.ada.gov/taxincent.pdf) 
 
Funding may also be secured from local and regional Community Foundations, 
regional trail and recreation advocacy organizations, friends groups, and local 
conservation groups. Municipal staff members, DDA staff members, interested 
volunteers, or even a professional grant writer can be especially helpful in researching 
and writing grants on behalf of a local Trail Town initiative.  
 
Building relationships and partnerships with local businesses is also critical in 
securing funding for Trail Town initiatives. Local businesses (especially restaurants, 
breweries and hotels/resorts) may be willing to sponsor special trail-related events and 
promote Trail Town activities. Furthermore, local businesses may be willing to take 
on the cost of providing and building trail amenities and support services.  
 
The more that local leaders can involve a wide variety of interest groups, stakeholders 
and individuals in the Trail Town Planning effort, the more likely it will be to secure 
funding from these different sources.  
 
H. Take One Step at a Time. It is important to understand that a Trail Town 
initiative does not happen overnight; rather, it develops and evolves over time. This 
may be especially true in some of the nine communities where there is not a local 
organization already working on building trails or economic development initiatives. 

Funding Resources 
It is important to remember that most 
state and federal grants require a local 
cash match. For CZMP grants, in-kind 
services can also be used toward match. 
CZMP grant applications are typically 
due in December. 
 
In addition, the DNR now allows 
communities to use Transportation 
Alternative Program (TAP) grants 
toward the match for Natural Resources 
Trust Fund grants. It will be important 
for each community to incorporate the 
findings and recommendations of this 
plan into their local recreation plan to 
be eligible for Trust Fund grants. 
Annual Trust Fund applications are due 
in April.   
 
 
 
 

            
      



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities  Trail Towns Master Plan 

18 

Fortunately, there is already a great deal of local and regional support and enthusiasm 
in most of these coastal communities, and local trail, paddling and bicycling advocates 
and supporters have long been very proactive. According to the Allegheny Trail 
Alliance, the activities that the community undertakes should be evaluated by their 
outcomes, not outputs. You may want to start implementation with a small project 
with good potential, one that might have good “bang for the buck.” Use resources 
prudently on projects that are well thought out and their potential impact thoroughly 
evaluated.  
 

Trail Town Design Issues 
 
An important step in preparing this plan was to assess the physical characteristics of 
each community’s central business district and its relationship to the nearby trail(s) — 
a Trail-to-Town Assessment. This assessment helps local officials, trail planners, 
business owners and economic development professionals better understand the 
physical challenges that trail visitors may encounter in their quest to visit the 
downtown. The results of the trail-to-town assessment for each community is 
summarized later in this document. The following pages describe the physical 
elements that were evaluated as part of the trail-to-town assessment.  
 
Determine the Type of Trail in Your Community. The first item to evaluate in 
assessing the physical characteristics of a town is to determine the type of trail that 
runs through (or in close proximity to) the central business district. While a water trail 
primarily accommodates kayakers, most paved trails accommodate a wide variety of 
non-motorized uses (e.g., cycling, hiking, walking, observing nature, etc.). Although 
most of them are not groomed for such uses, in the winter months some of the non-
motorized trails are often used by snow-shoers and cross-country skiers. It is 
important for local leaders and trail planners to understand which types of users are on 
the trail and at which time of year.  
 
 
 

Understanding Trail Use  
It is very important for local officials and 
trail planners to understand what 
activities are taking place on their trail 
systems and at what time of year so they 
can adequately provide supporting trail 
infrastructure (e.g., kayak launches).  
 
                         



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  19 

Understanding how the trail is used during different times of the year will help local 
officials better provide for supporting trail infrastructure. For example, if a lot of 
people are paddling in the shoulder months (early spring and late fall), then perhaps 
local municipalities might consider installing kayak launch facilities earlier in the year 
(before Memorial Day) and taking them out later in the year (after Labor Day). 
Seasonal knowledge can also be helpful when planning specific trail-associated events 
or promotional activities, and can help local business owners better understand 
potential trail clientele.  
 
Understand Trail Geography. As previously mentioned, another important item to 
assess is the physical relationship between the trail and the central business district 
(the trail-to-town relationship), which includes factors such as linear distance and 
elevation change. According to the Allegheny Trail Alliance, the linear relationship 
can be described in one of three ways: (1) Internal Trails; (2) Adjacent Trails; and (3) 
Removed Trails. 
 

Internal Trails are located directly through the central business district.  
 
Adjacent Trails are located immediately adjacent to the downtown, usually 
within a half-mile of the central business district.  
 
Removed Trails are located up to two miles away from the central business 
district.  

 
In each coastal project community, the Lake Michigan Water Trail is considered an 
“adjacent trail,” whereas some of the water trails on connecting waterways would be 
considered “internal.”  
 
Understanding the elevation change or “grade” between the trail and the central 
business district is also very important. This can be especially important for trail users 
pulling kids in trailers, people with disabilities using wheelchairs or long-distance trail 
users who may be carrying heavy loads of gear. The grade between the trail and the 
central business district can also be important for paddlers, especially if they have to 
carry their kayak and gear to a lock-up area or their automobile.   

Understanding Trail Geography  
Due to its close proximity to the 
downtown, trails like the McCoy Creek 
Trail in Buchanan are considered 
“internal” trails. 
 
 
 
                         

Trail-to-Town Elevation Change 
The elevation change between the trail 
and the central business district can be 
especially important to bicyclists or long-
distance trail users who may be carrying 
heavy loads of gear. 
 
 
 
                         



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities  Trail Towns Master Plan 

20 

 
Certainly, weather can play a significant role in the pace at which paddlers can move 
along water trails. High winds can create significant waves which can be treacherous 
to paddle through. In addition, a stiff headwind can slow the pace of a paddler 
tremendously, turning a relatively moderate hour-long paddle into an exhausting 
three-hour paddle.  
 
Identify Key Connecting Elements. In addition to understanding the physical 
relationship between the trail and the central business district, it is also important to 
understand the function and inter-relationship of the six connecting elements — the 
physical components that make up and define the connection between the trail and 
central business district. The following pages summarize each of the connecting 
elements.  
 

1. Trailhead. The Trailhead is the area where users can access the trail by road, 
providing parking and accessible amenities for trail users. In many instances, the 
Trailhead is the point at which the trail user may first come in contact with the 
community and the point at which trail user will decide whether or not to venture 
into the downtown. Therefore, it is imperative that local officials and trail planners 
in each community work to make the Trailhead a positive and welcoming place. 

 
One of the most important items trail planners and local officials should provide at 
the Trailhead is information about the community. This might include a listing of 
area businesses, or a description of local attractions or historical information. Any 
description should include at least one photo of the downtown, preferably an image 
of the downtown bustling with lots of people.  
 
By providing such universally accessible amenities as water and toilet facilities, the 
community welcomes visitors, showing hospitality and inviting them to visit the 
town. Whenever possible, these amenities (see more below) should be available to 
trail users all year round (or at least when the trail is being actively used). It is also 
important to consider providing amenities at the Trailhead for each potential user 
group.  

 

Key Connecting Elements  
1. Trailhead 
2. Portal 
3. Pathway 
4. Gateway 
5. Center  
6. Nodes 

 
                         

Trailhead Amenities - Town 
Information 
One of the most important amenities 
local officials should provide at the 
Trailhead is information about the 
downtown. 
 
 
 
                         



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

  21 

Universally Accessible Trailhead Amenities  

 Bathrooms 
 Water 
 Benches 
 Trash Receptacles 
 Picnic Tables 
 Shelter 
 Parking (with shade) 

 Wi-Fi 
 Pop Machine 
 Directional Signs 
 Welcome Signs 
 Trail Map 
 Community Information 
 Bike Rack/Kayak Rack 

 
Trailhead Amenities - Bathrooms 

One of the most important amenities for any Trailhead is a bathroom. Bathrooms 
not only provide toilet facilities, but often they are used by trail users to fill water 
bottles, freshen up, and change clothes. Most of the nine jurisdictions close their 
traditional brick-and-mortar bathrooms during the winter months, even if the trail is 
still being actively used all year round. If year-round access to bathroom facilities is 
not feasible, each jurisdiction should work to provide universally accessible portable 
bathroom facilities. 
 
When building new brick-and-mortar bathrooms, consider installing at least one 
accessible “family bathroom” to accommodate parents with small children of the 
opposite sex and people with disabilities who may have a spouse or caretaker of the 
opposite sex.    
 
Trailhead Amenities - Signs 
Signs and markers are essential components on any trail system and should be 
incorporated into local and regional trail planning efforts. In researching best 
practices for Trailhead signs for this document, we found that the Bikeway and Trail 
Design Standards and Planning Guidelines5 from Fredrick County, Maryland, 
provided a comprehensive set of recommendations for information that should be 
included on Trailhead signs (see Figure 1.1 on the next page).  
 

                                                           
5 Bikeway and Trail Design Standards and Planning Guidelines. Fredrick County Parklands,   
  Fredrick County Department of Parks and Recreation (2003) 

Trailhead Amenities - Bathrooms 
Each jurisdiction should work to provide 
portable bathroom facilities during the 
time of year when their brick-and-mortar 
facilities are closed. Accessible portable 
toilets, like the one pictured below along 
the Pere Marquette Trail, are relatively 
inexpensive.  
 
                         



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

22 

Whenever possible, the style (design, color, materials) of the Trailhead sign should 
reflect the history and/or culture of the community. For multi-jurisdictional trails, 
the style of the Trailhead sign should be consistent in each community and 
reflective of the history and culture of the entire region. The consistent appearance 
of the Trailhead sign (especially if it includes a logo) can help to reinforce regional 
and local branding efforts. The Trailhead sign should also prominently include the 
word “welcome” somewhere on the sign. All trail signs should be located on 
accessible routes and surrounded by the accessible surfacing.  
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Trailhead Amenities - Signs 
For multi-jurisdictional trails, the style of 
the trailhead sign should be consistent in 
each community and reflective of the 
history and culture of the entire region. 
The Iron Ore Heritage Recreation Trail 
has incorporated iron from a local mine 
into the frame of the trailhead sign kiosk 
in each community (Marquette below). 
 
                         

Figure 1.1 

Trailhead Amenities – Safety Signs 
Paddling on the Great Lakes, or any water 
body, should be taken very seriously. Local 
efforts should be made to include warnings, 
information and safety tips on trailhead 
signs or kiosk. Information should include 
links to the NOAA Great Lakes marine 
forecasts (www.mws.noaa.gov) and the 
USGS (waterdata.usgs/gov/mi/nwis/rt) 
for inland rivers. 
 
                         



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 23 

Given the scope, geography and heavy vegetation of the Lake Michigan coastline, it 
may be quite difficult for paddlers (in the water) to determine where an access site is 
located without a formal map or GPS unit. Several water trail systems in Michigan 
employ identification signs along the coastline or river bank. Local officials in each 
of the nine jurisdictions discussed the implementation of a flag system that could be 
seen by paddlers from far-away distances and in both sunny and cloudy conditions. 
Despite several discussions, no formal template or agreement to use a flag system 
was agreed upon. However, a mock-up of a “Trailhead identification sign” for the 
Lake Michigan Water Trail was developed for this master plan (see right).  
 
Other sign types include: 
 

Informational signs to direct and guide users along trails in the most simple and 
direct manner.  
 
Directional signs to inform the trail user where they are along the trail and the 
distance to specific destinations and points of interest. More information on 
directional or “wayfinding” signs can be found on page 31. 
 
Interpretive signs to offer educational information about the trail and/or the 
surrounding area and community.  
 
Warning signs to alert trail users to potentially hazardous or unexpected 
conditions.  
 
Regulatory signs to inform trail users of the “rules of the trail” as well as other 
rules and regulations.  

 

 
 
 
 
 

Trailhead Amenities - Signs 
A mock-up of a “Trailhead identification 
sign” — a sign to direct paddlers from the 
water to the trailhead — was developed 
for this master plan.  
 
                         



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

24 

Whenever feasible, a combination of all the sign types listed above (if needed) 
should be provided at each Trailhead and at major access points in the downtown to 
convey accurate and detailed information about existing trail conditions, available 
facilities, and nearby downtown amenities.  
 
A sign array template (Appendix H) was developed by the Land Information Access 
Association (LIAA) that illustrates the size, appearance and content of 
identification, trailhead, directional, safety and mile marker signs that could be 
implemented in areas and communities along the Lake Michigan Water Trail. 
Implementation of such signage would require extraordinary, but achievable, 
cooperation with local units of government and other regulatory agents along the 
entire Lake Michigan coastline.  
    
Trailhead Amenities - Business Amenity Signs 

As previously stated, the Trailhead is the point at which the trail user may first come 
into contact with the community and the point at which the user will decide whether 
or not to enter town. Therefore, it is very important to include information about 
area businesses and attractions at the Trailhead. Photos of the primary shopping 
district, outdoor restaurants and other downtown amenities should be included in the 
description of the town. Whichever image is selected, be sure it includes people; 
images of a downtown devoid of people are not helpful. Good pictures help sell a 
positive image of the downtown and help convince trail tourists to enter the town.   
 
Depending on the location of the trailhead and the size of the town, the sign may 
include a simple base map of the community with icons that identify the types of 
services the town offers (e.g., a fork and knife icon for restaurants). The sign could 
also include a more detailed map of the downtown with a comprehensive list of 
businesses and attractions. If the sign includes a map of the downtown, be sure to 
clearly mark the trail and where it connects to the downtown. If a formal sign kiosk 
is not possible, try to include information about the community (e.g., pictures, 
restaurant menus, hotel information) in other prominent places, like on the exterior 
of a restroom building or marina office. Business amenity signs may also be viewed 
by bicycle tourists at key entryways into the town.  
 

Trailhead Amenities - Art 
Trailheads can be an excellent place to 
display artwork that highlights the 
unique and cultural aspects of the 
community and trail system. The 
sturgeon sculpture located along the 
Blue Water River Walk in Port Huron 
highlights the unique spawning grounds 
of the ancient fish in the river.  
                         



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 25 

Trailhead Amenities - Cultural Heritage Signs 

Trailheads can also be an excellent place to display information about the unique 
historical and cultural aspects of your community. Local officials and trail planners 
in each community should consider how to incorporate the community’s historical 
or cultural aspects into new signs at the Trailhead or in downtown.  

 
Trailhead Amenities - Art 

Trailheads can also be an excellent place to display artwork that highlights the 
unique cultural aspects of the community and trail system. When considering the 
size and materials of the artwork display, be aware that it may be used for other 
unintended purposes — that is, trail users may sit on it to tie their shoe or kids may 
climb on it.  
 

Water Trailheads 

As previously mentioned, each of the nine project communities has access to at least 
one formal water trail. The quality of amenities at each paddling Trailhead often 
depends on its location. For example, a Trailhead located in a marina may include large 
areas for parking, restrooms, showers, and an accessible kayak launch, whereas a 
Trailhead at a rural road-ending may only have a small path from which paddlers can 
access the water. This document is not suggesting a minimum amenities standard at all 
paddling Trailheads. However, urban areas (near downtowns) should have at least one 
Trailhead with an accessible launch, a kayak rack/locker, and as many amenities as 
possible (see list on page 20).  
 
In 2014, the National Park Service developed a guidebook, Prepare to Launch6, to assist 
in the development of canoe and kayak launches. The document provides a 
comprehensive summary of and recommendations for designing kayak launches.  
 
 

 

                                                           
6 Prepare To Launch - Guidelines For Assessing, Designing And Building Access Sites For Carry-In Watercraft 
 (2014) Prepare to Launch! is a joint project of the NPS Rivers, Trails, Conservation Assistance Program and the  
  River Management Society 

Water Trailhead  
Kayak racks (or lockers) provide an 
opportunity for trail users to secure 
their kayak and venture into town. The 
picture below shows a kayak rack along 
the Clinton River in downtown 
Rochester, Michigan. Some Michigan 
communities are considering installing 
kayak storage lockers that could be 
rented by residents each summer, 
much like a boat slip at a marina.    
 
                         



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

26 

Universally Accessible Water Trailheads 

ADA guidelines for newly designed, constructed and altered recreation facilities issued 
in 2002 require that all public boat launches (which include fixed and floating structures 
of all sizes) comply with ADA Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG). However, these 
guidelines represent minimum standards for boating facilities.  
 
Paddlers of all abilities want to launch and land smoothly without capsizing or 
damaging their watercraft. They need firm surfaces that support their movement from 
their arrival place to the launch at the water’s edge, and sufficient space to 
accommodate the length of their watercraft during transitions into and out of their vessel 
and into and out from the water. Therefore, it is important to consider Universal Design 
practices in the development of the complete water access facility, from car to launch. 
Simply put, universal design is the design of products and environments to be usable by 
all people, to the greatest extent possible, without need for adaptation or specialized 
design. A few considerations of universal design are provided below. A more thorough 
description of universal design considerations and a formal accessibility report (and site 
plan) for each water trail access site studied in each of the nine communities can be 
found in Appendix B and C.  
 

Universal Design Concepts - Launch Sites that are: 
 
 For all people of all abilities 
 For all ages 
 For all skills 
 For independent use 

 Safe 
 Intuitive 
 Easier to use by everyone together 

 
2. Portal. The Portal is the point at which users of the trail exit the Trailhead (or the 
trail) with the intent of visiting the nearby downtown. The Portal should be a welcoming 
point in which lighting, wayfinding signs, and accessible sidewalks and pathways 
clearly direct trail users into the central business district. In some instances, it may be 
more appropriate to place informational signs about downtown businesses (see page 24) 
at the Portal rather than the Trailhead. Local officials and trail planners should work 
closely with their downtown merchants or an organization like a DDA to develop signs 

Universally Accessible Kayak 
Launch  
Local officials should always consider the 
installation of universally accessible kayak 
launches at key water trail access sites. 
Simple launches, like the self-manipulated 
launch pictured below, can be purchased 
for a few thousand dollars. The EZ Dock 
Company has installed accessible launches 
in many Michigan communities  
(www.ez-dock.com).  
 

                         



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 27 

that are inclusive (that is, they include all businesses) and are of a size and design that is 
complementary to the surrounding landscape and character of the community.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

3. Pathway. The Pathway is the corridor that trail users follow from the Portal to the 
central business district. In some communities (e.g., Buchanan), the Pathway is just a 
few blocks, while in others (e.g., South Haven), the Pathway is about a mile. If the 
trailhead is several miles away from the central business district, the Pathway could 
include a combination of paved shoulders, bike lanes, and/or sidewalks or other 
pathways.  
 
The Pathway may also pass through commercial areas or residential neighborhoods. 
Therefore, it is important to include wayfinding signs or trail markers at key 
intersections and connections. Wayfinding signs along the Pathway should include the 
distance to the downtown, displayed in blocks and/or minutes. 
 
Wayfinding signs can also highlight places of interest along (or adjacent to) the 
Pathway, such as restaurants, shops, historical markers or a library. Local officials 
should continually assess the Pathway for cleanliness, safety, lighting, physical 
condition accessibility and interaction with traffic.   

Portal - Picture (A) is an example of a well-done portal sign in Evart, Michigan that has captured 
all the local businesses along the White Pine Trail. Picture B shows a less desirable example of a 
portal sign, exclusive to just one business, tacked up along the North Central State Trail in 
Gaylord, Michigan. 
 
 
                         

A. Inclusive Portal Sign  

Portal  
In some instances, it may be more 
appropriate and cost effective to 
include symbols (e.g., a fork and knife 
for restaurants) to identify general 
community assets rather than listing 
each individual business.  
 
 
 
 
 
                         

Pathway  
Wayfinding along the Pathway should 
include the distance to the downtown 
in blocks or minutes (see sign in 
Rochester, Michigan below). 
 

 

 

 

 

                         

B. Exclusive Portal Sign  



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

28 

4. Gateway. The Gateway is the point at which trail users enter the business district of 
the community. The Gateway should be located at the edge of the central business 
district that is closest to the Trailhead along a well-developed accessible Pathway. It is 
important to note that points along each major road coming into the central business 
district will serve as the Gateway for bike tourists. The Gateway area(s) should 
welcome trail users and visitors into the central business district and be the starting 
point for directional signs to individual attractions and businesses within the district.  
 
5. Center. The Center is the central business district or primary commercial area of 
the community. The Center serves as a hub of goods and services for the trail user. 
The Center should be regularly assessed for cleanliness, safety, lighting accessibility 
and physical condition. Window displays and building façades should also be 
regularly assessed for best practices (see retail building form later in this document). 
Additionally, the Center should be assessed on the availability of amenities that help 
trail users enjoy their experience (e.g., bike racks, outdoor seating at restaurants, ATM 
machines, free Wi-Fi, free air hoses for inflating tires, and public restrooms). 
 
Communities like New Buffalo, St. Joseph, Ludington and South Haven have offices 
or storefronts within their downtown devoted to tourist information (often the 
Chamber of Commerce). Each of these storefronts should include trail maps, 
brochures about bike and kayak rentals/outfitters, and information about where trail 
users can eat, sleep and shop within the downtown. In some instances, these 
storefronts and adjacent areas could be used as a central depot for trail users and their 
gear (e.g., bike racks, restrooms, lockers, etc.).    
 
6. Nodes. Nodes are points of interest along or near the Pathway  
or in the Center that will be visited or utilized by trail users.  
Nodes may include businesses that cater to the specific trail user  
(a kayak rental shop), lifestyle interests of the trail user (a hobby  
shop or an antique shop), the duration of time the user will spend  
on the trail (a public shower room or local lodging), or to all trail  
users (medical supplies, water, a casual dining restaurant, snack  

Center: Offices and/or storefronts devoted 
to tourist information should include 
brochures and flyers about the local trail 
systems, where to rent bikes and kayaks, 
and places the trail user could eat, sleep and 
shop. In some instances these offices and the 
surrounding groups could be used as a 
central depot for trail users. Picture A is the 
visitor information booth in downtown 
New Buffalo. Picture B is the visitor center 
in downtown South Haven.  
                         

Gateway  
An examples of a Gateway point along 
the Little Traverse Wheelway into 
downtown Petoskey, Michigan. 
 

 

 

 

 

                         

A. B. 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 29 

food, etc.). Local leaders in each community should continue to identify existing 
and/or potential nodes along each existing and potential Pathway into their 
downtowns.  
 
Putting It All Together 

Local officials, business owners, volunteers, municipal staff and other important 
stakeholders in each community should work to assess and map the connecting 
elements of their trail-to-town corridor (see example below, Gateway & Center not 
shown). 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Center 
 

Trailhead 
 

Portal 
 

Pathway 
 

Gateway 
 

Connecting Elements  
As part of this planning effort, local 
officials in some communties worked 
to identify the preliminary location of 
each connecting element. A formal 
assessment with business owners, 
volunteers and other important 
community stakeholders should be 
conducted in each community.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                         

Connecting Elements Map (Ludington) 

 

 

 

 

 

                         

Trailhead 
 

 
 

 
 
                         

Portal 
 

 
 

 
 
                         

Pathway 
 

 
 

 
 
                         



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

30 

Public Amenities 
 
As previously mentioned, another important step in becoming a Trail Town is to have 
accessible public amenities that support both day-trip and overnight trail users and 
bike tourists. It will be important for each community to have amenities such as well-
marked and accessible crosswalks, working pedestrian signals, bike racks, kayak 
lockers, drinking fountains, benches, bike stations (see right), and wayfinding signs 
within its downtown. Most of the coastal communities assessed for this document 
have a number of public amenities that support trail users and bike tourists, but gaps 
remain. Local leaders should continue to develop these types of amenities and 
resources as funding becomes available.   
 
The responsibility of some public amenities fall under the authority of regional or 
state agencies. For example, the County Road Commission oversees and maintains 
road shoulders, and the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) oversees 
crosswalks and traffic signals on state highways. It is imperative that local leaders in 
each community continually communicate with regional and state agencies about their 
local Trail Town planning efforts and improvements. One way to ensure their 
participation is to include their staff members in the local Trail Town steering 
committee.  
 
In most instances, the local municipality is responsible for providing public amenities. 
However, the purchase, installation and maintenance of these public amenities is 
expensive. Local leaders should look for opportunities to partner with stakeholder 
groups, local business owners, non-profit organizations, and regional community 
development agencies to share in the cost of providing these essential amenities.  
 
In addition, local officials in each jurisdiction should examine whether local zoning 
regulations inhibit the development of quasi-public amenities. For example, does the 
community have zoning regulations that prohibit restaurants from offering outdoor 
seating?   
  

Public Amenities  
A bike station is an important public 
amenity that gives trail users and bike 
tourists the opportunity to fix 
equipment that is not working or to 
pump up tires. At least one bike 
station should be located near the 
downtown or near the trail-to-town 
Pathway in each community. 

 
 

 
 

 
                         



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 31 

Public Amenities - Wayfinding Signs. Wayfinding signs are one of the most 
important public amenities local jurisdictions can provide for trail users and bike 
tourists. Wayfinding signs direct visitors to the primary assets and features of the 
community, and the local trail systems should be treated as such. A comprehensive 
wayfinding signage system should include signs located along major thoroughfares 
directing drivers to the Trailhead, and pedestrian-mounted signs on sidewalks 
directing trail users through the downtown and to nearby Trailheads. Remember, if the 
wayfinding sign includes a map of the downtown, be sure to clearly mark the trail and 
where it connects to the downtown. 
 
Wayfinding signs should also be placed on the trail, directing trail users to the central 
business district. As previously mentioned, LIAA developed a comprehensive 
wayfinding sign array for communities along the Lake Michigan Water Trail, which 
can be found in Appendix H.  
 
If there are multiple trails in the community, each trail should be included on the local 
wayfinding sign. In addition, the name of the Trailhead and any identifying trail logo 
should be included on the local wayfinding sign. As previously mentioned, the 
distance to the Trailhead (or to the downtown from the trail) should also be included 
on the wayfinding sign. The distance to the trail in rural areas can be displayed in 
miles. However, wayfinding signs in urban settings should be displayed in blocks or 
even minutes.   
 
Most of the nine communities included in this plan already have a very distinctive 
wayfinding system that includes both vehicular wayfinding signs and pedestrian 
wayfinding signs and maps. It will be important for local officials in each community 
to work with their local or regional MDOT office to include their trail systems on state 
wayfinding signs.    
 
Public Amenities - Cultural Heritage. Local officials in each community should 
celebrate and incorporate the community’s unique cultural heritage at the Trailhead, 
along the trail-to-town corridor, and within the central business district. In addition, 
the trail itself should be celebrated in the central business district. One way to do this 
is with public art. A sculpture, symbolic of the community’s cultural heritage, could 

Wayfinding Signs  
The community wayfinding system should 
direct drivers to the downtown and trail 
system (picture A), pedestrians along the 
trail into downtown (B), and pedestrians 
through the downtown (C).  

A. 

B. 

C. 



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

32 

be placed at the Trailhead. Another sculpture, symbolic of the trail, could be placed in 
the central business district or near the Gateway.  
 
Picture (A) shows a sculpture of iron workers along the Iron Ore Heritage Trail in the Upper 
Peninsula. Picture (B) shows a sculpture of trail users near the Gateway into downtown 
Traverse City.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Interpretive kiosks can provide information about the culture and history (e.g., 
movements or influential figures) of the community at the Trailhead, along the trail-
to-town corridor, or in the downtown. As previously noted, interpretive signs should 
incorporate a design reflective of a unique cultural aspect of the community.  
 
Public Amenities - Bike Racks. Bike racks not only provide a secure place for trail 
users to store their bikes as they visit the town, but they also support local residents 
and bike commuters. In an effort to eliminate obstructing the pedestrian way and the 
chaining of bikes to trees, benches or light posts, it will be important for each 
community to strategically place bike racks at locations throughout the downtown.  
 
Although sometimes they are less efficient, decorative bike racks (especially those 
that incorporate cultural themes into the design) further enhance the image of the 
community as a Trail Town.  
 

Bike Racks  
Strategically placed bike racks will help 
eliminate bike clutter within the 
downtown.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                         

A.

B. 

B.

B. 

Cultural Heritage  
Interpretive kiosks at Trailheads, along 
the trail-to-town corridor, or in the 
downtown can help tell the story of the 
community to trail tourists.   

 

 

 

 

 

                         



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 33 

Sometimes, if a bike rack is too elaborate, it can appear to be public art, resulting in 
lack of use. Be sure to indicate a bicycle on the bike rack to denote that it is indeed 
intended to be used as such (see Boyne City example at right). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Public Amenities - Public Transportation. For many trail users and bicycle tourists, 
time and distance may limit the likelihood of visiting other communities in the region. 
Some paddlers may only be comfortable paddling 10 miles over a two-day period, 
whereas bike tourists may only have enough endurance to pedal 30 miles over a two-
day period. However, trail users and bicycle tourists may still like to recreate on other 
segments of the trail and visit other communities during their stay in the region.  
Local leaders should work with their local or regional transportation agency to explore 
opportunities to establish a seasonal “trail transportation” program in which the public 
transportation agency would transport trail users and their equipment to stops at 
Trailheads in communities throughout the region. For communities in which there is 
no public transportation agency, perhaps a local outfitter would be willing to provide 
that service.     
 
  

Public Transportation  
In Traverse City, the public transit agency 
(BATA) locates bus stops near Trailheads and 
transports trail users between Traverse City 
and Suttons Bay during the summer months.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                         

Bike Racks 
Bike racks near water trail access 
sites may encourage local residents 
to bike to their kayak storage area.      
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                         

Bike Racks  
Although they are less efficient, decorative 
bike racks like this one in Ludington 
further enhance the image of a Trail Town.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                         

Bike Racks  
The artistic bike rack shown in 
downtown Boyne City is engraved with 
a bicycle, denoting its intended use. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                         



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

34 

Business Amenities  
 
The local businesses that will be of interest to the trail user and bike tourist will be 
primarily service-based businesses. Trail planners, local officials and local/regional 
community development agencies can help local business owners in each community 
better understand the needs of the trail user and bike tourist. In addition to providing 
goods and services to trail users and road bikers, local business owners can 
incorporate simple trail-friendly and inclusive universally accessible amenities and 
trail-based hospitality into their business practices. For example, restaurants and bars 
could provide bike racks outside their establishments, accessible restrooms that are 
open to the public, and perhaps a “trail special” menu item or drink. Wait and host 
staff should be able to talk about the trail and describe how to get to the Trailheads. 
Gas stations near Trailheads should offer a free air pump. Motels should have trail 
maps in their lobby and offer bike cleaning stations and a secure bike storage area. 
Retail establishments should have friendly hours of operation, trail-related 
merchandise, and options to ship their merchandise to the trail tourist’s home.  
 
It is also important that all downtown businesses, especially restaurants, accept credit 
cards; long gone are the days of “cash only.” It may also be helpful to host a “service 
industry trail day” in which community service workers are given tours of the trail so 
they can better describe and recommend it to tourists.  
 
The enhancement of existing businesses and development of new business 
opportunities are important elements to becoming a Trail Town. Many businesses in 
the region already provide goods and services geared toward trail users and bike 
tourists. Hopefully, over time, more and more business owners will realize the value 
of this emerging market. Education, encouragement and financial incentives may be 
needed, especially to encourage participation by small businesses. 
 
When Building Form Meets Retail 
 
The look and feel of the downtown are important elements in creating a Trail Town. 
The density, size and architectural elements of the buildings, as well as the character 

Building Form 
Attractive storefronts, historic buildings, 
outdoor cafés and wide sidewalks are 
essential elements in creating a 
pedestrian-friendly and thriving retail 
environment. 

Business Amenities  
Local officials can help local business 
owners in each community better 
understand the needs of the trail user. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                         



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 35 

and pattern of the storefronts, tree canopy and sidewalks, all work together to create a 
pedestrian-friendly environment that attracts tourist and creates a thriving retail 
environment.  
 
The following section highlights several “best practices” for the design of buildings, 
storefronts and sidewalks, as noted by Robert Gibbs in his book, Principles of Urban 
Retail, Planning and Development7.  
 
These best practices can be implemented in the local zoning code or through the 
adoption of design guidelines. The following section highlights examples of building 
form elements within the nine communities that are contributing to the character of the 
downtown.  
 
Building and Public Realm Elements  

 
Awnings: 
 Define the first-level storefront 
 Reinforce brand 
 Bring attention to the business 

 
Awnings (Best Practices):  
 Materials should be constructed from canvas, cloth, steel or glass but should reflect 

the overall character of the business brand. Awnings constructed of plastic and 
internally illuminated should not be permitted. 

 Color should be limited to two colors. 
 Lettering should be limited to eight inches in height and only allowed on the front 

flap rather than on the top-sloped awning. 
 Awnings should complement the character of the building and should not cover 

architectural elements. 
 Awnings should be no more than six to eight feet deep and have a pitch of no more 

than 25 degrees. 

                                                           
7 Gibbs, Robert. Principles of Urban Retail Planning and Development. John Wiley & Sons, Inc. (2012) 

Awnings 
Materials should be constructed from 
canvas, cloth, steel or glass, but should 
reflect the overall character of the 
business brand. 
 



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

36 

Signs Should: 
 Be well designed 
 Be properly scaled 
 Support continuity, but encourage individuality  

 
Signs (Best Practices): 
 Signs should be limited to one square foot of signage for each linear foot of 

storefront. 
 Lettering should be no higher than 10 inches. 
 Internally illuminated signs should be prohibited. 
 Design materials should reflect the character of the building.  

 
Windows and Doors: 
 Help advertise goods 
 Reinforce building form 
 Add interests to pedestrians 
 Draw people into the store 
 Provide a sense of safety  

 
Windows and Doors (Best Practices): 
 At least 60% of first-level storefronts facing the primary sidewalk should be 

transparent glass.  
 Keep displays simple, don’t overcrowd. 
 Keep the back of the display window open to allow the store’s interior to be visible  
 Primary doors should face the sidewalk. 
 Doors facing the street should be recessed whenever practical. 

 
  

Signs 
Signs should support continuity, but 
encourage individuality. 
 

Windows  
At least 60% of first-level storefronts facing the 
primary sidewalk should be transparent glass. 
 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 37 

Sidewalks:  
 Provide the first and last impression for visitors  
 Should not distract from the storefront windows  

 
Sidewalks (Best Practices): 
 Sidewalks should be wide enough to allow pedestrians to pass one another 

comfortably as well as to accommodate limited outside displays and dining.  
 Sidewalks should be 8 to 16 feet wide.  
 Wider sidewalks should be located on the sunny side of the block.  

 
Street Trees: 
 Contribute to the perception that the downtown stores offer quality goods   

 
Street Trees (Best Practices): 
 Select native tree species.  
 Avoid short bushy trees that block storefronts and window displays. 
 Plant trees near or on common property lines.  

  

Sidewalks  
Sidewalks should be wide enough to 
allow pedestrians to pass one another 
comfortably while accommodating 
limited outside displays and dining. 
 

 

Street Trees  
Trees contribute to the perception that 
downtown stores offer quality goods.  
 



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

38 

Economic Restructuring for Your Trail Town 
 
Economic restructuring refers to the functions of business expansion, business 
retention, and new business recruitment. It also deals with the key issue of market 
demographics. It is important for local officials and economic development agencies 
to understand how economic restructuring can capitalize on existing community assets 
to help establish a Trail Town. 
 
A. Understanding Your Trail User - The Customer  

According to the Allegheny Trail Alliance, in any downtown development effort, 
understanding your customer is one of the most important and central activities local 
business leaders can undertake. Often, local officials want formal metrics to justify 
their budgets or invest in capital improvements. Big cities, regional governments and 
state agencies across the country have spent millions of dollars trying to better 
understand customer habits and the economic impact of trails. This process is very 
costly and probably unrealistic for most communities. A better approach is to get a 
general sense of the economic impact of trail users by asking local business owners 
what trail users are buying, where they are staying, and where they are eating. A good 
story about the economic impact of just one trail user can go a long way.  
 
Broad information on the social, economic and lifestyle preferences of trail users can 
be found in reports from trail user associations (e.g., International Mountain Biking 
Association). Another way to better understand the characteristics and spending habits 
of trail users is by surveying them. Several communities or trail systems (e.g., Kal 
Haven Trail) have conducted formal trail user surveys to get a better idea of who is on 
their trail and what kind of experience they are having in the community.  
 
Local officials and community development professionals, could administer an online 
survey, or conduct a more thorough survey of trail users at the trail using volunteers. 
Once the socio-economic and lifestyle preferences of the trail customer base are 
somewhat better understood, local leaders, community development agencies and 
tourism organizations can begin to make decisions about how to best attract potential 
trail customers into the community.  

Understanding Your Trail User  
Once the socio-economic characteristics 
and lifestyles of the trail customer base 
is better understood, local officials  
and business owners can better make 
decisions on how to attract these 
potential customers.  
 
 
 
 
 

Economic Impacts  
A 2013 study by the Washtenaw County 
Office of Community and Economic 
Development found that the Huron 
River Water Trail has roughly 103,000 
annual visitors, which translates to 
almost $50 million in regional economic 
activity.  
 

 

 

 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 39 

 
Understanding Your Trail User - A Closer Look at Bike Tourism 

In 2014, the Michigan Department of Natural Resources delivered a presentation on 
bike tourism that profiled three basic types of bike tourists, noting their demographics, 
biking tendencies and spending preferences.  

 
1. The Shoestring Cyclist 
Shoestring Cyclists tend to be younger and more self-contained. They will typically 
ride between 75 and 100 miles per day and prefer low-cost options for lodging and 
meals, spending no more than $30 a day. When traveling, Shoestring Cyclists seek 
campgrounds near town and low-cost access to showers.  
 
2. The Economy Cyclist  
Economy Cyclists tend not to be age-specific. They will typically ride between 50 
and 90 miles per day and prefer eating their meals in restaurants, spending no more 
than $50 per day. The type of lodging preferred is typically dictated by the weather 
and location. When traveling, Economy Cyclists seek discounts for local tourist 
attractions, and campgrounds near town or other low-cost lodging options. 
 
3. The Comfort Cyclist 
Comfort Cyclists tend to be older (between 50 and 65) and highly educated. They 
will typically ride less than 50 miles per day and are looking to stay in communities 
that offer the full vacation experience (e.g., beach, shopping, restaurants, full-
service hotel, and museums). The typical Comfort Cyclist has a high amount of 
discretionary income, on average spending over $100 a day.    
 
These three bike tourist profiles are just one example. Due to their proximity to the 
water, all of the coastal communities are also visited by paddlers and boaters. It will 
be important to try understand the needs, desires and spending habits of each trail 
user that travels to the community.  
 

  

Understanding Your Trail User 
According to a Michigan Sea Grant 
report, in 2008 kayakers in the United 
States: 

 Made an average of 10 outings 
each 

 56% of kayakers are male 

 36% are between 25 and 44 and 
30% are over 45 

 57% earn over $75,000 per year 

 51% have a college degree or 
higher 

 14.1% live in the Midwest 
 
 
 
 
 

                        - National Main Street 
Program 



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

40 

B. Assess Basic and Long-Term Trail User Needs 
There are a number of basic and long-term goods and services that most trail users 
expect in every community; a full list can be found in Appendix E. Local leaders 
should continually assess if and to what extent their community is providing these 
goods and services.  
 
C. Encourage Related Business Opportunities 

As previously stated, trail users and bicycle tourists will be interested in other 
activities and attractions in the community. Local business owners may wish to 
expand their offerings of goods and services to meet the demand of visitors using or 
visiting other attractions.  
 
D. Assist the Local Business Community 
Local community development offices, Chambers of Commerce and Convention and 
Visitor Bureaus should work with local business owners to explore ways to encourage 
economic restructuring around local and regional trail and recreational assets.  
 
One way local and regional leaders can assist local businesses is to develop an 
“economic gardening” approach to business development issues related to the trail. 
According to the Allegheny Trail Alliance, under the economic gardening approach, 
one or more members of the committee would develop an in-depth understanding of 
the characteristics of the trail-user customer base and the trends in the activity itself. 
Then, through informational bulletins and educational sessions, the Trail Town 
concept is nurtured and grown in the community. Businesses that cater to this 
customer base will also flourish. The committee may also wish to provide funding to 
ensure that magazines, books, and publications that provide current information 
about the trail activity are available in the business section of the local library. 
 
  

Business Opportunities  
Local businesses may wish to expand 
their offerings of goods and services to 
meet the needs of trail tourists.  

 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 41 

Promoting Your Trail Town 
 
The Allegheny Trail Alliance recommends that communities utilize and implement 
three primary marketing strategies (as outlined in the Main Street Four-Point 
Approach) to create an effective promotional campaign for a Trail Town. 
 

 Establish a Trail Town image for the community. 
 Hold special events that highlight and celebrate the trail and the community. 
 Conduct retail promotions to entice people into the downtown. 

 
1. Establish a Trail Town Image. The first component of an effective promotional 
campaign is to convince local residents, the larger region, and then tourists that you 
have an active, universally accessible and welcoming Trail Town environment. Most of 
the Trail Town strategies described in this document are based on drawing in visitors 
from beyond the local market. However, the full potential of the Trail Town concept 
may not be realized unless the local and regional population base is aware of it and what 
it can offer. Local officials and trail/recreation advocates need to make sure local 
officials and residents (the “community ambassadors”) are aware of their local trail 
systems and the regional paddling and bike-touring opportunities. Hosting local trail 
tours and implementing programs like “smart-commute week” are just a couple of ways 
to build up the trail-friendly character of the community and garner local support. Local 
stakeholder groups and active volunteers can also help build awareness.      
 
Local officials and economic development agencies can help “brand” their community 
and the region as a Trail Town by developing attractive print marketing materials such 
as brochures, maps, billboards and advertisements. Digital marketing pieces, including 
videos, can be developed for the online outlets.  
 
2. Hold Trail Town Events. The second component to an effective promotional 
campaign is to hold special events within the downtown or near the trail. Special events, 
especially events that tie into the community’s history and cultural identity (or even the 
trail corridor’s history), can attract both local residents and visitors.  

Promote a Trail Town Image  
Local communities could incorporate 
Trail Town promotional pieces into 
streetscape features, like this banner 
in Boyne City, Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 

Promote a Trail Town Image  
Local stakeholders can help brand 
their community (and region) as a 
Trail Town by developing uniform 
and attractive marketing materials.  
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

42 

The Allegheny Trail Alliance notes that annual events held just before trail season can 
attract potential trail users into your community. Presentations, displays and/or 
workshops, or a tour of the local trail are examples of activities that could be included in 
a local event.  
 
3. Conduct Trail Town Retail Promotions. The third component of an effective 
promotional campaign is to conduct special retail promotions. Seasonal or special sale 
promotions backed by cooperative advertising can help drive trail-related revenues to 
local businesses. As previously mentioned, local officials and trail advocates should 
work with at least one local restaurant or bar to name a sandwich or drink special after 
the trail. A restaurant may also be willing to sponsor a weekly paddle/ride trail event.  
 
As previously mentioned, it can be useful for local leaders to work with local groups 
like the DDA or just a small group of store owners to effectively plan for, conduct and 
promote special retail promotions. It should also be noted that word of mouth is 
crucial to the overall success of the trail and the community. Therefore, the business 
community and local residents need to understand that creating a welcoming and 
friendly environment is important.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

A. B. 

Retail Promotions - Several local retailers in Suttons Bay, Michigan (picture A) have 
incorporated a bicycle theme in their storefront window displays. In Alpena, Michigan, 
local merchants sponsor decorative bike racks (picture B) throughout the downtown.  
 
  

Trail Town Events 
Local Trail Town stakeholders should 
consider holding special and/annual 
events to raise awareness about the 
local trail system and Trail Town 
effort. For example, a local brewery 
could host an annual paddling festival. 
A special beer could be made for the 
festival, with all proceeds going to 
water trail development efforts (see 
the Paddle-N-Pour event in 
downtown Port Huron below).  
Other events could include a smart-
commute week or weekly bike-ride 
around the community, ending at a 
local restaurant.     
 

 

 

 

 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 43 

Additional Recommendations  

Establishing an impactful Trail Town initiative in the communities along the Lake 
Michigan coastline will require cooperation and long-term commitment by local and 
regional planning agencies, community and economic development agencies, local 
officials, trail advocates, and business owners. Many of the recommendations and best 
practices outlined throughout this document will be implemented by local leaders or, 
ideally, a local “Trail Town Committee.” At the same time, many recommendations, 
especially those related to promotions, may be implemented by regional agencies with 
input from local leaders. Using the framework of the “four-point approach,” the 
following section outlines additional recommendations for each of the nine 
communities and the region, including agencies that might be charged with directing 
implementation. Formal site plans for local water access sites are also provided in 
Appendix C. We have also included photographic renderings of how some of the 
recommendations discussed in this document might appear in all nine communities.   
 
Organizing 
 

Trail Town Committee(s) 

As previously mentioned, many of the recommendations and best practices outlined 
earlier in this document will be implemented by local leaders. Therefore, it is 
important that each community establish a local “Trail Town Committee.” The local 
committee will provide the administrative structure required to schedule and hold 
meetings, establish priorities, and get everyone working toward the same goals. The 
committee should consist of a broad spectrum of local officials, trail advocates, 
environmental stewardship organizations, public safety agencies, accessibility 
advocates, business owners and community stakeholders. If the community has an 
established DDA or merchants association, it is imperative that those members 
participate. In some instances, it may be appropriate to include the Trail Town 
Committee within the sub-committee structure of the DDA.  
 
 

Trail Town Committee  
The local Trail Town Committee will 
help to schedule and hold meetings, 
establish priorities and get everyone 
working toward the same goals.  

  



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

44 

In an effort to support and coordinate Trail Town planning and implementation 
activities on a regional scale, members from the local Trail Town Committees in New 
Buffalo, Buchanan, Bridgman, St Joseph and South Haven should convene a 
“Southwest Michigan Trail Town Advisory Committee.” The Regional Trail Town 
Advisory Committee could be organized and facilitated by the Southwest Michigan 
Planning Commission, in cooperation with local Trail Town committee members, 
local Chambers of Commerce, Convention and Visitor Bureaus and local economic 
development officers who are already working on regional initiatives.    
 
The Advisory Committee could meet as little as every quarter or as often as every 
month. The Advisory Committee will provide a venue for local and regional leaders to 
share ideas and information, discuss new initiatives, and talk about lessons learned. 
The Advisory Committee will also provide an opportunity to discuss regional 
promotional opportunities and other collaboration opportunities.  
 
A similar regional advisory committee could be formed from Trail Town Committee 
members in Holland, Park Township and Ottawa County.  
 
Safety 

Paddling on the Great Lakes, or any water body, should be taken very seriously. In 
order to provide for a pleasant and safe paddling experience, local officials should 
consider implementing a formal safety plan for their community. This plan may 
include working with the Coast Guard and/or local or county public safety 
departments to make them aware of the trail and determine what safety measures 
should be used to protect paddlers. The plan may also include the development of 
safety tips and warnings to be placed on informational kiosks and promotional 
materials.  
 
 

 

 

 

 



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 45 

Promotion 

 
Existing Print Materials  
Just about every community has a number of brochures and pamphlets that highlight 
fun activities, a unique place or something to experience in their community. Some 
brochures might be developed by the local DDA, whereas others might be developed 
by local businesses. If the brochure is developed by the local municipality or DDA, it 
should include a description about the local trail system(s) and how the community 
supports trail users. It will be important to include pictures of trails users as well.  
 
The Michigan Trails Magazine is the premier publication for trails in Michigan. 
Produced annually by the Michigan Trails and Greenways Alliance (MTGA), the 
magazine includes descriptions, photos and maps of each non-motorized trail system 
in Michigan. The magazine includes summaries of many of the trails in the nine 
communities discussed in this plan.  
 
While water trails are not featured in the magazine, MTGA does allow trail 
organizations to place ads within their designated page. Local officials could place an 
ad for their section of the Lake Michigan Water Trail or inland water trail within the 
magazine. In addition, another ad and summary of the local Trail Town initiative 
could be included in the layout.  
 
New Print Materials - Trail Town Rack Card 

As previously mentioned, every community has a number of brochures and pamphlets 
(and even magazines) that highlight local assets. Some of these promotional pieces 
mention the local trail system or speak directly to trail tourists, but many do not. Each 
community, in partnership with other Trail Town communities in their region, should 
develop a Trail Town Rack Card Set. The set should include one card that describes 
the regional Trail Town initiative as well as a unique Trail Town card for each 
community. The format and design of each community-specific card should be 
similar, including a unique description of the community, things to do in the 
downtown (e.g., eat, drink, shop, and sleep), a description of the trail system, a map 
that shows how the trail, Trailhead and downtown are connected, links to local 

Trail Town Rack Cards 
The Huron River Watershed Council 
has developed an excellent Trail 
Town rack card set (see below) for 
their communities along the Huron 
River Water Trail. The cards are 
informative, well-designed and 
attractive, and should be emulated for 
each of the communities along the 
Lake Michigan coastline.  

  



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

46 

websites of interest, and contact information. Each card should also include vibrant 
pictures of the downtown and pictures of paddlers or road bikers engaging in the 
downtown (e.g., road bikers enjoying an outdoor restaurant). The border or dominant 
color of the card should be different for each community and consistent with the color 
of a Trail Town logo.  
 
Advertisements 

As previously mentioned, one of the first components to an effective promotional 
campaign is to convince local residents, the larger region, and then tourists that you 
have an active and welcoming Trail Town environment. One way to promote this 
message is through direct advertising on billboards, radio and television. Billboards 
can be great forms of advertising because they are relatively inexpensive, 
communicate simple and quick messages, and can be seen by a lot of people. Radio 
spots are advantageous in that they are relatively low cost and have the ability to reach 
a large audience segmented by demographics and geography. Television 
advertisements can be effective because they reach a large audience and are repetitive.  
 
Promotional Merchandise  

Another way to promote the local trail systems and Trail Town experience is through 
promotional merchandise. Promotional materials such as t-shirts, mugs, pins, stickers, 
car decals, and water bottles are relatively low cost and provide long-term contact 
with local residents and trail tourists. Local officials should work with business 
owners to develop a series of promotional materials that incorporate their logo. 
Initially, stickers and pins might be the most cost-effective promotional pieces 
because a high volume can be purchased for relatively little money and they can be 
easily distributed at events.  
 
In addition, these same organizations should develop promotional merchandise that 
incorporates the trail activity and the name of each community. For example, “Paddle 
New Buffalo” or “Pedal South Haven” could be placed on sweatshirts and car decals. 
In many instances, local Trail Town leaders could work with local retailers who are 
already selling community-themed apparel to add these designs to their offerings. 
 
  

Billboards  
Billboards can communicate simple and 
quick messages about local and regional 
Trail Town efforts (see rendering below).  

  



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 47 

Logo and Identity  

In an effort to build identity for the local and regional Trail Town initiative, a series of 
Trail Town logos for each community should be developed. The logos could then be 
incorporated into local and regional promotional materials. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
U.S. Bike Route 

As previously mentioned, many of the project communities studied for this document 
are connected by an official U.S. Bicycle Route. Bicycle Route 35 runs the entire 
length of Michigan’s Lower Peninsula, ultimately connecting Sault Ste. Marie 
Michigan to Mississippi. Along the way its passes through New Buffalo, Bridgman 
St. Joseph, Sough Haven, Holland and Ludington. U.S. Bicycle Route 20 also passes 
through Ludington before it runs east across the Lower Peninsula, ultimately 
connecting Michigan to the Oregon coast.  

Logo (Example)  
Communities in Michigan’s 
Thumb region recently worked 
to develop nine individual Trail 
Town logos.  

  



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

48 

These bike routes are unique in that they connect Michigan (including the six 
communities) to over 11,000 miles of bicycle routes across the United States. In 
addition, they support a vast number of state, national and international bike tourists. 
U.S. bicycle tourists can have a significant economic impact to the local economy. 
According to the Adventure Cycling Association, bicycle tourist spend between $98 
and $223 dollars per overnight stay.     
 
The Adventure Cycling Association notes that there are three significant ways in 
which communities can better accommodate touring bicyclists. 
 

1. Create Multimodal Connections. Bicycle tourists often have difficulty getting 
their bicycle (and associated gear) from their home to their beginning or ending 
destination. Communities (and their associated transportation providers) can 
support cyclists by making it easier to transport their bicycle from one point to 
another. For example, the USS Badger has a reduced travel rate ($12.00 round-
trip) for people traveling to and from Ludington by bicycle. Amtrak is currently 
considering allowing travelers to bring their fully assembled bicycle on board. 
Local officials, especially in places like New Buffalo where the train station is 
directly downtown, should continue to talk to Amtrak about the benefits of 
allowing such cargo.    

   
2. Create a Network of Bikeways or Greenways. Local officials in each of the six 

communities mentioned above should continue to explore ways to connect the 
US Bicycle routes with existing and future bikeways, trails and pathways. The 
Federal Highway Administration (FHA) notes three resources that especially 
useful to planners and engineers: 

 
 Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities, AASHTO 
 Urban Bikeway Design Guide, National Association of Transportation  
 Design Walkable Urban Thoroughfares: A Context Sensitive Approach, 

Institute of Transportation Engineers  
 

Create Multimodal Connections 
Local officials, especially in places like 
New Buffalo where the train station is 
directly downtown, should continue 
to talk to Amtrak about the benefits of 
allowing such cargo.    



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 49 

3. Provide Wayfinding. As previously mentioned, providing consistent and easily 
navigable signage to and from the bike route as well as communities amenities 
(where to eat, sleep and shop) is immensely important. Please see the summary 
and recommendations on wayfinding earlier in this document. Local officials, in 
partnership with the Michigan Department of Transportation should continue to 
place U.S. Bicycle Route signs in prominent locations, clearly directing cyclists 
through the community. When bike routes are changed, local officials should 
inform the community through public outreach (press release) and the update of 
any non-motorized maps).      

 
Economic Restructuring  

 
As previously discussed, economic restructuring refers to the functions of business 
expansion, business retention, and new business recruitment. It will be important for 
local and regional economic development agencies to work with local officials and 
business leaders to better understand the local and regional trail-tourist market and 
potential economic development opportunities.  
 
Consumer Spending Habits 

Consumers (especially younger consumers) are using credit cards or debit cards much 
more frequently than cash for both large and small transactions. In fact, a recent poll 
by creditcard.com cited in Bloomberg Business Week8 found that 51% of Americans 
under the age of 30 will use plastic even for purchases under $5. Too many “cash 
only” signs in the downtown area can deter trail tourists — many of whom are already 
using credit cards because it’s easier to carry plastic rather than dollar bills and change 
— from spending their money in your community. It will be important for local and 
regional economic development agencies to encourage local business owners to 
accept credit card and debit card transactions.  
 
 

 

                                                           
8 http://www.bloomberg.com/bw/articles/2014-08-27/plastic-beats-cash-among-young-adults 

Provide Wayfinding  
Local officials, in partnership with the 
Michigan Department of 
Transportation should continue to 
place U.S. Bicycle Route signs in 
prominent locations, clearly directing 
cyclists through the community. 



                                                                        
Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

50 

Design   

 
Public Amenities  

As previously mentioned, another important step in becoming a Trail Town is to have 
inclusive universally accessible public amenities that support both day-trip and 
overnight trail users and bike tourists. In addition to the amenities described 
throughout this document (e.g., bike racks), it is important that each community install 
at least one bike station. The station could be placed at a prominent location in the 
downtown or at the primary Trailhead. The bike station allows trail users or road 
bikers to fill their tires with air or fix a broken chain. Renderings related to the design 
of access sites, the connecting elements and the downtown for each of the nine 
communities were developed for this plan and can be found in Appendix D.   
 
Getting Started 
 
The best management practices and recommendations outlined in this document might 
seem quite daunting to local officials. In addition, many of the capital improvement 
projects described in the Appendix D will require careful planning and funding. As each 
community moves forward with their local Trail Town Initiative, local officials should 
work on small achievable tasks first, including: 
 

1. Establish the Local Trail Town Committee and Schedule a Meeting.  

 Creating a Trail Town will require the input and time of community stakeholders. 
To keep people engaged, it will be important to establish a local Trail Town 
committee and meet on a consistent basis. The more formal the meeting (e.g., 
regular times and dates, an agenda, meeting minutes, report, etc.) the more likely 
that people will consistently attend and participate. Once the committee is formed, 
members should begin to identify priorities and assign responsibilities. A formal 
“Action Plan” should be created which: (1) outlines specific projects; (2) identifies 
the responsible party (e.g., trail town committee, DDA, local businesses, chamber of 
commerce); (3) determine the funding requirements; and (4) identify a timeline for 
implementation.   

 

Bike Station 
A bike station, placed in a prominent 
location, will help bolster the Trail 
Town image and provide a needed 
service to trail users. 

  



 Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 51 

2. Get Projects Adopted Into Other Local and Regional Planning Documents. 

 Once specific projects have been identified, the local Trail Town Committee should 
work with municipal staff to get each project placed within local planning 
documents like the Master Plan, TIF Plan and/or Parks and Recreation Plan. This 
will ensure that projects will be reviewed and considered in all future planning 
activities. In addition, projects listed in these planning documents are more likely to 
receive funding. For example projects listed within the Parks and Recreation Plan 
are eligible for Michigan DNR Trust Fund Grants. 

 
3. Get Public Officials and Business Owners on the Trail and Help Them 

Understand the Economic Opportunities of the Trail. 

 Simply put, if local officials are not aware of the trail system and its associated 
amenities they will be less likely to allocated funding toward it. It will be important 
for the Trail Town Committee to host an orientation about their trail and associated 
trail amenities for local officials. It can also be helpful to explain to local officials 
how the trail fits into the recreational system and transportation network of the 
community. In addition, it will be important to educate business owners on the 
benefits of the local trail system and discuss how they could contribute to its 
success.  

 
4. Add Trail Systems to Local Wayfinding Signs.  

 Most of the nine project communities already have a fairly comprehensive 
wayfinding signage program already in place. It will be important that when 
wayfinding signs get replaced or new wayfinding signs get erected, the local trail 
system (and trailheads) are included in the list of amenities. 

 
5. Get Trail Images and Descriptions into Local and Regional Marketing 

Materials.  

 Many of the nine project communities already have developed and employ a 
comprehensive marketing campaign. Whereas other communities participate in 
regional marketing efforts. Whether the focus of the marketing materials is local or 
regional, it will be important to include a description of the trail system and the Trail 
Town theme within the web and print materials. Don’t forget, a good picture can go 
along way! 









Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

x 

Gateway Experience 

Once bike tourists (or any tourists) get off the S.S Badger Ferry, there is no sign or 
marker welcoming them into Ludington. Some type of welcome sign and/or landscape 
feature should be placed along James Street that welcomes tourists into Ludington and 
provides the gateway into the downtown.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Before Treatment After Treatment 



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan
                 

      

    xi 
   

Ottawa County  

 
Ottawa County, Park Township and the City of Holland each have the potential to 
develop new access sites for paddlers. These access sites could serve transient paddlers 
using the Lake Michigan Water Trail. However, the access sites are more likely to serve 
paddlers on Lake Macatawa. There is already an outfitter renting kayaks on the lake and 
local leaders are currently exploring opportunities to establish a formal Lake Macatawa 
Water Trail.     
 
Ottawa County has identified the Black Lake Boardwalk East Park as a potential access 
site. The park has direct access to the lake, a large viewing platform, parking, and 
restrooms. The park is nestled between Holland State Park and the South Shore Village, a 
small shopping district with restaurants, retail stores and hotels. Both on-street bike lanes 
and non-motorized trails link the park with the State Park and South Shore Village.   
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Existing Site 



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 
xii 

Trailhead 

New trailhead amenities at the Black Lake Boardwalk East Park would include an accessible 
kayak rack, accessible port-o-johns, a paddler’s plaza, accessible parking spaces and wayfinding 
signage. These features should fit into and complement the park design and amenities.  
 
Accessible Launch 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Before Treatment After Treatment 

Before Treatment After Treatment 



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan
                 

      

    xiii 
   

Improved Pedestrian Connections and Wayfinding Signage 

Improving the pedestrian connections to the park will be important. These improvements could 
include more pronounced crosswalks on Ottawa Beach Road, more pronounced crosswalks and 
wayfinding near the entrance to the park, and more pronounced bike lanes along Ottawa Beach Road.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Before Treatment After Treatment 

Before Treatment After Treatment 



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 
xiv 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

After Treatment Before Treatment 

Before Treatment After Treatment 



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan
                 

      

    xv 
   

Park Township  
 
Park Township has identified the South Shore Boat Launch as a potential access site 
for the proposed Lake Macatawa Water Trail. The site has a dock and ramp for 
motorboat access to the lake. The site also has ample space for parking. Because the 
site is used to launch motor-boats, the accessible launch would have to be placed to 
the side with a newly constructed seawall. New trailhead amenities at the South Shore 
Boat Launch would also include accessible port-o-johns, kayak storage, accessible 
parking spaces, pedestrian connections to the surrounding neighborhood and 
wayfinding signage.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Existing Site 



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 
xvi 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Before Treatment  After Treatment 

Before Treatment  After Treatment 



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan
                 

      

    xvii 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Before Treatment  After Treatment  

Before Treatment  After Treatment  



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 
xviii 

Holland 
 

The City of Holland has identified Kollen Park as a potential access site for the 
proposed Lake Macatawa Water Trail. Kollen Park has ample parking, restrooms and 
picnic areas. The proposed access site would also be located along a non-motorized 
pathway that leads to downtown Holland and runs along the street in front of 
Boatwerks, a popular restaurant with expansive views of Lake Macatawa. Paddlers, 
docking at Kollen Park would have a very short walk to this popular restaurant. New 
trailhead amenities at Kollen Park would include an accessible kayak launch, kayak 
storage, a “paddler’s plaza” and interpretive and wayfinding signage.  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Existing Site. The Boatwerks Restaurant 
lounging area (second picture down) is 
private and not a part of Kollen Park.  



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan
                 

      

    xix 
   

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Before Treatment  After Treatment  

Before Treatment  After Treatment  



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 
xx 

Wayfinding 

Because the proposed access site is tucked between Kollen Park and the Boatwerks Restaurant, a trailhead marker 
or flag should be erected off the boardwalk to direct paddlers to the access site. The access site should also 
include kiosks that describe the Macatawa Water Trail and the Lake Michigan Water Trail as well as provide 
information about downtown Holland. In addition, the accessible pedestrian route leading from Kollen Park into 
downtown Holland should include directional signs at key intersections along the trail.       
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Before Treatment  After Treatment  

Before Treatment  After Treatment  



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan
                 

      

    xxi 
   

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

The City should also consider placing the Lake Michigan Water Trail and proposed Lake Macatawa 
Water Trail on the existing wayfinding system.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Before Treatment  After Treatment  

Before Treatment  After Treatment  



Lake Michigan Coastal Communities   Trail Towns Master Plan 

 
xxii 

 

 

Gateway 

A well-designed sign near the Farmers Market could denote the Gateway into downtown Holland for trail users. 
The City is in the process of developing a new plan for the Civic Center and Farmers Market, so any Gateway 
feature(s) would need to be in concert with the new plan.      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

After Treatment  Before Treatment  



Date: July 14, 2016 

 

To:  Park Township Board 

 

RE:  Agenda Item 9.j: Planning Commission:  Zoning Map Update Adoption 

 

For some time staff has been reviewing the current zoning map to ensure 

compliance with prior board actions.  The issue of a relying on a current map has 

been known for some time but the effort has been delayed until this time.   

 

The issue of a current, up to date map, arose when PW1 was first applying for 

approvals back in 2009.  Not only did the master plan and zoning map conflict, it 

came to light that the map was not consistent with prior rezoning actions that 

occurred since the map was first adopted back in 1974. 

 

The task of updating the map was caught up in the master plan process with the 

theory that a new map would be adopted along with any zoning changes that 

might arise from a new update future land use map.  Obviously there is still no 

new master plan or future land use map but it is time to move ahead with an 

updated, reliable map. 

 

The process for updating the map involved reviewing every set of township board 

and Planning Commission minutes since 1974 (more than 1,000 sets of meeting 

minutes).  The base map for the project was the map from 1974, of which we 

also did not have a copy although we did have a draft copy from early master 

plan drafts from that time.  With the base map in hand staff reviewed every 

rezoning action and updated the map parcel by parcel to ensure accuracy of the 

new map.   

 

While the map in use until this time was “close” there were several parcels that 

were mislabeled on the map and some parcels had incorrect zoning district 

“lines” (ie, splilt parcels).  Community Development Director deVries has 

personally reviewed this work and has worked closely with our map editor to 

ensure an accurate map.  

 

Attached is a memo from Dir. deVries along with a copy of the new and improved 

map.  Adoption of the map will provide proper identification of each parcel in the 

township, put the township on a more firm legal foundation and provide a base 

for future map amendments.  We note that future rezoning actions should always 

be accompanied by a motion to “amend the zoning map” to accommodate and 

record the new action.  

 

Manager’s Recommendation:  Adopt the new map as presented by Staff.   

 



 
 

STAFF MEMO 

 

Subject: Zoning Map Update & Corrections   
Date: July 5, 2016  
To: Jerry Felix, Township Manager, and Park Township Board  
From: Ed de Vries, Zoning Administrator  
 

 

 

A number of years ago it was suspected that our zoning map had errors.  From 
documentation and notes discovered in files, it appear that work had started on researching 
the history of zoning.  In 2013 current staff began researching the issue.  Research 
consisted of reviewing zoning maps going back to the 1960’s, and reviewing Township 
Board minutes from 1974 to present to locate all zoning revisions.  The attached report on 
Zoning Map Corrections resulted from that research. 
 
Per the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, the Legislative body of the local unit of 
government adopts zoning ordinances and also regulations on the use of land by 
establishing zoning districts.  When the zoning districts are established, or amended 
(rezoning) the Legislative body adopts an ordinance, and map.  Park Township’s current 
form of zoning was initially adopted in 1974, at which time Board minutes reflected the 
adoption of the ordinance and map.   
 
In subsequent rezoning actions, staff found mention of the rezoning ordinance in the 
minutes, but no mention of adopting a new “map”.  Whether this was not captured in the 
minutes, or this step was missed is unknown.   
 
Other errors located likely involved human error either due to wrong data provided to the 
map vendor, or difficulties encountered over the years as surveying and printing techniques 
became more accurate and sophisticated.  
 
The attached report on Zoning Map Corrections examines each of the incorrectly depicted 
areas in detail.  In addition the latest rezoning and PUD adoptions were added. 
 
The Zoning Map dated 2016 is believed to be accurate and reflects any rezoning ordinances 
as found in Board minutes going back to 1974.  None of this is rezoning, but merely 
accurately reflecting the current zoning districts. 
 
There is one area that should be examined further for possible rezoning.  The area marked 
“D” which is the south side of Ottawa Beach Rd. from Lake St. to 168th Ave. was long 
believed to be R-4 Medium Density One & Two Family Residence District.  It is actually 
zoned C-2 Resort Service District.  The nature of structures existing, and size of the 
existing parcels would appear to lend themselves better to the R-4 zoning district.  
 
Recommendation:  The Planning Commission examined the report this past December, and 
again at the June meeting of this year, with a recommendation that the Board adopt the 
2016 Zoning Map as presented.  The PC also asks the Board to examine the area marked 
“D” and advise as to whether the PC should study this area, and if need be hold a public 
hearing for rezoning these parcels. 
 
From this point forward, any rezoning action should involve the Board passing a rezoning 
amendment, together with a map, and ensuring that the Board minutes would reflect that an 
amendment and map were adopted. 



1 
 

Zoning Map Corrections 

 



2 
 

 

A.  PW1/Macatawa Park area. 
  
 This is a zoning map from 1969, which predates our current zoning.  The commercial 
 area marked “M” is the area of the Point West Motel and Restaurant.  Using a scale the 
 zone is approx. 300 feet wide, which is about the distance from Interlake Walk to the 
 line between lots 157 & 154. (Partway up the hill.) 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 



3 
 

 

Below is a depiction from a 1974 Zoning Map, from which our current zoning is derived.  
The map depicts C2 zoning in the shaded area.  The horizontal lined area is R4.  The C2 zone 
is 150 feet wide following the shoreline up to where South Shore Dr. and West 32nd  St. 
meet.  It extends 800 feet north of Interlake Walk, and 500 feet west between Michigan and 
Interlake Walk, from Bay Rd.  It is unknown why Michigan Walk was used as the south 
boundary. At that time it was a paper street that bisected the then existing Point West 
Motel and Restaurant.  The width is also wider than the actual distance between Interlake 
and Michigan, 250 feet on the scale.  Actual distance is 150 feet. 

 
 
On November 12, 1976 a rezoning was approved to allow construction of the “hillside” 
unit of Point West.  The rezoning covered part of lot 154 on the hill, up to lot 157. The 
rezoning was from R4 to C2.  Subsequent zoning maps in 1977, 1984, and 1994 did not 
depict the rezoning.  The zoning map from 2000 then incorrectly depicted the C2 zone 
as being 250 feet wide following the shoreline. (Measured by scale as dimensions were 
not shown.)  



4 
 

 

 
The 2010 and 2011 zoning maps incorrectly depict the entire hillside, as well as the lot 
at South Shore Dr. and Griswold Walk as being C2.  In addition they appear to have 
shortened the C2 area to the north and west. 

2000 Zoning Map showing incorrect C2 width 



5 
 

 2011 Zoning Map 

 



6 
 

 

 

Dark shapes indicate the approximate locations of the Point West Motel and Restaurant. 

The red shaded area reflects the C2 zone as it was mapped in 1974 if using the street description, not by 
scale. 

The yellow shaded area was rezoned to C2 in 1976 to allow the building of the hillside unit for Point 
West. 

 

ISSUES: 

Did the Township intend to place the motel and restaurant half out of the zoning? 

Rezoning for the hillside unit did not accomplish what was intended. 

 

  



7 
 

 

The red shaded area represents the commercial zone from  the 1969 zoning map, placing the entire 
restaurant and motel, with the exception of the hillside unit in the commercial zone. 

The yellow shaded area represents the 1976 rezoning for the hillside unit of Point West.  Again it does 
not appear to meet the objective of placing the hillside unit in the C2 zone. 

 

POSSIBILITIES: 

The 1976 map used Michigan Walk as the east border for the C2 zone.  Michigan Walk was a paper 
street only.  It appears that Sunset Walk (comes down the hill shaded in blue.) at one time met Michigan 
Walk.   The road Sunset Walk now runs down past what was the hillside unit along the southwesterly 
edge of the yellow rezoned area.  Did the planners and Township feel that Michigan Walk was the road 
in front of the hillside unit? 

Was the thinking at the time that the C2 zone east border was the bottom of the hill, and that the 1976 
rezoning also then included the entire hill top to bottom? 



8 
 

 

 
Issues: 
It is unclear as to why the mapped commercial area cut the Point West Motel and 
Restaurant in half in 1974.  Looking at current maps it would appear the 1976 rezoning 
was not needed as the hillside unit was entirely in lot 157.  This could call into question 
the accuracy of the 1974 map. 
Another issue is the Macatawa Parking Corporation parking lot on the south side of 
South Shore just before the guardhouse.  This lot is in an R4 zone, which is not a 
permitted use.  
 
Possible Solutions: 
a.) Depict the C2 zoning using the dimensions from the 1974 map, adding the portion 

that was rezoned for the hillside unit.  This would not require any rezoning.  Part of 
this may seem to be a moot point considering the PUD approval for PW1 that covers 
much of this area, but would give an accurate indication of the underlying zoning.  

 
b.) Rezone the Macatawa Parking Corp. parking lot and/or remainder of the PW1 lot to 

C2. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



9 
 

 

B. Ottawa Beach Rd. and Auburn area 
  
 The area was originally zoned R4, with the exception of the south side of Ottawa Beach 
 Rd., and the area north of Ottawa Beach Rd. roughly bounded by Auburn, Bosma, and 
 3rd, which was zoned C2. 
 On February 4, 1988 the C2 portion of “Bosma’s Subdivision” was rezoned to R4.  The 
 1994 and 2000 zoning maps incorrectly depict this area as being R3.  The 2010 and 2011 
 zoning maps then show most of the area as R4, with the exception of a few parcels and 
 the area south of Ottawa Beach Rd. shown as R3. 
 There is no zoning map amendment located to show why this would be R3.  I did locate 
 some old worksheets which labeled the area as R3, which was then scratched out and 
 replaced with R4 
 

 
 Potential Solution: 
  Depict the parcels currently shown as R3 to R4.  This should not require any 
 rezoning as this would appear to have been a clerical error when printing the maps.  

 
 
 



10 
 

 
C. 160th Ave. south of South Shore Dr. 
 

The west side of 160th between South Shore and Virginia Place was originally zoned C1, 
and correctly depicted as such in all zoning maps until the latest 2011 map in which it 
was then shown as C2.  It appears this may be a printing error as the colors for C1 and 
C2 are very close. 

 
Potential Solution: 
 Correctly reflect the C1 zoning on the next map.  This would not require any 
rezoning. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 
 

 
 
D. South side of Ottawa Beach Rd. between Lake St. and 168th Ave. and the south side of 

Lake St. between Ottawa Beach Rd. and Ash St. 
 

The south side of Ottawa Beach Rd. was depicted on the 1969 map as residential, the 
1974 map as C2, south side of Lake St. as R3.  They were depicted as such until the 2010 
zoning map, which then showed R4 for both.  No rezoning amendment was located in 
the Board Minutes. 
I should note that sometime during the mid 80’s, a property owner on Ottawa Beach did 
request a rezoning from R4 to C2, and was denied.  Zoning maps before and after this 
request did reflect the property as C2. 
 

 
2000 Zoning Map 



12 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Issues: 
 It appears that the general thinking was that the area was R4, even though 
zoning maps showed otherwise.  This again could call into question the accuracy of the 
1974 zoning map.  The area is populated with single family homes.  Lot sizes would not 
seem to support the setback requirements for C2 zoning. 
 
Potential Solution: 
 Rezone the south side of OBR to R4.  I believe this would require a rezoning 
process as there is no documentation to support the current R4 designation.   
 The south side of Lake St. could be correctly depicted as R3 on the next map 
publication without needing to be rezoned. 
 
 
 
 

2011 Zoning Map 



13 
 

E.   282 S. Lakeshore Dr. 
   
  The parcel was originally zoned R2, as were all parcels on the west side of Lakeshore Dr.  

 The 1994 and subsequent zoning maps show this one parcel as being R3.  Again no 
 rezoning document was found in reviewing Board Minutes.  The current owner stated “I 
 bought the house in 1996. I have no knowledge of any of the zoning from your letter.” 

 
 

 

 

 

Potential Solution: 

 Correctly depict this parcel as R2 in the next zoning map.  The size of the parcel does 
make it a lawful nonconforming size lot; however it would require a rezoning amendment to 
change it to R3.  If rezoned to R3 it could potentially be split as the lot is approx. 1 acre. 

 

 

 



14 
 

F. Anchorage Marina & Condominiums 

 Anchorage Marina and Condominiums were approved in 1980 by the Planning Commission as a 
special use for the marina in a C-2 zone, and the condos are approved under the C-2 zone.  No PUD. 

 In 1985 there was a PUD for the area behind the original service building and strip mall on the north 
side of Ottawa Beach Rd. for a boat/cradle storage area.  The PUD was amended several times to 
add and then enlarge a storage building, and for the addition of a cell tower.  The only portion of the 
Anchorage property done through a PUD is on the north side of Ottawa Beach Rd. 

 

G.  Recent Rezoning Actions to update the map 

 1. PW1 PUD. 

 2. 14825 James St. and 2405 Meadowcreek Ln. (Wassink rezoning request.) 

 3. 14934 & 15004 Riley rezoned from Ag to R-3 

 4. Blackberry Condo PUD on Post Ave. 

 

Next Steps: 

 The planning commission should review this document, and pass any recommendations on to 
the Township Board.   

 The Township Board should then review this document, along with any PC recommendations.  If 
no rezoning is recommended by the PC or Township Board, the corrected zoning map can be adopted by 
the Township Board.   If rezoning is indicated, the Township Board is authorized to initiate a rezoning 
proposal and send it back to the PC. 

 


	Agenda
	Item 5.a - Approval of 6-9-16 Minutes
	Item 5.a - Approval of 6-23-16 Minutes
	Item 5.b - June 2016 Balance Sheet Report
	Item 5.b - June 2016 Revenue And Expenditure Report
	Item 5.b - June Investments
	Item 5.c - Building-Zoning Report
	Item 5.c - Code Compliance Report 2016
	Item 5.d - Payment of Bills
	Item 6.a - June Fire Dept Board Report
	Item 6.a - Fire Dept Board Report
	Item 8 and 9.a - Public Hearing on PW1 Condition Amendment Request
	Item 8 and 9.a - ConditionsSubmittal 2016 06 09
	1.CoverPage
	2.CoverLetter
	3.TableofContents
	4.Narrative
	5.Original_NoBoatSlipArea_11x17
	6.DEQApprovedPlan
	7.USACEApprovedPlan
	8.NWRiparianInterest
	9A.EldeanSettlementLetter
	9B.SERiparianInterest
	10.AgreedUponRiparianInterest
	11.ProposedPreferredBoatSlipArea_11x17
	Sheets and Views
	G-110C (2)
	M2.Sheet
	M1.Sheet
	G1.Sheet
	DET.Sheet
	M3.Sheet



	12.PreferredBoatSlipOverlay_11x17
	Sheets and Views
	G-110A
	M2.Sheet
	M1.Sheet
	G1.Sheet
	DET.Sheet
	M3.Sheet



	13.PointeWestIReport
	14.Application

	Item 8 and 9.a - Eldean settlement letter to Park Township  6-2-16
	Item 8 and 9.a - Marina Plan No Objection letter signed
	Item 9.b - Ottawa County Fair Board Sunday Use Request
	Item 9.b - OCF Heinz memo 6-2016
	Item 9.c - Transit Committee Update - Propensity Study Funding
	Item 9.c - Transit Memo MACC 6-29-2016
	Item 9.d - MACC Bylaw Amendment
	Item 9.d - MACC bylaw  memo
	Item 9.d - Revised MACC Bylaws
	Item 9.e - Professional Planning Services Agreement
	Item 9.e - Main Street Planning Company - Proposal 2
	A
	AA
	AAA

	Item 9.e - Planner consulting- final contract  2016
	Item 9.f - Recreation Software Purchase
	Item 9.f - RecPro software pricing 6-2016
	Item 9.g - Establish Public Hearing on Winter Plowing of Bike Paths
	Item 9.g - Bike Path Map Master potential snow routes
	Item 9.g - Bike Path Map Master_36x43 8-2009
	Item 9.h - Bid Award - Greenly Bike Path
	Item 9.i - Water Trail Discussion
	Item 9.i - water trail memo 7-6-2016
	Item 9.i - WATERTRAIL 6-23-2016
	Item 9.i - Final plan (2) LIAA 3 excerpt 2
	0_Cover
	2_Plan
	6_Appendix_D_Renderings_Combined
	8_Appendix_F_Renderings_Holland


	Item 9.j - Planning Commission - Zoning Map Update Adoption
	Item 9.j - Staff Memo to TB 20160705
	STAFF MEMO

	Item 9.j - Zoning Map Corrections



